4 Title: Children & Young People Committee
&l@l& Date: 3 June 2013
Brighton & Hove | Time: 4.00pm
City Council Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall

Members: | Councillors: Shanks (Chair), Buckley (Deputy
Chair), Wealls (Opposition Spokesperson),
Pissaridou (Opposition Spokesperson), Brown,
Gilbey, A Kitcat, Lepper, Powell and Simson

Non Co-opted Members : Clinical Commissioning Group
Voting (1 clinical and 1 executive); Police Representative;
Co-opted Chair, Local Safeguarding Children Board; Chair,
Members Learning Partnership; Youth Justice Board

Representative; Parent Forum; Sussex NHS
Community Health Trust; Youth Council (2);
Community and Voluntary Sector; CAMHS

Contact: Penny Jennings
Democratic Services Officer

01273 291065
penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk

E\ The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users,
(4 including lifts and toilets

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for
7 anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter
e 1] and infra red hearing aids are available for use
during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the
receptionist on arrival.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by
the nearest available exit. You will be directed to
the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital that you
follow their instructions:

* You should proceed calmly; do not run and do
not use the lifts;

* Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

* Once you are outside, please do not wait
immediately next to the building, but move
some distance away and await further
instructions; and

* Do not re-enter the building until told that it is
safe to do so.

Children & Young People Committee

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk



Democratic Services: Children & Young People Committee

Legal Councillor Strategic Democratic
Officer Shanks Director, Services
Chair People Officer

Non-Voting
Co-optee

Non-Voting
Co-optee

Non-Voting
Co-optee

Non-Voting
Co-optee

Non-Voting
Co-optee

Non-Voting

Co-optee
Non-Voting .
Co-optee Non-Voting
Co-optee
Non-Voting
Co-optee Councillor
Brown
Non-Voting Councillor
Co-optee Wealls
Opposition
Spokes
Councillor
Buckley Councillor
Deputy Char Simson
Councillor
Councillor Pissaridou
Opposition

Spokes

A. Kitcat

Councillor
Gilbey

Councillor
Powell

Councillor
Lepper

Presenting Presenting
Officer & Public Officer & Public
Speaker Speaker

Public Seating

T EEE




CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Part One

Page

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

(a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to
attend a meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political
Group may attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

(b) Declarations of Interest:

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests not registered on the
register of interests;

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the
local code;

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision
on the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting
you or a partner more than a majority of other people or
businesses in the ward/s affected by the decision.

In each case, you need to declare

(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to;

(i) the nature of the interest; and

(iii) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other
interest.

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee
lawyer or administrator preferably before the meeting.

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of
the nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.

NOTE: Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in
its heading the category under which the information disclosed in
the report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to
the public.

A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.

2. MINUTES

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2013 (copy
attached).

Contact Officer:  Penny Jennings Tel: 01273 291065



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE

3. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS

4. CALL OVER

(@) Items (7 —11) will be read out at the meeting and Members
invited to reserve the items for consideration.

(b)  Those items not reserved will be taken as having been
received and the reports’ recommendations agreed.

5. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

To consider the following matters raised by members of the public:

(@)  Petitions: to receive any petitions presented to the full council
or at the meeting itself;

(b)  Written Questions: to receive any questions submitted by the
due date of 12 noon on the 23 May 2013;

(c) Deputations: to receive any deputations submitted by the due
date of 12 noon on the 23 May 2013.

6. MEMBER INVOLVEMENT

To consider the following matters raised by Councillors:

(@)  Petitions: to receive any petitions submitted to the full Council

or at the meeting itself;

(b)  Written Questions:to consider any written questions;

(c) Letters: to consider any letters;

(d)  Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion referred
from Council or submitted directly to the Committee.

7. CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGES 13 -20

Report of the Monitoring Officer (copy attached)

Contact Officer:  Penny Jennings Tel: 01273 291065
Ward Affected: All Wards

8. CLOSING THE GAP IN EDUCATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT FOR 21-38
VULNERABLE GROUPS IN THE CITY
Report of Interim Director, Children’s Services (copy attached)

Contact Officer:  Hilary Ferries Tel: 29-3738
Ward Affected: All Wards

9. BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL: UPDATED ANNUAL 39 -108
STANDARDS AND SCHOOL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2011/12



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE

10.

11.

12.

Report of the Interim Director, Children’s Services (copy attached)

Contact Officer:  Hilary Ferries Tel: 29-3738
Ward Affected: All Wards

UPDATE ON CHILDCARE FOR TWO YEAR OLDS AND 109 - 140
PROVISION FOR THE EAST OF THE CITY

Report of the Interim Director, Children’s Services (copy attached)

Contact Officer:  Vicky Jenkins Tel: 29-6110
Ward Affected: All Wards

PROVISION OF CHILDCARE IN EAST BRIGHTON 141 - 144

NB: The public are likely to be excluded during consideration of this
item as it is Exempt under Paragraphs 2 and 3 of Schedule 12 of Part
1 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Report of the Interim Director, Children’s Services (copy circulated to
members only)

Contact Officer:  Vicky Jenkins Tel: 29-6110
Ward Affected: East Brighton

ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL

To consider items to be submitted to Council meeting for
information.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may
determine that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In
addition, any Group may specify one further item to be included by
notifying the Chief Executive no later than 10am on the eighth
working day before the Council meeting at which the report is to be
made, or if the Committee meeting take place after this deadline,
immediately at the conclusion of the Committee meeting

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting.

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.




CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At
the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
filmed.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act
1988. Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy (Guidance for Employees’ on the BHCC website).

Therefore by entering the meeting room and using the seats around the meeting tables
you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images
and sound recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training. If members
of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the public gallery
area.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Head of Democratic Services or
the designated Democratic Services Officer listed on the agenda.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings, (01273)
291065, email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk.

Date of Publication - Thursday, 23 May 2013




CHILDREN & YOUNG |Agendaltem 2
PEOPLE COM MITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

53.

53a

53.1

53b

53.2

53c

53.2

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE
4.00pm 11 MARCH 2013
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL
MINUTES

Present: Councillors Shanks (Chair) Councillor Buckley (Deputy Chair), Wealls (Opposition
Spokesperson), Pissaridou (Opposition Spokesperson), Brown, Gilbey, A Kitcat, Lepper,
Powell and Simson

Non Voting Co-optees: Andrew Jeffery, Parent Forum, Rachel Travers, Amaze/Voluntary

Sector Forum, Alan Bedford Local Safeguarding Children Forum; Geraldine Hoban, Clinical
and Commissioning Group and Soaad Eboyuk, Youth Council

PART ONE

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

Declaration of Substitutes

There were none.

Declarations of Interest

There were none.

Exclusion of Press and Public

In accordance with Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“The Act”), the
Children and Young People Committee considered whether the press and public should
be excluded from the meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was
likely, in view of the nature of the proceedings, that if members f the press and public
were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of confidential

information (as defined in Section100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information (as defined
in Section 100 (1) of the Act).



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

53.4

54.

54.1

54.2

54.3

54.4

55.

55.1

56.

56.1

57.

57a

57.1

57b

57.2

RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded during consideration of any
item on the agenda.

MINUTES

Councillor Buckley referred to Paragraph 50.14 of the minutes stating that she did not
consider the comments attributed to her reflected her strength of feeling about the
matter or concerns regarding the approach taken by the other political groups.

Ms Travers, Amaze referred to the minute relating to the Public Health Approach to
Parenting (Page 8 of the minutes referred). She believed that there was a lengthy
waiting list for training to Level 4, also that funding for this was limited and had wished to
receive further clarification in respect of this issue. It was agreed that the relevant officer
would provide this information to her.

Ms Travers, Amaze referred to the minute relating to future arrangements for the
delivery of Family Group Conferencing (Page 11 of the minutes referred). Councilor
Wealls had stressed that there needed to be a “level playing field” in seeking to retender
for this service in she considered that explicit reference to this needed to be included in
the minutes.

RESOLVED - That the Chair be authorised to sign the minutes of the meeting held on
14 January 2013 as a correct record subject to the amendments set out above.

CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS

Funding for the Music Service

Councillor Shanks, the Chair, stated that £50,000 had been put back into the budget for
provision of the School Music Service for 2013/14. Councillor Pissaridou referred to her
request that that the level of subsidy to families on low incomes be rolled out further. It
was confirmed in response to questions by Councillors Brown and Wealls that the
logistics of implementing this prior to the start of the academic year in September 2013
would be explored.

CALL OVER

It was agreed that all items would be reserved for discussion with the exception of Item
61, “Section 75 Agreements Children’s Services.”

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT
Petitions

There were none.
Written Questions

There were none.



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

57c

57.3

58.

58a

58.1

58b

58.2

58¢c

58.3

58d

58.4

59.

59.1

59.2

59.3

Deputations
There were none.
MEMBER INVOLVEMENT
Petitions

There were none.
Written Questions
There were none.
Letters

There were none.
Notices of Motion
There were none.

EXPANDING THE PREMISES OF ALDRINGTON CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
— FINAL DECISION

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of Children’s Services the
purpose of which was to report the representations and objections received during the
statutory notice period following agreement by the Committee at its meeting on 14
January 2013 to the provision of an additional form of entry for September 2013 at
Aldrington CE Primary School. No representations or objections had been received
during the statutory notice period and therefore endorsement of the proposal was being
sought from the Committee.

It was confirmed that in line with the current Council’s Constitution all decisions
regarding proposed changes to the Council’s school admission arrangements needed to
be determined at full Council. This meant that the final decision regarding enlargement
of the premises of Aldrington Voluntary Aided Church of England Primary School would
need to be taken by full Council at its meeting on 28 March 2013.

Councillor Lepper referred to background papers which had been circulated with this
report which had related to proposed extension of Stanford Infant School (this proposal
had been rejected at the last meeting of the Committee), stating that it would have been
useful had that information had been provided with the earlier report. The Head of
Capital Strategy explained that all of the relevant paperwork received up to the expiry of
the statutory consultation period had been made available in the Members rooms and
via the Political Assistants’ rooms at King’s House, as background documents and
Members had been advised accordingly. The outcome of the further statutory
consultation had been included as an appendix to the papers circulated for
consideration at Committee that day.



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

59.4

59.5

Councillor Lepper stated that the Members Rooms were not easily accessible to all
Members between meetings depending on where their Wards were located. In the past
full copies of all relevant documents had been circulated to Members individually. The
Chair stated that thought could be given to this matter for future occasions but
considered that it was important to note for the purposes of the Committees decision on
this issue that no objections had been received in respect of the proposals for the
expansion of Aldrington Church of England Primary School.

A vote was taken and Members agreed to refer the matter to Full Council for decision as

set out below.

59.6

59.7

60.

60.1

60.2

60.3

RESOLVED - That the Children and Young People Committee endorse the decision to
proceed with the proposal for providing an additional form of entry for September 2013
at Aldrington CE Primary School subject to securing planning consent necessary for the
extension by 31 August 2013; and

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL - That the Children and Young People
Committee recommend that on 28 March 2013 Council confirms the statutory notice and
resolves to expand the premises of Aldrington Voluntary Aided Church of England
Primary School from September 2013 subject to securing the necessary planning
consent by 31 August 2013.

YOUTH JUSTICE STRATEGY 2013-14

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of Children’s Services setting
out the Youth Justice Strategy 2013-14. Since 2000 there had been a requirement in the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 for Youth Offending Services (YOS) and their
partnerships, to produce a Youth Justice Strategy, setting out how YOS would be
resourced locally and detailing those services which would be available in relation to the
statutory primary aim of YOS to prevent youth offending in the area.

It was noted that the plan had been produced by the YOS manager and overseen by the
partnership board which included representatives of the “Safer in the City Partnership”,
and wider statutory and voluntary services. The last year had been a period of change;
a full restructure of the service had been undertaken and a new service structure would
be in place for1 April 2013, designed to focus on the core purpose of the service, and
taking into account current performance and feedback from inspections. The strategy
set out the new delivery model and the partnership working that would be developed
from this. A full Joint Strategic Need Assessment had been undertaken on youth
offending across the city in 2012; and had fed into a stakeholder event including
partners from across statutory and voluntary sectors. The service and delivery of
interventions to young offenders across the city had been scrutinised and as a result
priority areas had been identified city in order to address prevention of youth offending
in the city with focused support programmes to prevent reoffending. Following budgetary
pressures over recent years and a subsequent restructure a team was in place which
was ready to deliver on the key priorities set out.

A priority area had been the development of a more robust restorative justice
programme across the city, greater intelligence sharing between the police and YOS,



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

60.4

60.5

60.6

60.6

60.7

stronger links between YOS and probation, multi agency planning and work to address
and reduce repeat offending within the city. These requirements had been incorporated
into the new YOS structure and model of working. Over the past two years the Youth
Offending Service had been inspected twice by HMI Probation, following which a peer
review had been undertaken the most recent inspection had taken place in October
2012. The Youth Justice Strategy and Plan had been developed to incorporate the
findings from these inspections, in order to develop a more robust, outcome focused
services to reduce youth offending and to improve management of risk and
safeguarding of young people. Implementation of the strategy and delivery of the plan
would be monitored by the YOS partnership board on a quarterly basis. The YOS
partnership board was made up of council, strategic and voluntary sector partners and
was accountable to the Safe in the City Partnership Board and chaired by the Director of
Children’s Services.

Councillor Shanks, the Chair, welcomed the report commending the work that had been
carried out to ensure that the new structure would be in place for 1 April 2013.

Councillor Wealls also welcomed the report referring to the development of an
overarching policy aimed at helping to prevent looked after children from re-offending
and working to avoid their criminalisation. Clarification was sought regarding the role of
the Safeguarding Children Board in dovetailing with the work of the LEA and other
partners. It was confirmed that work was on-going between all partners to ensure that
robust measures were in place and all relevant information was shared. Mr Bedford
explained that this would be his last meeting as he was stepping down as Chair of the
Safeguarding Children Board and would be replaced by former Chief Superintendent
Bartlett wef 1 April.

It was noted in answer to questions that as a consequence of the changes in legislation
brought in at the beginning of the year in addition to the work being undertaken with
carers and foster parents of vulnerable young people to seek to prevent re-offending, in
future all youngsters placed on remand would automatically be treated as looked after
children. It was intended that robust bail packages would be put into place and that
advice and support from the team would be available six days a week. Whilst there had
been a reduction in first time entrants to the YOS from 231 in 2009/10 to 95 in 2011/12,
30% of that number re-offended within 12months. Although that was a lower figure than
for the city’s statistical neighbours this was still a high figure (3.68) when viewed
nationally and measures had been put into place to seek to address this. One strand of
this would be to for YOS to link its work to that of the Stronger Families, Stronger
Communities team given the additional resources available from within that team to
assist.

Councillor Buckley referred to those children who experienced delay with speech and
language and the period of time for which these children were tracked. It was explained
that work was being undertaken in concert with Education Welfare. All young people
who came onto the system would be tracked for at least 12 months and there would be
a focus on early intervention which would also link into pre-school initiatives.

Ms Travers Amaze referred to the fact that 57% of young people supported by the YOS
were of school age and a significant number of them attended Queensdown/Pupil
Referral Unit, there could often be a correlation between behavioural difficulties, lack of



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

60.8

60.9

60.10

60.11

social skills and offending. As a number of these young people had speech and
language difficulties she requested a breakdown on the numbers seen by YOS and
those in receipt of statements for SEN.

Councillor Powell stated that there was a recognized causal link between housing
issues, poor literacy and educational under achievement, there was a need for
overarching linkage between all relevant services.

It was noted that one of the team’s priority areas was around the on-going development
of a restorative justice programme.

Councilllors Pissaridou and Wealls referred to the involvement of the Scrutiny Panel
Chaired by Councillor Morgan, stating that the Panel needed to be made aware of the
changes made and that it would be premature for the report to be referred to Full
Council at the present time. The Chair, Councilor Shanks concurred stating that as it
stood at present the Committee were being requested to agree the Strategy and to
authorise the Interim Director of Children’s Services to proceed with it.

RESOLVED - (1) That the Youth Justice Strategy set out in Appendix 1 to the report be

agreed; and

61.

61.1

61.2

62.

(2) That the Children and Young People Committee authorise the Interim Director of
Children’s Services to proceed with the Youth Justice Strategy 2013-14.

SECTION 75 AGREEMENTS CHILDREN’S SERVICES

This report was not subject to callover and therefore the report recommendations were
agreed.

RESOLVED - That the Children and Young People Committee:

(1) Notes the dissolution of the PCT from 31% March 2013 and the creation of the
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) pursuant to the Health and Social Care Act 2012,

(2) Authorises the Director of Children’s Services, after consultation with the Director of
Finance and Head of Law, to finalise and agree a new s75 Partnership Agreement
between the Council and the CCG in relation to jointly commissioned children’s
services, such agreement to take effect from 1% April 2013 with a two year term;

(3) Notes that the Council’s existing S75 Agreement with Sussex Community NHS Trust
in relation to the integrated provision of children’s services remains in place until 1% April
2015 and that the Director of Children’s Services is authorised to negotiate and agree

any variations or amendments considered necessary within the term of that Agreement;

(4) Authorises the Director of Children’s Services, after consultation with the Director of
Finance and Head of Law, to agree a revised contract between the Council and Sussex
Community NHS Trust for the provision of children’s community health services for a
period of one year from 1% April 2013 with the option to extend for a further year.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

62.1

62.2

62.3

62.4

62.5

62.6

Note: The special circumstances for non-compliance with Council Procedure Rule 3,
Access to Information Procedure Rule 5 and Section 100B(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 (items not considered unless the agenda is open to inspection at least five
days in advance of the meeting) are that details of the capital allocation for 2013/14
were not received from central government until after the report deadline.

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of Children’s Services
detailing the Capital Programme 2013/14 and was requested to allocate funding
available in the Capital programme under Structural Maintenance, Pupil Places and
Condition cost centres for 2013/2014. A report by the Director of Finance and
Resources, entitled Capital Resources and Capital Investment Programme for 2013/14
was received by Policy and Resources on 14™ February 2013 and Budget Council on
28™ February 2013.

On 1 March 2013, the Government had announced the capital allocations for Education.
The announcement included a one year allocation for maintenance funding for 2013/14
and a two year announcement for Basic Need covering 2013/14 and 2014/15. The
overall level of capital funding available for expenditure on school buildings from the
Government has increased from last year when comparing with the main allocations.
However last year the council were fortunate to benefit from additional basic need
allocations which are not likely to be available this year.

Funding was now allocated under three headings only; Structural maintenance (under
which £920,000 is available for expenditure on schools and other educational
establishments); Capital Maintenance Grant (under which £3,107,784 is available for
expenditure on improving the condition of the school estate); and Basic Need Funding
(under which £7,921,299 in total is available for expenditure on providing additional pupil
places for the 2013/14 and 2014/15 financial years). In addition to this a further
£1,000,000 has been included within the capital strategy to assist with new pupil places.
This related to forward funding from education resources in previous years to support
the Whitehawk co-location project.

Councillor Pissaridou referred to the proposed use of the Police Station Buildings in
Holland Road stating that from the available figure it appeared that the cost of
refurbishing the site could prove to be greater than the cost of providing a new build.
The Head of Capital Strategy stressed that this was not the case, also referring to the
lack of availability of suitable sites across the city.

Councillor Wealls referred to the proposed use of the Police Station buildings noting that
the Capital costs were not set out in the report querying whether these would come from
a separate budget. It was explained that the total costs for purchase of the site had not
been discussed in the public domain and that this matter was subject to continuing
negotiations.

Reference was also made to the potential impact on pupil places across the city in light
of the decision not to expand Stanford Infant School. It was explained that there would
be consequential pressures on the school places budget during the coming year and
that this information had not been available when the Council’s overall budget had been
set.



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

62.7

62.8

62.9

62.10

62.11

63.

63.1

63.2

63.3

The Head of Capital Strategy, responded in answer to questions that there although
there were sufficient school spaces available there would be pressures across the city,
the precise numbers and where this would occur would not be fully known until all of the
parental preference forms had been processed and places allocated, April .

In the wake of further discussions the legal adviser to the Committee cautioned that it
would not be appropriate for Members discuss use of particular sites any further, as to
do so, could impact adversely on the availability of any given site or compromise the
local authority’s ability to purchase it.

Ms Travers, Amaze referred to the fact that £150,000 had been spent on carrying out a
survey in relation to pupils special mobility needs. This figure seemed to be very high.
Head of Capital Strategy explained that this sum had been used to carry out a number
of detailed surveys across 15 schools.

Councillor Simson enquired whether it was necessary for the council to continue to take
condition surveys at schools in light of the fact that the government was now
undertaking the Property Data Survey Programme (PDSP) and that this was currently
under way. The Head of Capital Strategy explained that the PDSP would collect up to
date high level information on the school estate although PDSP’s were not viewed as a
direct replacement for the condition data collected by local authorities which was likely
to be more detailed. To ensure that the local authority had the best possible information
at its disposal in order to prioritise its yearly maintenance programme it was important
that it continued to collect the detailed information on its school estate which was
provided by the condition surveys.

RESOLVED - That Committee approve the allocation of funding as shown in
Appendices 2 and 3 to the report.

ADMISSIONS ARRANGEMENTS FOR BRIGHTON & HOVE SCHOOLS 2014/15

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director, Children’s Services setting
out the proposed school admission arrangements for the City’s schools for 2014/15.

The Head of Capital Strategy explained that each year local authorities must consult on
school admission arrangements and school admission numbers with community schools
and voluntary aided schools, neighbouring local authorities and with parents living in the
City. This process included the proposed admission priorities for community schools and
those proposed by the governing bodies of voluntary aided schools and those proposed
by voluntary aided schools and academies. This consultation took place approximately
18 months in advance of the school year in which pupils should be admitted under the
proposed arrangements. The consultation papers for the 2014/15 admission year for
Brighton and Hove were attached as an appendix to the report.

It was noted that the consultation process had to be concluded by 1 March 2013, with a
minimum of 8 weeks consultation time, that requirement had been fulfilled. The City
Council had to have reached its decisions and confirmed its admission arrangements for
2014/15 by 15 April 2013 in order to conform to the requirements of the School
Admissions Code.



2.2

2.3

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

63.4

63.5

63.6

63.7

63.8

63.9

Councillor Pissaridou enquired regarding the number of successful appeals in relation to
particular schools. She was particularly concerned at the potential impact of decisions
such as that to allow a number of additional pupils into Dorothy Stringer School which
the school then had to absorb. She was concerned about what restraints were placed
on Appeal Panel Members. It was agreed that information relating to the number of
successful appeals would be provided to Members separately.

Councillor Lepper also enquired regarding the training received by those sitting on
Appeals Panels. Under previous legislation elected Councillors had sat on such panels,
they had received in depth training and had taken their decision making role very
seriously, appeals had only been successful in exceptional circumstances.

The Legal Adviser to the Committee explained that Appeal Panel Members were
appointed and trained in line with statutory requirements and received regular and on-
going training. Their role was independent of the Local Education Authority as required
by legislation. The Democratic Services Team who clerked the Appeal Panels took a
pro-active role in ensuring that Appeal Panels were properly clerked and that Members
were properly trained and took proper advice when arriving at decisions. She was aware
that legal advice was sought throughout the process including during the course of
appeal hearings themselves if this was considered appropriate. The Legal Adviser also
confirmed that after the appeals Panel last year the way the Panel were appointed,
trained and advised was being examined and a report would be given on progress.

Councillor Gilbey enquired regarding the potential impact on Portslade Aldridge
Community College (PACA) if a number of potential pupils were to attend the new
King’'s School. The Head of Capital Strategy explained that Parents set out their
preferences on school admissions application forms and the LEA always sought to meet
their highest stated preference if it was able to do so.

A vote was taken and Members agreed to the recommendations set out below.

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL: The Committee recommends the following to

full Council for approval:-

(1) That the proposed school admission numbers set out in the consultation documents
be adopted for the admissions year 2014/15, with the exception ofStanford Infant School
which will remain at 90 rather than increasing to 120 as proposed;

(2)That the admission priorities for Community Schools set out in the Consultation documents
be adopted for all age groups;

(3) That the Council should review the final version of the Cardinal Newman Roman Catholic
Secondary School and King’s Church of England Free School admission arrangements (as
amended in light of the Diocesan response and parental and school responses) to decide
whether it should comment further;

(4) That the co-ordinated schemes of admission be approved; and



2.5

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

64.

64.1

64.2

64.3

64.4

64.5

(5) That the City boundary be retained as the relevant area for consultation for school
admissions.

SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of Children’s Services setting
out the Annual Special Needs (SEN) Performance for the academic year 2011/2012.
The report set out Special Educational Needs (SEN) Performance for the academic year
2011/2012. The analysis of SEN and disabilities across the City was largely based on
census information available for January 2012. The January 2013 census was still on-
going and national data would not be published until the autumn of 2013. However
where possible more recent internal data had been included to show any continuing
trends. Pupil performance data relating to SEN and disabilities was based on national
tests and public examinations for summer 2012.

This report updated the previous SEN Annual Report 2010/2011 with some significant
additions. Data had been included on the overlap between FSM and SEN and
disabilities to drew links between SEN and deprivation. Additionally in line with the focus
on ‘outcomes’ rather than ‘processes’ for children with SEN and disabilities , data had
been included on the performance of pupils with SEN and disabilities against national
thresholds for 2012.

Councillor Simson, stated that whilst it appeared “good news” that the number children
with statements across the city was falling, she hoped that this was not due to financial
constraints and that those children whose needs were such that they needed a
statement continued to receive them. The Lead Commissioner, Schools, Skills and
Learning confirmed that children requiring statements would continue to receive them,
however in line with the changes being made nationally, there would continue to be a
greater emphasis on early intervention which would be effected by use of a multi agency
approach and the drawing up of individual Education Care and Health Plans. In answer
to further questions it was confirmed that the number of children in residential
placements outside the city had fallen and that this had resulted in commensurate
savings.

Ms Travers, Amaze noted that £1.35m had been saved by reducing agency/out of city
placements and asked if 100% had been reinvested into mainstream local provision so
that these young people had been able to be accommodated within the city, she
requested a breakdown of what this money had been spent on. In view of the fact that
52% agency placements been used where no suitable local authority provision was
available to suit an individual child’s needs she enquired whether it was unlikely that the
council would continue to be able to save such sums in the future and it was confirmed
that was the case.

Councillor Pissaridou sought details of the number, if any of children from outside the
city who either had a residential placement within the city or attended special schools
within the city, also, where this related to those who were looked after children or
resided in children’s homes. The Lead Commissioner, Schools, Skills and Learning,
explained that this information fell under two separate sets of legislation and fell under
two different sets of legislation and that this would be looked into and that information
provided separately.

10



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

64.6

64.7

64.8

64.9

64.10

65.

65.1

Councillor Gilbey stated that it was her understanding that Mile Oak Primary School
used their Pupil Premium for SEN provision enquiring whether there was any correlation
between that and the number of children attending Hillside school. It was explained that
that the number of pupils with SEN across all schools varied year on year and that the
annual figures were adjusted accordingly.

Ms Travers, Amaze, stated that a number of parents had expressed concern regarding
the potential ramifications of the new arrangements. A Statement gave parents a degree
of reassurance as it carried with it specific entitlements, parents might not agree that a
reduction in the number of statements was a good thing. The Lead Commissioner,
Schools, Skills and Learning responded that as the statementing process was costly, it
was considered preferable to shift funding to early assistance services where this was
an option.

Councillor Wealls considered it was very important to seek to ensure that the
educational attainments of schools at Key Stage 2 also reflected the value added
element and indicated the broader curriculum that available beyond GCSE subjects.
The Lead Commissioner, Schools, Skills and Learning referred to the re-launch of
“Closing the Gap” to identify and seek to close gaps in provision. It was important to
ensure that schools were directing their pupil premium into the right places and to look
at broadening their curriculum offer. Ms Travers, Amaze asked if the available data
could be broken down and provided by school and disability type.

Councillor Powell referred to the transition between secondary and post sixteen
education including foundation learning and to the difficulties in finding placements for
young people with SEN on learning programmes. It would be useful if this information
could be provided

RESOLVED - That the Committee agree to the publication of the final draft of the new
SEN Annual Report 2011/12.

ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL
The following items needed to forward to Full Council for decision:

Item 59 — Expanding the Premises of Aldrington Church of England School — Final
Decision; and

Item 63 — Admission Arrangements for Brighton & Hove Schools 2014/15.

The meeting concluded at 5.40pm

Signed Chair

11



CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE 11 MARCH 2013

Dated this day of

12



CHILDREN & YOUNG Agenda Item 7
PEOPLE COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Constitutional Changes

Date of Meeting: 3 June 2013

Report of: Monitoring Officer

Contact Officer: Name: Penny Jennings Tel: 29-1065

E-mail: penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Wards Affected: All

For General Release

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

3.1

3.2

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT

On 17™ May 2012 the Council adopted a new constitution based on a
committee system of governance. This was the earliest date that the Council
could move to a committee system following the implementation of the
Localism Act 2011 and Brighton & Hove was one of the first authorities to
move to the new system of governance.

This report sets out recommendations for amendments to the constitution in
relation to the Children and Young People Committee which were agreed at
the meeting of Full Council held on 28 May 2013. These took into account
how the new arrangements have worked in practice since their
implementation and feedback from Members and Officers.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Committee’s terms of reference as set out in this report, be noted.

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

When Brighton & Hove City Council adopted its new constitution in May 2012,
it was recognised that the new arrangements would need to be kept under
review and that, once the system had been in place for a time, it would be
good practice to consider any further changes that could be made to improve
its effectiveness.

The design principles that were agreed for the development of the new
constitution included:-

(1) Openness and Transparency

(2) Accountability

(3) Efficiency

(4) Soundness

(5) Affordability

(6) Best practice from the cabinet system

13



3.3

3.4

3.5.

3.6

3.7

3.8.

3.9.

(7) Forward Looking

After approximately 9 months in operation, Members and Officers had the
opportunity to assess what had worked well in the new system and where
changes could be made to improve the arrangements in line with the original
design principles. During that period, the Council’s new Chief Executive had
also joined the Council and a new senior officer structure had been approved.

Officers worked with the Leaders Group to draw together key issues and
proposals. Council agreed to the changes set out below in relation to the
Children & Young People Committee:

Matters reserved to full council

School admissions arrangements (defined as comprising the council's
admissions policy as represented by the admissions booklet for primary and
secondary schools and the School Organisation Plan) were previously
reserved to full Council. Any organisational changes to individual schools
proposed under the school organisation legislation are subject to a number of
statutory stages: (i) consultation, (ii) the publication of statutory notices, (iii) a
period for making representations, and (iv) a final decision. At present the first
three stages are considered at the Children and Young People Committee
with the final decision reserved to full Council. This has caused problems with
timetabling as there is a statutory requirement under the Education and
Inspections Act 2006 and associated Regulations that the final decision must
be taken within two months of the end of the representation period.

It was therefore agreed to adopt revised arrangements that reserve to full
Council the most strategic aspects of school admissions while allowing the
Children & Young People Committee to deal with the annual admissions

policy.

This means the following functions will be dealt with by the Children & Young
People Committee:

(1) The annual consultation and determination of school admission
arrangements under section 88 of the School Standards and Framework
Act 1998, and

(2) Any proposals under the Education and Inspections Act 2006 (the
school organisation legislation) concerning the expansion, alteration, or
change in age range of a maintained school.

The following functions will be reserved to full Council:
(1) Approval of the school organisation plan; and
(2) Approval of any changes to catchment areas.

Given its strategic importance and the challenges facing the Council in
supporting the local economy, it is recommended that the Council’s Economic
Strategy be added to the list of policies and strategies reserved for approval
by Council. There is also a legal requirement under the Localism Act 2011 for

14



41

5.2

5.3

5.4

9.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

the Statement of Pay Policy to be approved by full Council. It is therefore
proposed to add this to the list of functions reserved to full Council in the
constitution.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. It is
expected that the overall effect of the introduction of the new constitution will
be cost neutral.

Finance Officer Consulted: Name Anne Silley Date: 20/05/13

Leqgal Implications:

The Council's constitution complies with the requirements of the Localism Act
2011, the Local Government Act 2000, the Local Authorities (Constitutions)
Direction and relevant guidance.

There are no adverse Human Rights Act implications arising from this report.
Lawyer Consulted: Natasha Watson Date: 20/05/13

Equalities Implications:

There are no equalities implications arising from the report.

Sustainability Implications:

There are no sustainability implications arising from the report.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

There are no crime & disorder implications arising from the report.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

The provision of this pay policy statement provides greater transparency to
enable the public to understand and challenge local decisions of pay and
reward of the council’s workforce.

Public Health Implications:

There are no pubic health implications arising from the report.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

There are no corporate or city wide implications arising from the report..

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

15



6.1 There are none.
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 The recommendations are being put forward in line with the requirements of
the constitution.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. There are none.
2

Background Documents
1. The Constitution

16



17



18



Amended Scheme of Delegation to Committees, Sub-Committees
and Advisory Bodies
APPENDIX ONE

DELEGATIONS TO COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES — AMENDED SECTIONS
11/09/12

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE COMMITTEE
Explanatory Note

3/11/2013This Committee is responsible for education, children’s health and
social care

services, public health relating to children and young people, including
services to young people up to the age of 19, and exercises the council’s
functions as Local Education Authority. Most of these services are delivered
jointly with the Health Service and, to reflect this, the Committee is also the
Council’s Children and Young People’s Trust Board for the purposes of the
Children Act 2004.

Delegated Functions

To exercise the functions of the Council:

1. as a Local Education Authority under any enactment relating to
education, youth services and the employment of children, including
the annual consultation and determination of school admission
arrangements under s88 of the Schools Standards and Frameworks
Act 1998;

2. in relation to educational charities;

3. in partnership arrangements with other bodies connected with the

delivery of education;
2:51:08 PM

4. in relation to social services for children and young people;

5. in partnership arrangements with other bodies connected with the
delivery of services for children, young people and families;

6. regarding families in connection with the functions of the Committee set
out above or where there are no other arrangements made under this
scheme of delegation;

7. under or in connection with the children and young people’s
partnership arrangements made with health bodies pursuant to section
75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and section 10 of the
Children Act 2004 (“the section 75 Agreements”);

8. in relation to children’s public health including but not limited to:

- sexual health
- physical activity, obesity, tobacco control programme

19



- prevention and early detection

- immunisation

- mental health

- NHS health check and workplace health programmes
- dental health

- social exclusion

- seasonal mortality;

9. in relation to those aspects of children’s public health which transfer to
the council under the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

Joint working with the Clinical Commissioning Group

1. The Committee may meet concurrently with the Clinical Commissioning
Group as necessary in order to discuss and develop jointly

commissioned services in relation to children and young people.

NOTE

(a) All the above functions shall NOTE

(a) All the above functions shall be exercised subject to any

limitations in the section 75 Agreements.

(b) Policy issues which are relevant both to this Committee and the

Adult Care & Health Committee may be considered by either of

those Committees or by the Policy & Resources Committee. be exercised
subject to any

limitations in the section 75 Agreements.

20



CHILDREN & YOUNG Agenda Item 8
PEOPLE COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Closing the Gap in Educational Achievement for
Vulnerable Groups in the City

Date of Meeting: Children & Young People’s Committee Meeting 3 June
2013

Report of: Interim Director, Children’s Services

Contact Officer: Hilary Ferries — Head of

Name: Tel: 293738

Standards and Achievement
Email: hilary.ferries@brighton-hove.gov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1 A full analysis of the gaps in achievement for all groups of pupils can be found in the
Standards Report. The data shows that the achievement gap between pupils living in
disadvantage widens from KS1 to KS2 and again from KS2 to KS4. This report provides
information on the gaps in achievement between those pupils who have been registered
for free school meals (FSM) at any point in the last six years: known as ‘Ever 6 FSM’)
with FSM and those who have not been registered for FSM in 2011/12, from Key Stage
1 — 4, those pupils who have been identified as having special educational needs or
disability (SEND) and Children who are Looked After (CLA) and outlines the LA
Strategy to address this.

1.2 Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector, Sir Michael Wilshaw, has recently made it clear that,
although schools are being given increased levels of autonomy, Local Authorities have
a direct responsibility for the standards achieved in all of the schools in their area,
including academies. This is also in relation to the progress made by vulnerable groups.
He has written to headteachers to inform them that Ofsted will be making judgements
about the impact schools are making through the use of the Pupil Premium on ‘Closing
the Gap in educational achievement’ for vulnerable groups.

1.3 Ofsted are also placing an increased emphasis on Governor’s involvement in the
monitoring of the progress of pupils, particularly those from vulnerable groups. There is
a clear expectation of Governors being seen to influence the decision making
surrounding the use of the Pupil Premium.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That the Committee considers and comments upon the Closing the Gap in
educational achievement Strategy. This will be launched and discussed in July
2013, alongside the School Improvement Strategy. The Strategy for Closing the
Gap in educational achievement includes:

o Evaluation of national research: (e.g. Sutton Trust).

21



Evaluation the national evidence into most effective interventions.

Evaluation of the local evidence: e.g. Schools data and the Schools Supporting
Schools projects — what is working well?

The identification, through the data analysis of schools where practice is strong
and schools where the gap is particularly wide.

Universal offer of data analysis, advice and guidance (e.g. Intervention health
check / governor support and training).

Supporting partnership / Cluster data analysis — so that every school knows its
pupils.

Linking schools with similar profiles together to share practice.

Investigation of different evidence based programmes such as: ‘Achievement for
All’ or ‘Success for All' and Working with Others to see if they would support
schools in the city.

Continue to promote and facilitate the Every Child a Reader and the Every Child
Counts programmes with schools along with their associated initiatives.

Extend the ‘Every Child a Reader’ programme, in a number of target schools, to
encompass a broader strategy for addressing achievement in literacy, particularly
in writing.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY

EVENTS:

3.1 The Annual Report — ‘How are we Doing? Standards and Achievement in
Brighton and Hove Schools, How are we doing - shows that closing the gap in
educational achievement for vulnerable groups in the city is one of our key
priorities. This has also been identified by Ofsted as a regional and a national
issue.

4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

4.1  This report is being consulted on with school leaders and school staff and a
launch is planned for July 2013. It reflects the way in which the authority,
schools, colleges and other settings engage with each other to secure improved
standards and achievement.

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:
5.1  Schools are funded within the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and any resource

implications from the drive to raise standards and close the attainment gap will
have to be met from within each school’s individual budget. Support may be
available from central DSG funds to aid the action plan of any school, or group of
schools, but any support given will be from within existing budgets.

Schools also receive Pupil Premium funding which for 2012/13 was £623 per
eligible pupil and totalled £4.4m and for 2013/14 will be £900 per eligible pupil
and is estimated to be £6.8m and this funding must use to close the attainment

gap

22



5.2

Finance Officer Consulted: Andy Moore Date: 26/04/13

Legal Implications:

Local Authorities have a statutory duty under section 13A of the Education Act
1996 to ensure that their functions relating to the provision of education are
exercised with a view to promoting high standards. This report informs the
Committee as to how the Authority is seeking to fulfil this duty via the launch of
the Closing the Gap in educational achievement strategy.

Lawyer Consulted: Serena Kynaston Date: 01/05/2013

Equalities Implications:

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

There has been no Equality Impact Assessment made in relation to this report.
The report highlights some of the differences in achievement between children
and young people who are disadvantaged or in vulnerable groups, the
improvements that have been made in narrowing the gaps in achievement for
these groups and the continuing priority that should be given to raising the
achievement of these children and young people, for example through the use of
the Pupil Premium.

Sustainability Implications:

None

Crime & Disorder Implications:

Improving the experience that children and young people have at school and
college and helping them to achieve their full potential is likely to equip them with
the skills and knowledge to secure employment and play a positive part in
society.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

No detailed risk assessment has been carried out in relation to this report.
However, the risks to personal, community and civic development and well being
if the city wide education service does not thrive and secure positive outcomes
for children and young people are clear, and the steps that are being taken,
described in this report, to secure improvement represent a strong commitment
to addressing these risks.

Public Health Implications:

The Director of Public Health has previously identified (in his 2011 Report) the
implications for public health and resilience if children and young people do not
benefit from a high quality education. These implications continue to be
important, and underline the importance of the actions being taken to improve
standards and achievement by the schools, colleges and other settings in the city
and by the authority.

23



Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.8 Standards and achievement in the city’s education service have clear
implications for city wide priorities including reducing inequality, developing
employment and skills, improving public health and reducing crime and disorder,
and these are outlined in this report.

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):
6.1  This report does not require the consideration of alternative options.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1. Closing the Gap in educational achievement - the Strategy for Brighton and Hove

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Local Authorities have a statutory duty under section 13A of the Education Act
1996 to ensure that their functions relating to the provision of education are
exercised with a view to promoting high standards. This report informs the
Committee as to how the Authority is seeking to fulfil this duty, and invites the
Committee to comment.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
1. Closing the Gap in Educational Achievement for Vulnerable Groups in the City — draft
for consultation - May 2013

2. How are we Doing? Standards and Achievement in Brighton and Hove Schools
Documents in Members’ Rooms

None
Background Documents

None

24



Brighton and Hove City Council - Learning and Partnership Team

Closing the Gap in Educational Achievement for Vulnerable Groups in
the City — draft for consultation - May 2013

1. Introduction

This strategy outlines Brighton and Hove’s vision, priorities and expectations in relation to closing
the gap in educational achievement for vulnerable children and young people in the city. It builds
upon the success of schools in raising attainment and progress and is ambitious for the future.

Closing the Gap is a moral imperative. We believe that through educational success vulnerable
children and young people will maximise their life chances and secure their future economic well
being. We are committed to partnership working and believe that everyone has a part to play in
addressing this most serious issue.

2. Links to the Corporate Plan and other strategies

This strategy links to the City’s Corporate Plan 2011-2015; the key priority of this plan is to reduce
inequality, ensuring that children and young people have the best start in life through access to
personalised high quality education:

‘We want to make sure that all of our children and young people have the best possible start in
life, so that everyone has the opportunity to fulfil their potential, whatever that might be, and to be
happy, healthy and safe’. This means making sure that all children and young people in the city
have access to high quality education that will provide them with the knowledge and skills to
secure employment and be active and responsible citizens. We will focus on raising overall
attainment and narrowing the gap between the lowest and highest performing pupils.’

Brighton and Hove Corporate Plan 2011-2015

In Brighton and Hove we have recently launched our Special Education Needs Partnership
Strategy, reviewed our School Improvement Strategy and are developing an Early Help Strategy.
This Strategy comes from the highlighting, in these documents, of the importance of closing the
achievement gap.

3. Vision for Education

Our vision was devised by the Learning Partnership with contributions from learning organisations
across the city. It is shared by all and interpreted by each phase and school to meet the needs of
the learners. It underpins everything we do.

A 21°' Century Vision for Learning in Brighton & Hove

Our provision will ensure a coherent and inclusive experience that makes learning personalised,
irresistible, engaging and enjoyable. To maximise the potential of every learner, each must
thrive from relevant, motivating and exciting experiences that draw upon the uniqueness of our
vibrant city by the sea.

25



We will encourage all to become confident, flexible, resilient and capable life-long learners and
critical and reflective thinkers, empowered with essential knowledge, life skills, dispositions and
technological capability necessary to participate as responsible citizens in the 21 century.

Together we:

» Are passionately committed to changing learners’ lives and transforming their futures

» Believe that we have a collective responsibility for all learners in the City, not just those in
our own organisations

» Believe that we are stronger together and can achieve more through joint practice
development and partnership for the benefit of every learner in Brighton and Hove

» Pledge to lead our organisations collaboratively to achieve outstanding outcomes for all

4. Rationale for “Closing the Gap’

Each year the Standards and Achievement Team carries out an extensive data analysis and
examines the performance of the different groups of pupils in the City. The data analysis shows
that the most significant gaps in performance are those between the performance of children and
young people eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) and their more advantaged peers, between
those children and young people identified as having special educational needs or disability
(SEND) and their peers and for those children who are looked after (LAC/ CiC). These gaps
widen as the young people move through our school system (see appendices). The impact of
large numbers of pupils, particularly pupils with FSM not achieving 5 GCSE’s A* to C with English
and Maths at the end of Key Stage 4, not only has implications for the economy of the city, but
also has an impact on the quality of opportunity.

5. Partnership working and the role of the LA

Brighton and Hove is committed to working in partnership to ‘Close the Gap’ in educational
achievement for vulnerable groups. To achieve this we will work collaboratively with school and
all partners in the city.

Although schools are being given increased levels of autonomy, it is still the responsibility of the
LA to ensure that there is robust self evaluation by the management of the school, particularly in
relation to pupil progress. A key task for this LA is to further develop its work to ensure schools
are effectively addressing the needs of their vulnerable groups of pupils, and that good progress
is made towards ‘Closing the Gap’ in educational achievement in all schools.

The Ofsted Chief Inspector, Sir Michael Wilshaw, has recently made it clear that Local Authorities
still retain a direct responsibility for the standards achieved in all of the schools in their area,
including academies; this responsibility is particularly in relation to the progress made by
vulnerable groups. He has also told Headteachers, that increasing attention will be given, during
the course of school inspections, to the impact schools are making through the use of the Pupil
Premium on the issue of ‘Closing the Gap’ for the disadvantaged. It has also been indicated by
senior Her Majesty’s Inspectors (HMI) that there will be an increasing focus on this issue, not just
at a school level, but when considering the relative performance of local authorities in addressing
the issue of the progress of disadvantaged pupils in their area.

26



It has been calculated that there is a ‘cross-over’ of around 32% of pupils with Special
Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND) who are also entitled to free school meals. This is the
case in Brighton and Hove (see appendices). Ofsted are intending to give increased attention to
the monitoring of a school’s impact these pupils’ progress, and particularly those who belong to
the ‘school action’ category.

In its role as champion of children and families, the LA can facilitate, broker and commission
support. We have a small intervention team with a focus on closing the achievement gap and they
offer support and challenge for schools in this area.

7. The Provision of Pupil Premium

Pupil Premium is intended to assist schools with addressing the gap in achievement between
disadvantaged pupils and their peers; for the purposes of identification, disadvantage is identified
with registration for Free School Meals (FSM). Although an imprecise indicator, FSM registration
remains the most accessible way to identify disadvantage in schools.

From April 2013 the premium stands at £900 for each FSM pupil, registered during the last six
school years, and this is likely to rise to, at least, £1000 by the final year of this parliament.
Additionally, there is funding available of £500 for each FSM pupil to support Year 6/7 Summer
School Transition Programmes, and a further £500 ‘catch-up’ payment, paid for Year 7 pupils who
did not achieve Level 4 at the end of the Primary phase; this produces a potential £1900 for each
underachieving FSM pupil at the key point of the Primary / Secondary school transition.

Best Practice

Where schools have been most effective in raising the progress of vulnerable pupils, and have
closed the gap, there are eight factors which are frequently observed:

o the deliberate and systematic involvement of pupils, at all stages, with taking
responsibility for their own progress and learning;

o the identification of strategies that are right for the particular setting and needs of the
pupils - all of the selected interventions being subject to a rigorous process of
cost/benefit analysis;

o the careful selection, training and support of intervention staff, recognising that
intervention requires a different range of skills to that of class teaching;

o suitable assessment processes that fully and adequately inform intervention, enabling
progress to be monitored across a range of learning need;

o appropriate management structures, quality assurance and data collection;

o the fullest integration of intervention staff into the work of the whole school -
particularly that of the class/subject teacher;

o First Quality Teaching in the classroom, setting intervention into a context in which the
progress secured can be developed and sustained;

o effective leadership on the issue of intervention from the school’s senior management
team;

These are all key elements in the ‘EveryChild’ intervention programmes (Every Child a Reader
(ECaR) and Every Child Counts (ECC), which have been highly successful when introduced into
the work of the city’s schools. Without any one of these elements the intervention provided is
likely to be less than effective.

27



6. Action planning
The Steering Group will produce a full action plan. Actions will include:

Formation of a group of school leaders and LA officers to develop and review the strategy

Evaluation and dissemination of national research: (e.g. Sutton Trust).

Evaluation and dissemination of the national evidence into most effective interventions.

Evaluation and dissemination of the local evidence: e.g. Schools data and the Schools

Supporting Schools projects — what is working well?

The identification, through the data analysis of schools where practice is strong and

schools where the gap is particularly wide.

o Universal offer of data analysis, advice and guidance (e.g. Intervention health check /
governor support and training).

o Supporting partnership / Cluster data analysis — so that every school knows its pupils.

o Linking schools with similar profiles together to share practice.

o Investigation of different evidence based programmes such as: ‘Achievement for All’ or
‘Success for All’ and ‘Working with Others’ to see if they would be the right support for
schools in the city.

o Continue to promote and facilitate the Every Child a Reader and the Every Child Counts
programmes with schools along with their associated initiatives.

o Extend the ‘Every Child a Reader’ programme, in a number of target schools, to
encompass a broader strategy for addressing achievement in literacy, particularly in
writing.

o Promote virtual learning opportunities where these have been shown to make a

successful contribution

O O O O

(0]

7. Expected Outcomes

Schools and other educational settings will increasingly be held to account for the achievement of
their most vulnerable groups through the DfE and Ofsted inspections. In addition, schools have to
report to governors on the use and impact of the Pupil Premium funding.

We will identify key milestone targets to support and challenge schools to accelerate achievement
of the most vulnerable, the milestones seek to raise aspiration and ensure that the gaps in
educational achievement are in line and then below the national average at all key assessment
points.

28



APPENDIX 1

Free School Meal Eligibility

Census Brighton & Hove Free
School Meals Eligibility % Trend

19.0
18.0
/\%
17.0 ~ Totals
Linear (Totals)
16.0 7
15.0

Jan 07
Jan 08
Jan 09
Jan-10
Jan-11

Jan-12
Jan-13

16.8%* of Brighton and Hove pupils from years R to 11 (aged 4 to 16) have applied for and have
been deemed eligible for free school meals. The numbers of FSM eligible pupils has increased

since 2012 but due to an increase in pupils from year R to 11 in 2013 (1158) the percentage of
FSM eligible has decreased.

There is a wide variation across settings, the lowest % of FSM at 2.8% and the highest at 65.1%.

Across the school types, the breakdown of Brighton and Hove FSM is made up as follows:

§ Primary** 17.1% (National** 19.3%)

§ Secondary* 15.2% (National* 16.0%)

§ Special 37.9% (National 37.5%)
§ PRU 31.0% (National 36.7%)

Census Brighton & Hove Free
School Meals Eligibility % Trend

40.0

a5 - \/—\_—/
30.0
250 —Primary
Secondary

20.0

e Special
15.0 -
10.0

Jan 07
Jan 08
Jan 09
Jan-10
Jan-11
Jan-12
Jan-13

29



APPENDIX 2

Brighton & Hove LA

Comparative Graphs of Achievement Data: Free School Meals/Non Free School Meals

Pupils 2011 — 2012:

% Percentage Pass

End of Key Stage 1 (Infant) National Benchmark Level 2

READING
100 I
80 20.5%GAP
60 14% GAP
40
20
0
Nationd Non-  Nationd FSM BHCC Non- BHCC FSM
FSM FSM
OAchieving L2 i FSM Gap
End of Key Stage 1 (Infant) National Benchmark Level 2
WRITING
o | 1 |
%01 16% GAP 26.3%GAP
840 .
g 30
B 20
X 10
0
Nationd Non- Néaional FSM BHCC Non-FSMV BHCC FM
Fam
\ DAchieving L2 i2FSM Gap
End of Key Stage 2 (Junior) National Benchmark: Level 4
English & Maths
70
g @ T | L
5 50 17%GAP 23%GAP |
& 40 i f 3
g 30
S 20
< 10
0
National Non- National FSM  BHCC Non-FsMv BHCC Fav
FSM

OAchieving L4 i FSM Gap

30



% Percentage Pass

70
60
50
40
30
20
10

End of Key Stage 4 (Year 11) National Benchmark: 5
GCSEsA*-C English & Maths

l

| "
26.4% GAP
)
.

34.5%GAP

National Non- National FaVI

Fav

BHCC Non-FaMv

BHCC Fav

O Achieving 5 GCSEs A*-C English & Maths i FSM Gap

31



APPENDIX 3

Brighton & Hove LA: Summary of the Comparative Achievement Data: Free School
Meals/Non Free School Meals Pupils, 2011 — 2012:

Key Stage 1

At the end of Key Stage 1 (Infant) the city’s children out perform their peers nationally in Reading,
Writing and Mathematics. There is, however, a significant gap in all three subject areas between
the city’s disadvantaged pupils (FSM) and their peers.

While the city’s FSM pupils out perform their peers (FSM) nationally in Reading and Maths there
is a troubling gap that has opened up in writing. It is worth noting, in this context, that the city has
effective intervention programmes in reading and mathematics, at Key Stage 1 (ECaR and ECC),
but nothing which addresses underachievement in writing at this stage.

The FSM gap at the end of key Stage 1 (Infant, achieving Level 2) was:
Reading B&H 20.5% National 14%
Writing B&H 26.3% National 16%
Maths B&H 14.9%  National 11%

-there were six schools where the FSM pupils did as well, or better than the non Free school
meals pupils in all three areas of the curriculum and had, therefore, closed the gap;

-there were many schools where the FSM pupils had done as well or better than non FSM pupils
in one or more of these areas of the curriculum;

69.5% of FSM pupils reach the benchmark in reading. National 64%
59.9% of FSM pupils reach the benchmark in writing. National 56%
79.6% of FSM pupils reach the benchmark in mathematics. National 68%

16% of pupils at the end of Key Stage 1 were eligible for free school meals;

Key Stage 2
There is an overall fall in the achievement of the city’s disadvantaged pupils (FSM) from the end
of Key Stage 1 (Infant) to the end of Key Stage 2 (Junior)

60% of Brighton and Hove Non FSM pupils reached the Level 4 benchmark at the end of KS2
compared to 58% nationally

37% of all FSM pupils achieved Level 4 SATS at the end of Key Stage 2

The gap at the end of Key Stage 2 (Primary, achieving Level 4 SATS) was widened to 23%;
nationally the gap was -17% giving a -5% difference between the city’s FSM pupils and their FSM
peers nationally

17.4% of pupils in Brighton and Hove at the end of Key Stage 2 were eligible for Free School
Meals nationally;

32



- there were twenty four schools where the FSM pupils reached or exceeded the national end of
Key Stage floor standard (60% of pupils achieving Level 4 in English and Mathematics);

- There were eight schools where the FSM pupils equalled or exceeded the percentage of all
pupils achieving Level 4;

Key Stage 4
The gap at the end of Key Stage 4 (Secondary 2011/12, achieving 5 GCSEs A* - C with English
and mathematics) had widened to -34.5% from -23% at the end of Key Stage 2 (Year 6).

Nationally the gap at the end of Key Stage 4 was 36.4% giving a gap of — 8.1% between Brighton
and Hove’s FSM pupils and their FSM peers nationally.

27.1% of FSM pupils reach the GCSE benchmark at the end of Key Stage 4 36.4% nationally

61.6 % of all non FSM pupils achieved the benchmark in Brighton and Hove compared to 62.8
nationally

14.7% of pupils at the end of Key Stage 4 were eligible for Free School Meals;

-there were two schools where the FSM pupils reached or exceeded the national end of Key
Stage 4 benchmark (40% of pupils achieving 5 GCSEs A* - C with English and mathematics);

-there were no schools where the FSM pupils equalled or exceeded the percentage of all pupils
achieving 5 GCSEs A* - C with English and mathematics;

33



APPENDIX 4

Free School Meal and School Action Plus (33.5%)

2738
School
Action

Plus

Free School Meal and Statement of Special Educational Need (36.5%)

904
Satement
SN

10



Free School Meals and Behaviour, Emotional and Social Difficulties
(47.7%)

734
BED

Free School Meals and Moderate Learning Difficulties (40.1%)

337
MLD

Free School Meal and Autistic Spectrum Disorder (21.9%)

251
AD

Free School and Special Educational N eed at Special School (41.0%)*

412
SN
Special
School

* refers to main or sole registration at a special school

11



APPENDIX 5

1, Data on the performance of children and young people with SEN Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Gap In atizinment for SEN pupiis)
Early Years Current Performance
Results 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Results 2007 2008 2009 2010° 2011 012
35H 35.0% 35.9% 32.3% IT.T% 27.8% 27.0% 8&H SEN 41% 4% 43% 3% 37% 13%
Trget 30.9% 1EA% 28.3% 27.8% [ KA B&H Non SEN BE% 20% 8% 93% a% 2%
Stat Mesghbowrs | 35.0% 34.0% 32.0% 30.7% 30E% 30.0% 8&H Gap 45% 4% 45% 50% 50% 45%
Englared 373% 35.6% 33.9% 32.T% 31.3% 301%
There & 2 positwe and imgrowing trend at K51 in Reading and maths. in wiiting, owtoomes for
puglls with SEN wera more mibed Year Trend Data and Targets
i Results 2007 2008 2009 2010° 2011 012
88H Gap 45% 4E% 5% 0% S0% 43%
Key Stage 1 Reading Level 2+ {(SEN gap) = Gap 433% AR 50% 52% 55% 51%
land Gaj 52% 4% 53% 53% 50% 45%
Results 2008 2008 2010 2011 2012 fnglamd &3p
B&H Gap 42 4% 43.4% 433% 40.6% 35.5% There s 3 pasitve and improving trend at Key Stage 2
| N Gap Ll SZH% s i 4023 Key Stage 4 % 5+ A*-C GCSE {induding Maths and English) and SEN
England Gap 44.72% 43.1% 42 5% 43.0% A0 T% nE 2 e
Current Performance
Key Stage 1 Witing Level 2+ {SEM gapl Results 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011
Results 008 005 200 201 2012 BEH SEN 5% B% 15% 1% 13% 2% 19%
8aH Gap 42 4% 44.7% 16.6% 44 7% 45 5% BEHnonSEN  |51% 52% 55% SE% E2% 56% 6%
S Ep 1A% o TR FrErs FTECY 8&H SEN cohort 454 560 572 £49 €30 SES
England Gap E0E% 48 53 48 5% 43,03 46 0% B&H MNon SEM 1850 1778 177 fral] 1632 1628
cohort

Key Stage 1 Maths Lewel 2+ (SEN Gap)
Published Trend Data

Results 2008 2009 2010 201 012

B&H Gap 174% 27.5% 0.0% 147% 234% Results 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 am

N Gap 31.8% 311% 310% 319% IN% B&H Gap A6% A4% A2% 4% 43% A4% 1%

England Gap 2% 325% 31E% % Nk SN Gap 4% 45% 4T% a7% 49% _ |50% S0%.
[England Gap [43% 24% 45% 5% % [48% |47

After a number of years of contnuous Enprovemnent In terms of the number of pupils with SEN
gaining 5+4*-C grades Induding English and maths, there was a fall of 3 percentage painis from
2011 f0 2012 and a widaning of the achievement gap by 7 pementage paints 3o a level above both
tha national and statistical nelghbour averages. & key LA priocity k%o work with secondary schoots
o improve outcoenes for puplls with SEND and narrow achievermant gaps.

w
»



LE

13



38



CHILDEN & YOUNG Agenda Item 9
PEOPLE COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Brighton & Hove City Council: Annual Standards and
School Performance Report 2011/12 — validated data
Date of Meeting: Children & Young People’s Committee Meeting 3 June
2013
Report of: Interim Director, Children’s Services
Contact Officer: . Hilary Ferries, Head of )
Name: Standards and Achievement Tel: 29-3738
Email: Hilary.ferries@brighton-hove.qov.uk
Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE.

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

3.1

3.2

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

The local authority has a statutory duty to promote high standards in schools and
to intervene where there are significant concerns about children’s progress or
their well being. The new Ofsted framework states clearly Ofsted’s expectation
that the local authority will know well the attainment and progress being made in
schools in its area

This is the updated report which provides information on the standards achieved
in 2011/12, from Early Years to Key Stage 5 using the validated data and
performance tables

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Committee accepts the updated report about standards achieved in
Brighton & Hove schools, colleges and settings in 2011/12

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

Appendices 1 and 2 to this report contain an analysis of standards and
achievement in schools, colleges and settings in the city, based on 2011 results
at the end of each Key Stage using the validated data. The report also identifies
the key priorities for the service and for the Standards and Achievement Team,
and the ways in which all partners are working together to drive up standards still
further and achieve excellence.

The analysis is divided into three sections:
* an Executive Summary which gives the broad overall picture of standards and
achievement in the city

* adetailed report of standards and achievement in each Key Stage
» tables and charts (in Appendix 2) that show the attainment under key areas

39



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The report concludes that, looking ahead, the priorities for Brighton & Hove
schools are to:

* raise standards in secondary schools so that GCSE attainment is in the upper
quartile of statistical neighbours and at least 80% of teaching is good or
outstanding

» focus on writing and maths in KS1 and progress from KS1 to KS2

» raise standards in KS2 so they are above national average and statistical
neighbours

» close the gaps between vulnerable groups of pupils to be in line with or above
national averages

In the Early Years children in Brighton & Hove continue to achieve much higher
than the national outcomes for all pupils, both in terms of attainment against the
Early Years and Foundation Stage Profile and in terms of the gap between
disadvantaged and other children. This high achievement is a result of the high
quality of provision that our children can now access across the city. 86% of
early years settings are rated as good or outstanding compared to 78% nationally
and 33% of these are outstanding compared to 14% nationally.

At Key Stage 1, standards overall remain in line with the national average in
reading and writing and slightly above the national average in maths. There have
been small gains in all three areas this year compared with 2011. We expect
improvements in reading and maths to continue, as the significant investment in
the Every Child a Reader and Every Child Counts programmes for identified
children in targeted schools has had a measurable impact on performance in
literacy and mathematics for low attaining pupils. The percentage of pupils with
SEN reaching the expected Level 2 at the end of Year 2 has increased and
attainment gaps have narrowed in reading and mathematics, although slightly
widened in writing. However, not all groups have made the same rate of
improvement and some attainment gaps have widened.

At Key Stage 2, there were strong improvements in KS2 test scores in Brighton &
Hove schools. There were also strong improvements in the number of pupils
making two levels of progress from KS1, but these figures remain below the
national averages. The percentage of pupils that attained at least Level 4 in both
English and maths improved by 6% points from 2011, from 73% to 79%, which is
the highest level ever achieved by Brighton & Hove schools and in line with the
national average. The results for Level 5 were even better, improving by 13.3%
and 8.8% respectively. In addition, 3.2% of children achieved Level 6 in maths.
The proportion of primary schools in Brighton & Hove judged to be good or better
rose from 71% to 73% from January 2012 to July 2012. A third of Brighton and
Hove primary schools were judged as outstanding in their most recent inspection.

At Key Stage 3, there was some improvement in English, but in the other core
subjects of Maths and Science achievement was broadly similar to 2011.
Progress in ‘closing the gap’ was variable in relation to the performance of boys
and girls, and those eligible for free school meals. However, there continues to
be good progress in closing the gap for all three core subjects for students with
SEN.

40



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

41

5.1

At Key Stage 4, the trend of improvement since 2009 continued, with a city wide
improvement of 3.6 percentage points to 56.4% of students. Within this, there
were some strong improvements at individual schools, while in some results
were less good than expected. One school, PACA, was below the DfE’s floor
standard of 40% achieving five or more A* - C grades including English and
Maths (increased from 35% in 2011).

At Key Stage 5, all three colleges recorded very good success rates, and they
continue to be placed among the top performing colleges of their type in England.
Around 80% of Brighton & Hove 16 — 18 year olds who are in learning attend one
of the three colleges. Two of the four established sixth forms achieved improved
results at A level, while the other two achieved broadly similar results to those in
2011. There were some encouraging increases in the number of high grade
passes.

The local authority continues to work with and support schools in securing
improved outcomes for all their pupils. In the Early Years and primary phases,
the authority continues to provide packages of support to individual schools, the
level of support being determined by a systematic and agreed assessment of
need. The authority also works closely with the Teaching School Alliance led by
Westdene Primary School, providing or supporting a range of training and
development programmes through the framework of the Teaching School.

In the secondary phase, the authority has delegated the main part of its school
improvement resources, including seconded staff, to the Secondary Schools
Partnership (SSP) of the nine secondary schools and academies. The SSP has
developed a wide ranging Raising Attainment Plan, which sets out how the
schools and academies work together to secure city wide improvement. The
Compact agreed between the local authority and the schools provides the
mechanism by which the authority is sufficiently informed of attainment, progress
and key developments in the secondary sector, and able to identify areas where
additional support may need to be brokered.

In addition, there are some major developments in practice in individual schools,
in the primary and secondary phases, which are resulting in significant
improvements in outcomes for learners. The authority seeks to identify these,
both to celebrate them more widely and to replicate good practice elsewhere.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

The earlier version of this report with unvalidated data was shared with
headteachers and councillors. It has not been subject of community engagement
or consultation. It reflects however the way in which the authority, schools,
colleges and other settings engage with each other to secure improved
standards and achievement.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

Schools are funded within the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and any resource
implications from the drive to raise standards and close the attainment gap will

41



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

have to be met from within each school’s individual budget. Support may be
available from central DSG funds to aid the action plan of any school, or group of
schools, but any support given will be from within existing budgets

The council's funding contribution to education and schools beyond the DSG is
now minimal and relates only to making small funding contributions to service
areas where we have a statutory duty.

Finance Officer Consulted: Andy Moore Date: 30/04/13

Legal Implications:

Local Authorities have a statutory duty under section 13A of the Education Act
1996 to ensure that their functions relating to the provision of education are
exercised with a view to promoting high standards. This report informs the
Committee as to how the Authority is seeking to fulfil this duty

Lawyer Consulted Serena Kynaston Date: 01/05/13

Equalities Implications:

There has been no Equality Impact Assessment made in relation to this report.
The report highlights some of the differences in achievement between children
and young people who are disadvantaged or in vulnerable groups, the
improvements that have been made in narrowing the gaps in achievement for
these groups and the continuing priority that should be given to raising the
achievement of these children and young people, for example through the use of
the Pupil Premium.

Sustainability Implications:

None

Crime & Disorder Implications:

Improving the experience that children and young people have at school and
college and helping them to achieve their full potential is likely to equip them with
the skills and knowledge to secure employment and play a positive part in
society.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

No detailed risk assessment has been carried out in relation to this report.
However, the risks to personal, community and civic development and well being
if the city wide education service does not thrive and secure positive outcomes
for children and young people are clear, and the steps that are being taken,
described in this report, to secure improvement represent a strong commitment
to addressing these risks.

Public Health Implications:

42



5.7

5.8

6.1

71

The Director of Public Health has previously identified (in his 2011 Report) the
implications for public health and resilience if children and young people do not
benefit from a high quality education. These implications continue to be
important, and underline the importance of the actions being taken to improve
standards and achievement by the schools, colleges and other settings in the city
and by the authority.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

Standards and achievement in the city’s education service have clear
implications for city wide priorities including reducing inequality, developing
employment and skills, improving public health and reducing crime and disorder,
and these are outlined in this report.

EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

This report does not require the consideration of alternative options.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

Local Authorities have a statutory duty under section 13A of the Education Act
1996 to ensure that their functions relating to the provision of education are
exercised with a view to promoting high standards. This report informs the
Committee as to how the Authority is seeking to fulfil this duty, and invites the
Committee to comment.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

1.

How are we doing? Standards and Achievement in Brighton & Hove Schools -

validated data

2. How are we doing? Tables and charts — validated data

Documents in Members’ Rooms

1.

none

Background Documents

1.

none

43



44



How are we doing?

Standards and
Achievement in Brighton &
Hove Schools

2011/12
Validated data April 2013

For further information please contact:

Hilary Ferries, Strategic Commissioner, Standards and Achievement
hilary.ferries@brighton-hove.qov.uk

45




Introduction

The national policy context is one in which the government continues to encourage and
promote increased autonomy for schools, and a focus on schools themselves being
responsible for standards and improvement within a self improving schools system. The
government is encouraging all schools, primary, secondary and special, to consider
seeking academy status, either as a single body or as part of a group of schools. In
addition, independent or community and voluntary groups are being given the
opportunity to establish ‘Free Schools’, which are state funded but like academies
independent of the local authority.

In Brighton & Hove, two of the nine secondary schools have become Academies, both of
them sponsored by the Aldridge Foundation. There is one Free School, the Bilingual
Primary School temporarily located at BACA. A secondary Free School, The King’s CE
School, has approval from the Secretary of State to open in September 2013, subject to
a suitable site being identified.

Local authorities retain the statutory duty to ensure sufficient education for residents up
to the age of 19 in their area (and up to 25 for young people with Learning Difficulties
and/or Disabilities) and to promote high standards in schools. They retain the duty to
intervene where performance is judged to be inadequate, or where the well being of
children is at risk. Fulfilling these duties in the context of increased autonomy for
schools demands a new kind of relationship and absolute clarity about respective roles,
responsibilities and accountabilities

The local policy context in Brighton and Hove is one in which clear distinctions are being
made between commissioning and delivery roles, and in which issues of outcomes and
accountability are paramount. The Children’s Services department has been working
closely with schools for the last three years or more on developing the concept of what
‘schools supporting schools’ means in this city, providing a good platform for the new
relationship, in a spirit of partnership and transparency.

This report is an analysis of standards and achievement in the city, based on the 2012
results at the end of each Key Stage. Results for KS4 and 5 remain provisional at this
stage. The report also identifies the key priorities of the Standards and Achievement
Team.

The report is divided into three sections:
1. an executive summary which gives the broad overall picture of standards and
achievement in the City
2. a detailed report of standards and achievement in each Key Stage
3. appendices that show the attainment under key areas

Aspects of the work in Brighton & Hove schools are illustrated through case studies,
shown in boxes in the body of this report.

46



Executive Summary
Early Years and Foundation Stage
Overall standards are above the national level.

In the Early Years children continue to achieve much higher than the national outcomes
for all pupils. In 2012, 67% of Brighton & Hove children achieved the key national
indicator of six points and above in both Personal Social and Emotional Development
and Communication, Language and Literacy and also at least 78 points across all six
Areas of Learning. The figure for Brighton & Hove remains above the national figure of
64% for 2011.

The second key indicator is the percentage gap between the median and the bottom

20% of achieving children. Brighton and Hove early years settings have continued to

narrow this gap each year and in 2012 the gap has reduced to 27.8%, which is better
than the national percentage gap of 30.1%.

This high achievement is a result of the high quality of provision that our children can
now access across the city. 86% of early years settings are rated as good or
outstanding compared to 78% nationally and 33% of these are outstanding compared to
14% nationally.

We are particularly proud of the difference we are making to children living in
disadvantage. The data (in Appendix 2, page 2) illustrates that there is a direct
correlation between disadvantage and the outcomes of the EYFS profile. The Early
Years team target their work at the areas of most need and we are committed to raising
the outcomes of our children at the end of the reception year and to narrow the gap
between the lowest achieving, most vulnerable children and the rest of the city.

Key Stage One

Overall, standards remain in line with the national average in reading and writing
and slightly above the national average in maths. There have been small gains in
all three areas this year compared with 2011.

Appendix 2, pages 5 — 10 contain more detailed information about performance at KS1.

At Key Stage 1 the national expectation is for a pupil to attain Level 2, and to be secure
at this level (Level 2b). More able children will attain high Level 2 (2a) or Level 3.

In 2012, reading at Level 2+ increased by 1.7% points to 86.3%, the highest overall
figure for over 5 years, but almost 1% point below the England average. Writing at Level
2+ also increased slightly to 81.4%, but was 1.6% points below the England average.
Mathematics showed a small increase to 91.8%, which is above the England average
(91.0%).

We expect the improvements in reading and maths to continue, as the significant
investment in the Every Child a Reader and Every Child Counts programmes for

47



identified children in targeted schools has had a measurable impact on performance in
literacy and mathematics for low attaining pupils.

At Key Stage 1, the percentage of pupils with SEN reaching the expected Level 2 at the
end of Year 2 across subjects has increased and attainment gaps have narrowed in
reading and mathematics, although slightly widened in writing. However, not all groups
have made the same rate of improvement and some attainment gaps have widened, in
particular:

e FSM reading at KS1
SEN and FSM writing at KS1
e FSM maths at KS1

Key Stage Two

In 2012 there were strong improvements in KS2 test scores in Brighton & Hove
schools, with L4 scores being the highest ever There were also strong
improvements in the number of pupils making two levels of progress from KS1,
but these figures remain below the national averages.

Appendix 2, pages 11 - 13 contain more detailed information about performance at KS2.
The DfE sets the following floor standards for KS2:

e 60% of pupils achieving Level 4+ in English and Maths
e Achieving at least the national median figure for two levels of progress in English
and maths between KS1 and KS2

The percentage of pupils that attained at least Level 4 in both English and maths
improved by 6% points from 2011, from 73% to 79%, which is the highest level ever
achieved by Brighton & Hove schools. This figure is in line with the national average.

The results for Level 5 were even better. The percentage of pupils achieving L5 in both
maths and English is not available yet, but separately they improved by 13.3% and 8.8%
respectively. In addition, 3.2% of children achieved Level 6 in maths.

88% of children made two or more levels of progress in English, which is an
improvement of 9% since 2011. 84% of children made two or more levels of progress in
maths, which is an improvement of 5% since 2011. Despite these gains we are below
national figures for this measure by 1% and 4% respectively.

There were five primary schools below the DfE floor standard at the end of 2010/11. All
five of these schools have risen above the floor in 2011/12, but two schools have fallen
below the floor standard. The Standards and Achievement Team is providing high
support to these schools.

The proportion of primary schools in Brighton & Hove judged to be good or better rose
from 71% to 73% from January 2012 to July 2012. A third of Brighton and Hove primary
schools were judged as outstanding in their most recent inspection. Two schools are
judged to be ‘inadequate’. Hertford Junior is in ‘notice to improve’ and Whitehawk

48



Primary School is in Special Measures. Both schools have had positive monitoring visits
over the year and we continue to provide extensive support. The governing body at
Whitehawk has voted in favour of seeking academy status.

Key Stage Three

Overall, assessment outcomes at the end of KS3 have continued to improve in
English, but did not improve further in Maths and Science, compared with 2011.

At KS3 the national expectation is that pupils are performing at least at Level 5 by the
end of the Key Stage. Appendix 2, page 14 contains a summary of the key data for
KSS.

In 2012, 86% of Y9 pupils in Brighton & Hove achieved Level 5 in English (+3% from
2011), 82% in Maths and 86% in Science (same as 2011). These figures were very
similar to England and statistical neighbour averages, and slightly better than these in
English and Science.

On the various ‘closing the gap’ measures, overall performance at KS3 was variable,
with some attainment gaps narrowing and others widening. However, there were good
improvements by students with SEN in all three subject areas, continuing the positive
trend of recent years.

Key Stage Four

Overall, attainment in GCSE examinations continued the positive trend since
2009. However, much improvement is still needed if Brighton and Hove schools
and academies are to reach the challenging targets they have set themselves of
being in the top quartile of statistical neighbours for GCSE and for all schools to
be good or outstanding. The Brighton & Hove figure for five or more A* - C grades
including English and Maths is still below the England and statistical neighbour
averages, but the gap has decreased.

Appendix 2, pages 15 — 16 contains the key data used in preparing this part of the
report.

Overall, in 2012 performance in GCSE examinations continued the trend of
improvement seen over the last three years, from 44.5% achieving 5 or more A* - C
grades including English and Maths in 2009 to 56.4% in 2012. This was an
improvement of 3.6% points from 2011. The England average increased by only 0.6%
points compared with 2011, and the statistical neighbour average increased by 1.7%
points, and so the gap with these two comparators decreased in 2012.

Among individual schools, the provisional figures show some significant improvements,
notably at Hove Park (17% points), Longhill (8% points) and Patcham (6% points). For
all but one school the longer term trend since 2009 is upwards, ranging across the nine
schools and Academies from -2% points to +33% points.

The DfE set the following floor standards for KS4 in 2012:

49



e 40% of pupils achieving 5+ A* - C grades including English and Maths (compared
with 35% in 2011); or

e Achieving at least the national median figure for three levels of progress in
English and maths between KS2 and KS4

PACA was below the A* - C grades floor standard for 2012. As an Academy, it is for the
sponsors and the DfE to agree an improvement programme to bring PACA above the
floor standard for future years. LA officers will keep closely in touch with PACA on
progress with this.

Only one secondary school, Cardinal Newman Catholic School, was inspected by
Ofsted in 2011/12. It was judged to be ‘Good’ for overall effectiveness, with all
contributory grades at this level.

Key Stage Five

Overall, attainment in AS, A level and Level 3 equivalent BTEC qualifications was
broadly similar to 2011, with the most notable improvements in achievement
being at Blatchington Mill School and City College.

Overall attainment in 2012 was broadly similar to the national average, with only
BHASVIC being significantly above it. There was a significant improvement in the
proportion of high grade passes at City College and Blatchington Mill, and the proportion
of A* - B grades was above or around 50% at BHASVIC, Varndean College, City
College, Blatchington Mill and Cardinal Newman. .

City College was graded ‘good, with outstanding features’ in its most recent inspection in
the summer term 2011.

The overall picture of Key Stage 5 provision across the city is very strong, but there is a
need now to move on to attainment which is above the national average.

Attendance

The data shows that in 2011/12 both overall and persistent absence at primary level in Brighton &
Hove continued to be below the national average (0.6% and 0.5% respectively below). At
secondary level we continued to have higher levels of absence for both overall and persistent
absence compared to the national average (0.6% and 1.4% respectively above).

Exclusions

There were 9 permanent exclusions from Brighton & Hove schools in 2011/12. This is
six fewer than those recorded in 2010/11.

The fixed term exclusion statistics are relatively high. However, this is in many cases the
result of the policy within Brighton & Hove to ensure that unofficial exclusion, whereby a
child or young person is sent home to ‘cool off’ for periods of time, is eliminated. Fixed
term exclusion is also used to allow time for longer term solutions to be negotiated and
arranged to avoid the need for permanent exclusions.

50



Looking ahead

The Standards Report for 2010/11 suggested that the priorities for Brighton and Hove
schools for 2011/12 should be to:

e raise standards in secondary schools so that GCSE attainment is in the upper
quartile of statistical neighbours and at least 80% of teaching is good or
outstanding

e raise standards in KS2 so they are above national average and statistical
neighbours

¢ close the gaps between vulnerable groups of pupils to be in line with or above
national averages

While this report on attainment in 2011/12 records some solid improvements at all
stages of the service, these priorities remain valid for 2012/13. However the KS1 results
suggest that there should be a focus on writing, maths and phonics in KS1, and
progress from KS1 to KS2.

51



Report on standards and achievement in Brighton &Hove
1 Early Years Foundation Stage

The context

The Early Years Foundation Stage profile describes a child’s development and learning
achievements at the end of the academic year in which they reach the age of five which
is usually at the end of their Reception Year.

There are six Areas of Learning and 117 statements overall - 13 assessment scales
from 1-9 which children are judged against. The six areas are: Personal, Social, and
Emotional Development; Communication, Language and Literacy; Problem Solving,
Reasoning and Numeracy; Knowledge and Understanding of the World; Creative
Development; and Physical Development. The judgements for each child are based on
ongoing assessments through observation of the pupil by the school staff.

If a child achieves six points and above in each area they are said to be working within
age related expectations.

The Local Authority has a statutory duty to ensure there are robust systems in place to
moderate the profile across the city to ensure practice matches national standards.

Tables for the data the Foundation Stage Profile results for 2012 can be found in
Appendix 2, pages 1 - 4 at the end of this report.

In 2011/12 2785 pupils undertook the EYFS profile. 80 pupils from this figure are
summer born children who attend an independent school (only summer born pupil data
is required from the independent schools). 13 pupils attended a special school. There
was an increase of 128 pupils this year and an increase overall of 203 pupils to this year
group over the last 2 years.

One key indicator for the EYFS profile is the percentage of children who achieve six
points and above in both Personal, Social and Emotional Development and
Communication Language and Literacy and also score at least 78 points across all
Areas of Learning.

The percentage of children who achieved this in 2012 was 67% which is above the
national figure of 64%.

The second key indicator is the percentage gap between the median and the bottom
20% of achieving children. Brighton and Hove early years settings have continued to
narrow this gap each year and in 2012 the gap has reduced to 27.8% which is better
than the national percentage gap of 30.1%.

Results in each of the six Areas of Learning are also higher than the national figures for
2012.

The high results are a result of the high quality provision that our children can now
access across the city as evidenced in the outcomes from the Ofsted reports.

52



86% of early years settings are rated as good or outstanding compared to 78%
nationally and 33% of these are outstanding compared to 14% nationally.

These significantly high Ofsted outcomes are a result of our city commitment to raise the
quality of provision for early years in order to raise the outcomes of our children at the
end of the reception year and to narrow the gap between the lowest achieving most
vulnerable children and the rest of the city. It gives a firm foundation on which to build
their lifelong longing.

We have a highly experienced and effective team of early years consultants and
development officers who support the implementation of the EYFS framework through
high quality training and targeted support and quality improvement. We have specialist
early years services for special educational needs and English as an Additional
Language. Schools are working in close partnership with each other and we have some
very strong early years clusters working across the city — sharing ideas and raising
outcomes.

Each year the Early Years Adviser analyses the data of the EYFS profile to plan the next
steps to target the support in the service to meet the needs of the children in the city.

The characteristics of the lowest 20% scoring children in the city are:

Children who live in disadvantage

Children who are the youngest in the year group

Boys, particularly boys who fall into the above two groups
Children who have a special educational need

Children who have English as an additional Language
Children who are eligible for Free School Meals

The data for each of these groups can be found in Appendix 2.

Quality Improvement in Learning and Teaching

Quality Improvement in Learning and Teaching (Quilt) is Brighton and Hove’s locally
devised quality improvement programme for the Early Years Foundation Stage. It is
based on a cycle of reflection and action, with the improvements in children’s care and
learning closely monitored.

QUuILT is supported by the Early Years Consultants, working in partnership with
Development Officers where settings are identified as entitled to additional support
through quality reviews.

Participation in a quality improvement scheme is a requirement of the Brighton and Hove
Agreement for Funding for Early Years Education for Private, Voluntary and
Independent schools and settings.

The quality of the learning and teaching and the interactions between practitioners and
children is a particular focus. The Relationships and Interactions module must be
awarded at Credit level for full accreditation.

53




QuILT has provided support and rigorous challenge in to raise quality in settings, which
is reflected in current inspection data. For childcare on non-domestic premises BHCC
has the highest percentage of Outstanding settings in England and equal lowest
Satisfactory/ Inadequate judgements.

In 2011/12, the QuILT scheme was completed at Aldrington CE Primary School. The
Reception class teacher said

“I have found QUILT really useful, as ... the Early Years Consultant is a partner with
whom | can develop ideas and practice. It reassures me and is making me feel more
thoroughly prepared for OFSTED and more confident.*

Living in Disadvantage

We are particularly proud of the trend data since 2008 which illustrates the difference we
are making to children living in disadvantage. Figures illustrate there is a direct
correlation between disadvantage and the outcomes of the EYFS profile and
subsequent life chances.

In 2008 just 25 % of the children living in the 5 % most disadvantaged areas of our city
achieved a “good” score of 6 points and above. This year 42% achieved 6 points.

FSM
16% of the whole year group receive Free School meals. 29% of the lowest scoring
children receive free school meals

Gender
Overall 1453 boys and 1332 girls undertook the EYFS profile.

Girls continue to achieve at a higher level than boys and for each assessment scale a
higher percentage of girls than boys are working securely within the early learning goals
but this matches the national picture and the stage of development for boys at this age.
However it is important to note that boys in Brighton and Hove are achieving higher than
boys nationally.

The greatest gap between boys and girls is in Communication, Language and Literacy
and the smallest gap is in Knowledge and Understanding of the World.

There are more boys in the bottom 20% of pupils in the city — 62% of boys compared to
38% of girls.

We offer a number of training courses on supporting boys in the early years. All schools

undertake their own data analysis and this will highlight if there is a gender difference in
their own school which will need to be addressed.

54




Special Educational Needs
In this cohort of 2785 pupils 7.8% were school action, 7.2% were school action plus,
1.2% had a statement of SEN.

Within the 20% of lowest scoring pupils (557 pupils) 45% had a special educational need
(20% school action, 19% school action plus and 6% with a statement).

English as an Additional Language

11% of all the pupils in this cohort were known to have English as an Additional
Language and 19% of the lowest 20% scoring pupils had English as an Additional
Language. A full EAL report is attached at the end of this paper.

The Early Years consultants work closely with the specialist EMAS early years team.
Additional support is offered to observe pupils to gather evidence against the scale
points.

Areas for development in the Early Years and Foundation Stage:
e To continue to support and challenge individual schools where outcomes at the
end of Reception are lower than age related expectations
e To support schools to implant the new EYFS from September 2012
e To support schools to implement the new EYFS profile

2. The Primary Phase

Key Stage One

At the end of Key Stage 1 (Year 2), children are teacher assessed against National
Curriculum levels for speaking and listening, reading, writing and mathematics.
Alongside the teacher assessment, schools are required to test pupils using nationally
produced materials to support the assessments being made. These tests also include
tasks for children to carry out that give an indication of performance. At Key Stage 1 the
national expectation is for a pupil to attain Level 2, and to be secure at this level (Level
2b). More able children will attain high Level 2 (2a) or Level 3. The Local Authority has a
duty to ensure there are robust systems of moderation in place to support teachers and
ensure data is secure. This year saw the introduction of a phonics test for Year 1 pupils.

Reading

Reading at Level 2+ has increased by 1.7% percentage points to 86.3%; this is the
highest overall figure for over 5 years and the largest Year 2 cohort in that time, but is
almost 1% point below the national average. The impact of programmes such as
Communication, Language and Literacy Development, which supported targeted
schools to improve the leadership and teaching of phonics, continues to impact on the
quality of teaching of reading. The increase in this area is expected to continue, as the
Every Child a Reader (ECaR) programme, with a targeted cohort of Year 1 pupils,
reduces the number of lower attaining pupils across the city.

2012 was the first year of the Y1 phonics test. The percentage of pupils in Brighton and

Hove ‘meeting the required standard of phonic decoding’ was 49%. This was 7% points
below the national figure. This will be a focus for improvement in 2012/13.

55



Writing

Writing at Level 2+ has also increased 0.6% points to 81.4%, but is 2% points below the
national average. The biggest gains in writing at L2+ have been seen in Fairlight
Primary, St Martin’s CE Primary, St Joseph’s RC Primary, St Mary Magdalen RC
Primary and Mile Oak Primary. The biggest gains in writing at L3+ have been seen in St
Bernadette’s, Rudyard Kipling and West Hove Infants.

Mathematics

Mathematics shows an increase of 0.6% to 91.8%, which is almost 1% above the
national average. The impact of the programme ‘Every Child Counts’ (ECC) (target
cohort Y2 2012) to raise the overall maths attainment continues to prove effective.

Gaps in performance
We have carried out a rigorous analysis of the data for gender, English as an Additional
Language (EAL) Free School Meals (FSM) and Special Educational Needs (SEN).

At Key Stage 1, the percentages of pupils with SEN reaching the expected Level 2 at the
end of Year 2 have increased and attainment gaps have narrowed in Reading and
Mathematics, although slightly widened in Writing. The gap between boys and girls has
continued to narrow in the last year in all subjects.

The significant investment in the Every Child a Reader and Every Child Counts
programmes for identified children in targeted schools has had a measurable impact on
performance in literacy and mathematics for low attaining pupils.

However, not all groups have made the same rate of improvement and some attainment
gaps have widened. These include the gap between:

e FSM reading at KS1
e SEN and FSM writing at KS1
e FSM maths at KS1

‘Closing the gap’ information for Brighton & Hove schools at KS 1 is summarised in the
table below.

56



2009/2010 | 2010/2011 | 2011/2012 | Improvement from
2010/2011 — 2011/2012

% at L2 83.0% 84.6% 86.0%
Reading
Gender 6.3% 6.2% 5.3%
Reading gap
SEN Reading 43.3% 40.6% 35.5%
gap
FSM Reading 21.0% 19.9% 20.5%
gap
% at L2 Writing | 80.0% 80.8% 81.4%
Gender Writing | 9.8% 9.6% 9.4%
gap
SEN Writing 46.6% 44.7% 45.5%
gap
FSM Writing 22.0% 20.3% 26.3%
gap
% at L2 Maths | 90.0% 91.2% 91.8%
Gender Maths 2.3% 2.6% 1.9%
gap
SEN Maths gap | 29.1% 24.7% 23.4%
FSM Maths gap | 11.0% 10.8% 14.9%
Actions for 2012/13

e To expand the ECaR and ECC programmes and related interventions to improve
standards in KS1

e To support and challenge schools to evaluate the effectiveness of Pupil Premium
to address the concerns around a widening gap in attainment between children
receiving FSM and the rest

e To engage schools in sharing good practice and provision for higher attainers in
Reading

e To support ‘Closing the Gaps’ projects between partnerships of schools

Working in Partnership to Close Gaps in Attainment

Every Child a Reader operates as part of an approach where high quality, inclusive day to day
teaching is promoted as a core entitlement for all children. Additional intervention support is
layered according to the intensity of children’s need and based on established programmes as
part of whole school provision mapping. When Quality First Teaching and Intervention work
together outcomes are improved and sustained for all pupils as shown below.

Ofsted extracts: Carlton Hill (July 2012): Quality of teaching

Children’s skills on entry to Reception are well below those expected for their age, particularly in
speech and language. Improvements in reading attainment have been built on since the last
inspection. By the end of Key Stage 1, attainment in reading is broadly average and improving
rapidly. The very effective teaching of letters and their sounds is supported well by learning
programmes, such as ‘Reading Recovery’. This helps to ensure pupils develop reading skills
rapidly.

57



KS1 outcomes in Reading and Writing have again shown improvements with 13 ECaR schools
showing between 5 % — 35% percentage gain in reading during the last two years. In 2011-12,
Reading Recovery served 195 Y1 and Y2 pupils. A significant proportion of these children were
FSM (45%). More than 4 in every 5 (84%) made accelerated progress to age appropriate levels
of literacy. FSM pupils made almost as good progress as their peers with 81% making
accelerated progress with continued progress evident at 3 month and 6 month follow up data.
The core role of the ECaR teacher working as part of a cohesive school team has been central
to these outcomes.

Every Child Counts
Every Child Counts helps schools raise achievements in mathematics at three levels:

e intensive 1-1 Numbers Count intervention
¢ lighter touch 1stClass@Number support
e wider support from the specialist Numbers Count Teacher

Brighton & Hove has 20 Numbers Count Teachers who worked with 159 children, who
find mathematics very difficult, in years 1 - 3. 131 year 2 children participated in
Numbers Count in 2011-12. All children made accelerated progress, the average made
a gain of almost 16 months during the 3 month intervention and 66% of these children
achieved level 2 or above by the end of KS1.

1stClass@Number has proved very popular with schools. 37 teaching assistants
across 29 schools have been trained to support groups of up to 4 children at a time, to
catch up with their peers. Official end of year data is not yet available but the progress
according to teaching assistants and schools has been very positive with children
making over 9 months progress during the 2 month intervention.

Key Stage Two

The percentage of pupils that attained at least Level 4 in both English and maths is a
key measure for the Department for Education (DfE). There was a 6% increase from
2011, from 73% to 79% and this brings us in line with the national average. The
percentage of pupils achieving L5 in both maths and English is not available yet, but
separately they improved by 13.3% and 8.8% respectively

The DfE set the following floor standards for KS2:

e 60% of pupils achieving Level 4+ in English and Maths
e Achieving at least the national median figure for two levels of progress in English
and maths between KS1 and KS2

At the end of Key Stage 2 (Year 6), children are teacher assessed against National
Curriculum levels for English, maths and science, and also take statutory national tests
in English and maths. The tests for Reading and maths were administered in an
identified week under test conditions. The significant changes in 2012 were the option
for schools to opt out of externally marked tests for Writing, and administer and mark

58




Writing tests internally, and the introduction of a level 6 test for maths. Throughout the
year the LA offered additional supported opportunities for levelling and moderating levels
in Writing and in June all schools were invited to a locality based moderation cluster for
Writing. The LA therefore feels there was a robust and secure system in place for the
moderation of writing. Most schools believe the new system is more robust and accurate
in judging pupils’ writing levels.

The three year trend at the end of KS2 continues on an upward trajectory in Brighton &

Hove schools, with a 6% improvement to 79% in the statutory combined Level 4 English
and mathematics achievement. KS2 performance in Brighton & Hove now matches the
England average and is above the statistical neighbour average (77%).

Level 4+ English increased by 4.9% percentage points to 85.8% and Maths increased
by 3.9% percentage points to 83.3%. Fairlight Primary, Hertford Junior and Whitehawk
saw the biggest gains for level 4 for English & Maths combined.

The results for L5 were even better. The proportion of children attaining L5 in English
increased by 13.3% percentage pointes to 42.6%, and in Maths by 8.8% percentage
points to 43.0%. In addition, 3.2% of children achieved L6 in the new L6 test for maths.

In 2012, pupils were able to undertake level 6 tests. Level 6 would be an above average
score for pupils aged 14 years of age. Some schools did enter pupils for these higher
level tests. Interestingly very few children achieved the level 6 score in English and of
those who did, boys performed better in English, especially writing. More pupils (4.6%)
achieved level 6 in mathematics. These figures may well have been skewed by the fact
that only twenty-two primary schools entered pupils for the test.

In 2013 there will be some changes to the English tests with greater emphasis made on
spelling and the correct use of grammar. This will make it harder to make comparisons
between achievement this year and next year.

Two levels of progress

The DfE also measures the percentage of pupils making two or more levels of progress.
The data shows that 88% of children made two or more levels of progress in English,
which is an improvement of 9% since 2011. 84% of children made two or more levels of
progress in maths, which is an improvement of 5% since 2011. Despite these gains we
are below national figures for this measure which are 89% and 87% respectively.

The gap between disadvantaged groups and other pupils at KS2
We carry out an analysis of vulnerable groups in the city and the gap between their
performance and of all other pupils.

At KS2, whilst the data shows some of these gaps are narrowing, some attainment gaps
have widened:

e The gender gap remains fairly consistent and girls still outperform boys by 3.7%
joint L4+ English & maths, although the L5 gaps have widened, particularly in
English

e The EAL gap has improved for joint L4+ English & maths, but as with the gender
gap it has widened substantially at L5

59



e The FSM gap has improved substantially at L4+ English and joint L4+ English
and maths, but widened substantially at L4+ maths and L5 for all subjects

e The SEN gap has improved at L4+ across the board, but substantially widened at
L5 across the board

e In English the gap has improved for all vulnerable groups at L4+ in both reading
and writing, other than writing for EAL and FSM children. At L5 the gap has
widened for all vulnerable groups

e In maths the gap for all vulnerable groups at L4+ and L5 has widened other than
SEN at L4+, although the L5 gap for SEN has substantially widened

e Joint English & maths levels have narrowed for all groups at L4+, and widened for
all groups at L5

As in Key Stage One, whilst the data shows some of these gaps are narrowing, our
widest gap is between those pupils who receive free school meals (FSM) and others.
Non FSM pupils attain higher than FSM pupils in every subject. The gap has narrowed
however, by 4% points for English and maths combined, but there is still a difference of
23% points. It has remained fairly static for L4+ writing, and increased slightly for L4+
English. The gap has widened for the joint English and maths target, with half FSM
pupils gaining a Level 4+ in both subjects. The gap for 2+ levels progress in maths has
increased by 3%, as FSM pupils have remained static but non FSM pupils have made
gains. The gap is least for 2+ levels progress in English, as numbers making progress
have increased. A full report about the achievement of EAL pupils is attached to this
document.

EMAS (Ethnic Minority Achievement Service) Talking Maths Intervention Pilot at
West Blatchington Primary School

Fiona Gibson (English as an Additional Language (EAL) specialist teacher with EMAS)
is a Talking Maths Trainer. In 2011/12, Fiona trained two Higher Level Teaching
Assistants (HLTAs), who planned and delivered the programme in both Year 2 and Year
6, to small groups of 3 children.

The aim of the Intervention was to develop the understanding and use of mathematical
language so that attainment is raised. The programme is particularly suitable for EAL
learners, but also non EAL learners.

Pupils receive 3 weekly sessions run over a 10 week period. The practical activities
focus on ‘talking maths’ through e.g. problem solving and games.

One Y6 pupil said; “We learn and play games at the same time. | learnt new words and
language and easy ways to do different questions and problems. | was learning from it
and it was fun!”

Teachers reported that the pupils are more vocal, willing to share ideas and that they are
picking up new concepts more quickly.

Following the success of the pilot at West Blatchington Primary School, the Talking
Maths Intervention is being rolled out to other schools from September 2012.

60




Healthy Settings Programme Case Study

In 2011 Brighton & Hove’s Healthy Settings Programme was launched as a means of
maintaining and extending the good practice to support pupil health and wellbeing
already in place in Brighton & Hove Schools.

In February 2012, fifteen schools submitted evidence that they had continued to
maintain their healthy school status and three primary schools provided evidence that
they had met the health and wellbeing outcomes they had set for themselves:

e Davigdor Infants has reduced by more than 30% the number of problem incidents at
lunchtimes, and doubled the number of Year 2 boys who are able to calm down
when they are angry

e St Luke’s Primary has increased by 20% the number of children who say they always
like coming to school, and increased by 20% the number of vulnerable children who
attend clubs

e At Carlton Hill Primary the number of free school meal children who are satisfied with
their school meal has gone up by 50%, and the numbers of children who have fruit in
their packed lunch and take part in physical activities have also gone up.

The programme has now been extended to include early years settings.

Children in Care

KS2 English 2012

There were 15 Year 6 pupils in care this year, 9 boys and 6 girls. Of these, three were
not entered for SATs due to their special educational needs. Of the remaining 12 pupils,
eight (67%) reached Level 4 in English. This is above the 2011 figure of 60% locally,
and the national average of 50%.

When children with severe SEN are included in the figures, the percentage gaining Level
4 is 53%.

Of the 12 pupils entered for SATs, overall 83% made two levels of progress or more.
Three made more than two levels of progress, seven pupils made two levels of progress
in English since KS1 and, two did not make two levels of progress. Including the young
people with severe SEN, 67% made two levels of progress or more, compared to a
national figure for CiC of 48%, and 80% for all children.

Four young people in the cohort have been continuously looked after since they were
assessed for KS1 SATs at the end of Y2. 100% made the expected progress or more.
Two made two levels of progress between key stages and two made better than two
levels of progress.

KS2 Maths 2012

There were 15 Year 6 pupils in care this year, nine boys and six girls. Of these, three
were not entered for SATs due to their special educational needs. Of the remaining 12
pupils, seven (58%) reached Level 4 in Maths. This is above the 2011 figure of 40%
locally and the national average of 48%.

61




When children with severe SEN are included in the figures, the percentage gaining Level
4is 47%.

Of the 12 pupils entered for SATs, four made two levels of progress in English since
KS1, four did not make two levels of progress, and four made more than two levels of
progress. Overall 67% made two levels of progress or more. Including the young
people with severe SEN, 53% made two levels of progress or more, compared to a
national figure for CiC of 48%, and 80% for all children.

Four young people in the cohort have been continuously looked after since they were
assessed for KS1 SATs at the end of Y2. 75% made the expected progress or more.
Two made better than two levels of progress, one made two levels of progress between
key stages, and one did not make two levels of progress.

Pupil Premium

The government has given schools Pupil Premium funding which is to support children
in various vulnerable groups, but particularly those whom are eligible for free school
meals (FSM). We have retained an officer to work on this area and he is supporting
schools with their use of this funding, training tutors and leading professional
development on teaching in small groups. A high level group is leading on this area and
a conference was held in November at the Teaching School, led by schools that have
seen the gaps narrow. This year the local authority is offering funding to groups of
schools to work on different ways of closing the gap.

School Effectiveness across the Primary Sector in Brighton and Hove

The proportion of primary schools in Brighton & Hove judged to be good or better rose
from 71% to 73% from January 2012 to July 2012. A third of Brighton & Hove primary
schools were judged as outstanding in their most recent inspection (source: Ofsted
Local area children's services performance profile, August 2011 and Annual Report of
the Chief Inspector, November 2011). Two schools are judged to be ‘inadequate’.
Hertford Juniors is in ‘notice to improve’ and Whitehawk Primary Schools is in Special
Measures. Both schools have had positive monitoring visits over the year and we
continue to provide extensive support.

The new framework for inspection (from September 2012) is likely to have a huge
impact for schools. Schools previously judged as outstanding will not be inspected
(unless standards fall or there are causes for concern). Schools judged as good will be
inspected every five years. The grading ‘satisfactory’ has been replaced with ‘requires
improvement’ and these schools will be inspected more frequently. Schools in a
category will be monitored more closely.

62



Priorities for schools
e Raise standards to be above the national average and statistical neighbours
e Improve the number of pupils making two levels of progress in maths from KS1 to
KS2 to above the national average
e Close the Gap for pupils from vulnerable groups.

Support and Challenge for primary schools in Brighton and Hove

Each year the schools are allocated a support level. This is based on their own self
evaluation, discussion with School Partnership Advisers (formerly School Improvement
Partners) the most recent data, the three year picture of data and inspection evidence.
Schools that are judged to require ‘high support’ have a support plan with a number of
different elements, depending on the needs of the school. These include extra advisory
time, support from other schools and other external support.

The government has published a floor (or minimum) standard — a school will be below
the floor if fewer than 60 per cent of pupils achieve the basic standard of level 4 in both
English and mathematics, and fewer pupils than the national median make the expected
levels of progress between KS1 and KS2. There were five primary schools below the
floor at the end of 2010/11. All five of these schools have risen above the floor in
2011/12, but two schools have fallen below the floor. The Strategic Commissioner,
Standards and Achievement, has met with the headteacher of all schools receiving high
support to discuss the results and plan a way forward.

The government is quite clear that it sees the future of school improvement as led by
those within schools — ‘system led’ - and there is a variety of ways that we are
supporting and developing this in Brighton & Hove Primary Schools:

e Local Leaders of Education have been trained: these are headteachers of local
schools, accredited by the National College of School Leadership, who are
deployed to work with schools, and lead and participate in city wide projects

e Several partnerships of schools (including cross phase partnerships) are
developing and working together to raise outcomes for pupils

e We invite schools to bid for funds to carry out their own school improvement
projects in groups of schools, and this was very well received. This has been
reviewed and recommendations made to improve the effectiveness further. There
will be another round of this funding which will focus on closing the gap

e Westdene Primary was one of the first 100 Teaching Schools announced by the
DfE. The school has developed a Teaching School Alliance with other local
schools and their work has four strands:

Initial Teacher training

Continuing Professional Development
Leadership and Succession Planning
Schools Supporting Schools

N

The LA is a strategic partner with the Teaching School Alliance.

63



Action: Standards and Achievement Team

e To review the School Improvement Strategy in light of the changing educational
landscape

e To promote partnerships between schools

e To challenge and support schools in their school improvement

e To work in partnership with the Teaching School Alliance and other partnerships
and families of schools to achieve the priorities previously stated

e To investigate the underperformance of girls in mathematics especially at the
higher levels and promote effective strategies for engaging girls in mathematics.

e To promote strategies for boys’ progress in reading and writing at all levels

3. Secondary and Post 16 Phases

Key Stage Three

There are no longer national tests at the end of Key Stage 3 (Y9), but schools are
required to carry out and report teacher assessments against national benchmarks for
levels of progress in English, Maths and Science. At KS3 the national expectation is that
pupils are performing at least at Level 5 by the end of the Key Stage.

Overall there is a positive trend of improvement at KS3 in English. In Maths and
Science, figures for 2012 were similar to those for 2011. The table at Appendix 2, page
14 gives a summary of the city wide figures for KS3.

In 2012, 86% of Y9 pupils in Brighton & Hove achieved Level 5 in English (+3% from
2011), 82% in Maths and 86% in Science (same as 2011). In English and Science,
performance was slightly (no more than 2% points) higher than England and statistical
neighbour averages. In Maths, performance was the same as for statistical neighbours
and 1% point below the England average.

Closing the gap at KS3

Data are also collected relating to ‘closing the gap’ measures i.e. the gap between boys’
and girls’ achievement, between those eligible for free school meals and those who are
not, and those who have special educational needs (SEN) and those who do not. At
KS3, whilst the data shows some of these gaps are narrowing, some attainment gaps
have widened

Gender

In 2012, girls performed better than boys in each of the core subjects of English, Maths
and Science. In English, around nine out of ten girls achieved a Level 5, whereas only
around eight out of ten boys achieved this standard. In Maths girls outperformed boys
by 3% points, although over the last three years both boys and girls have improved their
attainment in maths at KS3 by 6% points. In Science boys’ performance declined by 3%
points compared with 2011, whilst girls’ performance continued the trend of
improvement, and in 2012 girls achieved significantly better than boys.

Compared with statistical neighbour and England averages, the gap between boys’ and
girls’ performance is similar to or very slightly higher than England and statistical
neighbour averages.

20

64



FSM

There is a mixed picture for FSM pupils. Overall there has been little significant change
over the three years 2010 — 2012 in the gap between FSM and non-FSM pupils in the
core subjects of English, Maths and Science. In English there is an underlying trend of
improvement for both FSM and non FSM students across these three years, and a 6%
point improvement in the FSM group in 2012 narrowed the gap by 3% points. However,
in both Maths and Science the performance of the FSM group declined in 2012, and
although for both subjects the performance of the FSM group was better than in 2010,
there was a widening of the gap in both subjects by 3% points. In Maths, the gap was
wider than in 2010, and in Science the gap figure was the same as in 2010.

SEN

At KS3 the percentages of pupils with SEN gaining Level 5+ in English, mathematics
and science all showed good improvement, continuing the positive trend of recent years.
Attainment gaps narrowed in all three subjects, by 6% points in English and by 5%
points in Maths and Science.

Key Stage 4

GCSE attainment

Overall, in 2012 performance in GCSE examinations continued the trend of
improvement seen over the last three years. In 2009, 44.5% of Y11 students in the city
achieved the headline figure of 5 or more A* - C grades including English and Maths.
For 2012, the figure was 56.4%, an improvement of 3.6% points from 2011.

A table showing key figures for each school and Academy and for the city as a whole
can be found at Appendix 2, page 15.

The table also includes performance in the English Baccalaureate (A* - C passes in
English, Maths, two sciences, a modern or ancient foreign language, and history or
geography). However, the English Baccalaureate is still not yet a reliable measure, as
the students concerned would have chosen their GCSE options before it was
introduced. Students taking GCSEs in 2013 will be the first cohort to have chosen their
options knowing which subjects would count towards the English Baccalaureate.

The DfE published final validated performance tables in January 2013. The figures
show that there was some narrowing of the gap with England and statistical neighbour
(SN) averages, where there was improvement of 0.6% and 1.7% respectively. This
means that the performance in Brighton & Hove was 2.4% points behind the England
average (was 5.4% points in 2011) and 1.1% points behind SN average (was 3.0).

The DfE data also includes information about the proportion of students achieving the
expected levels of progress between Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4 in English and
Maths. This presents a very mixed picture. In English 70.4% of students achieved the
expected three levels of progress or more, comfortably above England (68.1%) and
statistical neighbour (68.3) averages. This ranked Brighton & Hove third among eleven
statistical neighbours. By contrast, in Maths only 58.6% of students achieved the
expected three levels of progress or more, well below England (68.7%) and statistical
neighbour (67.2) averages, and ranking eleventh among our statistical neighbours.
Improving performance in Maths continues to be a key area of focus for the schools and
the Secondary Schools Partnership team.

21

65



Among individual schools, the provisional figures show some significant improvements,
notably at Hove Park (17% points), Longhill (8% points) and Patcham (6% points). For
all but one school the longer term trend since 2009 is upwards, ranging across the nine
schools and Academies from -2% points to +33% points.

For several schools, the 5+ A* - C including English and Maths figure was undoubtedly
affected by the decisions by exam boards to change the grade boundaries for English
GCSE between January and July 2012. These decisions were subject of a national
legal challenge, in which the City Council participated, but the judgement handed down
in January 2013 did not support the grounds for challenge.

Floor standards

The DfE set the following floor standards for KS4 in 2012:

e 40% of pupils achieving 5+ A* - C grades including English and Maths (compared
with 35% in 2011); or

e Achieving at least the national median figure for three levels of progress between
KS2 and KS4in English and maths

The national median figures for English and Maths in 2012 were 70% in both subjects.

The published figures show that PACA was below the A* - C grades floor standard for
2012. As an Academy, it will be for the sponsors and the DfE to agree an improvement
plan to bring PACA above the floor standard for future years. LA officers will keep
closely in touch with PACA on progress with this.

In English and Maths, the published figures show much greater consistency across the
city’s schools and Academies in English than there was in Maths.

e In English, the range achieving A* - C across the nine schools and Academies
was from 63% to 77%, and in seven schools and Academies at least 70% of
students achieved a C grade or above.

e In Maths, the range achieving A* - C was from 43% to 77%; in only two schools
did over 70% of students achieve A* - C grades in Maths, and in three schools
and Academies less than half of Y11 students achieved at least a C grade

Closing the gap; disadvantaged students

In 2012 the DfE changed the way in which the proportion of all pupils who are
disadvantaged is calculated, to now include all pupils who had been eligible for free
school meals (FSM) in the last six years (‘Ever 6’) and children in care. By this
calculation, the proportion of Brighton & Hove KS4 students classed as ‘disadvantaged’
in 2011/12 was 27.4%, increasing from 26.6% in 2011 and a little higher than the
England figure of 25.3%. For individual schools and academies in Brighton & Hove, the
proportion of KS4 students classed as ‘disadvantaged ranged from 15% to 56%.

In 2012, the gap between FSM and non FSM students achieving 5 or more A* - C
grades including English and Maths improved very slightly to 31.8% points, compared

22

66



with 31.9% points in 2011. There was also a very slight improvement in the gap
between the proportion of disadvantaged students achieving A* - C in English and Maths
and other students, compared with 2011. For both groups (disadvantaged and ‘other’)
there was an improvement of around 4% points for both these measures.

In English the gap between the proportion of FSM and non FSM students making the
expected three levels of progress between KS2 and KS4 narrowed from 27.6% points in
2011 to 18.6% points in 2012, and in Maths it narrowed from 31.3% points to 28.6%
points.

Closing the gap: gender

The gap in the proportion of boys achieving 5+ A* - C grades including English and
Maths compared with girls improved slightly in 2012, from 8% to 7%, and was slightly
better than the SN average (8%) and the England average (10%). The scores for both
boys and girls improved, with a slightly better improvement for boys. Further
information, including the trend since 2006, which is uneven, can be found in the
appendices.

Closing the gap: SEN

The gap in the proportion of students with SEN achieving 5+ A* - C grades including
English and Maths compared with all other students worsened in 2012, from 44% to
51%, and was higher than the SN average (50%) and the England average (47%). The
score for students with SEN declined by 3% points compared with 2011, while the score
for all other students improved by 3% points. Further information, including the trend
since 2006 can be found in the appendices. Although there is no consistent trend in the
size of the SEN gap in Brighton & Hove schools, the figure for 2012 was the highest in
this seven year period. However, the proportion of these students achieving 5+ A*-C
grades including English and Maths in 2012 was much higher than in previous years,
other than 2011.

Value added

The performance tables published by the DfE in January 2013 include a wealth of value
added information, for the authority as a whole and for individual schools, which
compares actual performance at GCSE with expected performance given students KS2
test scores at the end of primary education. The tables no longer include ‘contextual
value added’ data, which takes into account other factors such as disadvantage. There
are value added tables for a range of measures, including 5+ A* - C grades including
English and Maths, ‘best 8’ average points scores, and achievement in English and
Maths. The tables also show the value added performance for different groups,
including disadvantaged students, and those with low, middle or high attainment in KS2
tests.

The 2012 performance tables show that in most cases, overall and for individual
schools, and for most groups of students, value added in Brighton & Hove is either in
line with or below the England benchmark figure. Only BACA was consistently
significantly above the England figure. This indicates the room for further improvement
which exists.

A significant amount of the value added data contained in the 2012 performance tables
was presented in graphical form at the two Members workshops in January and March.

23

67



The slides and additional papers used in these workshops can be made available on
request are attached to this document as an appendix.

School Effectiveness across the Secondary Sector in Brighton and Hove

Only one secondary school, Cardinal Newman Catholic School, was inspected by
Ofsted in 2011/12. It was judged to be ‘Good’ for overall effectiveness, with all
contributory grades at this level. In 2012/13, five schools and academies have been
inspected under the new inspection framework introduced in September 2012. The
overall effectiveness grade for PACA and BACA was ‘requires improvement’, although
BACA received ‘good’ grades for Leadership & Management, Quality of Teaching and
Behaviour & Safety. The overall effectiveness grades for Blatchington Mill, Hove Park
and Patcham High Schools were all ‘good’, in all three cases improving from
‘satisfactory’ in their previous inspections in 2010. It is expected that the remaining
three secondary schools (Dorothy Stringer, Longhill and Varndean) will be inspected
some time in 2013.

As with the primary phase, the new framework for inspection (from September 2012) is
likely to have a significant impact for schools. Schools previously judged as outstanding
will not be inspected (unless standards fall or there are causes for concern), and schools
judged as good will be inspected every five years. The grading ‘satisfactory’ has been
replaced with ‘requires improvement’ and these schools will be inspected more
frequently. Schools in a category will be monitored more closely.

The overall improvements which continue to be achieved across the city’s secondary
school sector are a result of focussed action to drive up attainment in individual schools,
and of joint development work and peer support and challenge within the Secondary
Schools Partnership (SSP). This work has been supported with funding and the
secondment of staff from the local authority. The authority has agreed with the SSP the
basis for ongoing resources for the SSP, which includes pooled funding from the schools
and Academies.

Performance of Children in Care at GCSE

Of the 42 Year 11 pupils in the Virtual School at the end of the last academic year, 34
were formally reported on to the DfE with regard to their GCSE or equivalent results.
These are the children who had been in the care of Brighton & Hove continuously for a
year on 31% March 2012. Given the small numbers involved, quite small changes in the
number of children achieving particular standards may appear to make large differences
in percentage terms in annual comparisons.

In Brighton & Hove two pupils achieved five A*- C GCSEs including English and Maths —
this equates to 6%. This is a significant decrease on last year's validated figure of
19.2% and is below the national average of 12%.

The alteration of the grade boundaries for GCSE English Language in 2012 had an
impact, with three young people who achieved grade C in their mocks only achieving a
D.

In terms of the overall number of GCSEs achieved in all subjects, grade C and above
there was a significant upward trend over the past three years:

2012 - 34 pupils achieved 76.5 GCSE passes, grade C and above

24

68



2011 - 26 pupils achieved 57 GCSE passes, grade C and above
2010 - 36 pupils achieved 27 GCSE passes, grade C and above

Of the 34 students 9 (26.5%) achieved 5A* - C at GCSE. (This was below the national
average of 31%,).

Of the 34 students 18 (53%) achieved 5 A* - G at GCSE. (This was higher than the
national average of 51%).

Of the 34 students, 27 (79%), achieved 1 A* - G at GCSE. (This was higher than the
national average of 73%).

15 students (44%) within the cohort of 34 had special educational needs. Of these 15
students, 12 were educated in special school provision. This equates to 35% of the
cohort. It is important to recognise the achievements of those pupils who achieved a
range of alternative qualifications that will enable their continued engagement in
education and ensure they continue to develop skills for life.

Securing improvement in KS3 and KS4

Government policy continues to be that it expects schools themselves, individually and
supporting each other, to be responsible for school improvement. In Brighton & Hove,
one way on which the secondary schools and academies have responded to this
challenge is through the formation of the Secondary Schools Partnership. The
Partnership has accepted collective responsibility for city wide improvement in the
secondary sector, and for the educational and personal progress of all 11 — 16 year old
learners (and those 16 — 18 year old learners in school sixth forms). The Partnership is
reviewing its Raising Attainment Plan (RAP), but retains as its vision for secondary
education in the city:

e We are passionately committed to changing students’ lives and transforming their
futures

e We believe that we have a collective responsibility for all students in the City, not just
those in our own schools

e We believe that we are stronger together and can achieve more through joint
practice development and partnership for the benefit of every young person in
Brighton and Hove

e We, therefore, pledge to lead our schools, our students, our staff and our governors
to work together collaboratively to achieve outstanding outcomes for all

Resources amounting to around £300,000 have been devolved by the authority to the
Partnership in support of the RAP, and it has been agreed that this will continue in
2013/14. Most significantly, these resources include staffing, including the Adviser for
Secondary Teaching and Learning and funding for part time seconded teachers from
schools, and that part of the time of the Behaviour and Attendance Partnership Manager
relating to the secondary sector.

The Partnership and the RAP are key vehicles for securing KS3 and KS4 improvement
across the city, alongside the intensive work which each school individually is
undertaking to drive up achievement. However, local authorities retain statutory duties
for ensuring sufficient and high quality education in their area, and have continuing

25

69



powers to intervene where performance is judged to be inadequate or where the well
being of children is at risk.

In Brighton and Hove this relationship, in which the authority devolves responsibility for
quality, performance and development to the secondary schools and academies, and
holds them to account for achieving agreed objectives, is expressed through the
Compact, which was approved by the Cabinet earlier this year. The Compact includes
clear, agreed objectives, outcomes and processes by which targets for improvement will
be shared and monitored.

Key Stage 5

At AS level the pass rate (i.e. the proportion of entries awarded grades A* - E) for the
city was 89%, compared with just under 87% nationally. Over 56% of all AS entries for
the city were at BHASVIC, and almost 92% of entries at BHASVIC were awarded grades
A* - E. At Blatchington Mill, Cardinal Newman and Varndean College around 86%
achieved an AS pass grade. For Hove Park and PACA the figures were 83% and 74.5%
respectively. The new sixth form at BACA is still very small and the focus of its
curriculum currently is on BTEC courses, with a small number of complementary AS
levels. Given the small number of students, it would not be appropriate to comment on
these results.

Almost 40% of AS entries in the city were awarded A* - B grades, compared with just
over 35% nationally. At BHASVIC 45.6% of entries were A* — B, and at Varndean
College 36.4%. In the four established school sixth forms, the proportion of high grades
ranged from 14% to 28%.

At A level, pass rates (i.e. achieving a grade A* - E) are higher locally and nationally
because generally students will have dropped their weaker AS subjects or changed to
more appropriate courses. Some students also withdraw from courses in year if they
believe they will fail them, so that they can concentrate on stronger subjects. This
resulted in a pass rate in 2012 of 98.1%, compared with 98.6% nationally. Hove Park
and PACA achieved 100% A* - E grades.

The proportion of high grades A* - B was 53.3%, compared with the England average of
50.5%. The figures were much more variable between schools and colleges across the
city. BHASVIC achieved 58.4% high grade passes, and at Varndean College and
Cardinal Newman the figure was just over 50%. High grade passes at the other three
school sixth forms ranged from 23% to 46%. There was particularly strong improvement
in high grades at Blatchington Mill, where 8.6% of entries were awarded A* grades.

Another valuable indicator of performance at A level is ‘average points per entry ‘. This
is calculated on a scale where an A* grade is awarded 300 points and an E grade 150
points. Each individual grade is worth 30 points, and so the England average points per
entry in 2012 (210.2) was almost exactly equivalent to a C grade. For Brighton & Hove,
the average points per entry score was 214.8. This figure is strongly impacted by the
score for BHASVIC (220.8), as over 50% of entries across the city were for BHJASVIC
students. Cardinal Newman, Blatchington Mill and Varndean College all achieved
average points per entry scores at or just above the England average. For Blatchington
Mill, this was a significant improvement of around 18 points on 2011.

26

70



Brighton and Hove Sixth Forms providing careers information, advice and
guidance

As part of a local collaborative project, four Sixth Forms (HPS, BMS, BACA & PACA)
and the local authority worked together to organise a joint Careers event for post 16
learners in February 2012. The day was unique for two reasons - one it was the first
event of its kind to bring together staff and students from the four Sixth Forms, and
secondly it was aimed at supporting learners wishing to progress to employment rather
than to Higher Education.

The event showcased local opportunities with a Market Place exhibiting local employers
and training organisations, national speakers and lots of interactive workshops focusing
on Work Preparation, Employability Skills, Apprenticeships, Enterprise and Self
Employment and more.

Attended by over 120 young people studying on both Level 2 and Level 3 courses the
event was successful in raising awareness of the opportunities available locally,
highlighting the benefits of alternative to HE routes and inspiring young people to be
proactive rather than reactive in their career plans and future job search.

The event was positively evaluated with over 80% of learners feeding back that they
found Market Place useful or very useful and over 90% of learners found the workshop
on Employability and Apprenticeships useful/very useful.

Comments from participants included:

e ‘It made things much clearer for me’
‘Good to hear about options other than university’

e ‘Today was useful as | had no idea what | wanted to do. This has opened up my
mind".

The event will now run for a second year, strengthening relationships between the Sixth
Forms and partnerships with local employers as well as supporting young peoples’
progression to positive outcomes and thereby reducing the numbers of young people not
in employment, education or training (NEET).

27

71




Not in Employment, Education, or Training (NEET)

Reducing the proportion of 16 — 18 year olds who are NEET continues to be an
important development priority both locally and nationally, especially as we move
towards the raising of the participation age to 17 in September 2013. In Brighton &
Hove, there was a steady reduction in the NEET figure (with only a small increase in
2009/10), from well over 10% in 2006/07 to 7.5% in 2010/11 (November 2010 — January
2011 three month average). The three month average figure for November 2011 —
January 2012 increased to 8.3%. However, because the way in which NEET figures are
calculated was changed by the DfE in 2011, like for like comparisons are not
straightforward. Equally, because the number of ‘not knowns’ in Brighton & Hove was
relatively low (because of the tracking and support capacity provided by the Youth
Employability Service), comparisons with other local authorities are not straightforward
either.

In 2012/13, in particular through the work of the Youth Employability service in tracking
and supporting young people into learning, both the NEET and ‘unknowns’ figures have
improved further. The three month average figure for November 2012 — January 2013,
published by the DfE, was 6.7%, and the proportion of ‘not knowns’ was 4.6%. These
were the best ever 16-18 NEET and Not Known results for Brighton & Hove. The DfE
data for 2012/13 shows that Brighton & Hove was the most improved local authority in
the South East over the period January 2012 — January 2013, and one of the most
improved throughout England. As a result of the reduction in young people who are
NEET, there was a 5.9% increase in 16-18 young people ‘In Learning’.

However, these figures indicate that there is still work to be done to achieve full
participation of 16 year olds in learning, training or employment with training from
September 2013, as required by the Raising Participation Age (RPA) legislation.
Through the RPA project, the authority is working with schools, colleges and training
providers, and with the Youth Employability Service and other agencies, on a range of
initiatives to prepare for RPA, including developing new provision, improving transition
processes and providing guidance to young people.

4. Special Schools

Most recent Ofsted inspections of the authority’s six special schools have found three to
be offering a ‘good’ overall standard of education and three to be ‘outstanding’. These
judgments include an assessment of the standards achieved by learners.

The latest inspection in the summer of 2012 found Downs View School to be offering
outstanding education in all areas and subsequently the school has been visited by
advisers from the DfE as an example of best practice.

Given the low starting points and complex needs of most pupils in special schools, it is
not appropriate to compare attainment with mainstream schools. For most pupils in
special schools, their severe and complex learning difficulties mean that their skills and
abilities fall below the level measured by national tests and GCSE examinations. Their
progress is assessed using ‘p scales’, early National Curriculum levels and a range of
alternative accreditations. Where pupils’ ability is such that they can access national
tests and examinations, they are still likely to have fallen well behind other pupils of

28

72



similar age as a result of complex special needs, disrupted schooling and/or difficult life
and family circumstances.

The SEN Partnership Board has commissioned work to determine means of using P
scale and other data to compare the progress of pupils across the LA.

Some pupils with complex needs and BESD have achieved success at GCSE or
equivalent level and the challenge for the coming year is to see if the most able pupils
can be supported to reach Grade C and above in core subjects.

5. Attendance and Exclusions

Attendance

The most recent validated data (for 2010/11) shows that both overall and persistent absence at
primary level in Brighton & Hove continued to be below the national average. For overall absence,
the figure was 4.4% (national figure 5.0%), and for persistent absence the figure was 3.4%
(national figure 3.9%). At secondary level we continued to have higher levels of absence for both
overall and persistent absence compared to the national average. For overall absence, the figure
was 7.1% (national figure 6.5%), and for persistent absence the figure was 9.8% (national figure
8.4%).

For both primary and secondary phases, the figures for overall absence were markedly better than
for 2009/10 and in each case almost 20% lower than they were in 2006/07.

Data recently received from DfE for the autumn and spring terms suggests that the figures for
primary schools were closer to England and statistical neighbour averages, and for secondary
schools they continues to be higher than England and statistical neighbour averages. The
reasons behind these figures are currently being analysed.

Latest national figures show that while 184,000 pupils miss 20 per cent of lessons, more than
430,000 pupils miss 15 per cent of lessons a year — the equivalent of having a month off school a
year.

Persistent absence is a serious problem for pupils. Much of the work children miss when
they are off school is never made up, leaving these pupils at a considerable
disadvantage for the remainder of their school career. There is also clear evidence of a
link between poor attendance at school and low levels of achievement:

Of pupils who miss more than 50 per cent of school, only three per cent manage to
achieve five A* to Cs including English and maths.

Of pupils who miss between 10 per cent and 20 per cent of school, only 35 per cent
manage to achieve five A* to C GCSEs including English and maths.

Of pupils who miss less than five per cent of school, 73 per cent achieve five A* to Cs
including English and maths.

29

73



Ofsted will continue to take into account the number of pupils over the ‘persistently
absent’ threshold when looking at a school’s performance on attendance. They are
exploring ways of taking this new threshold into account in the 2012 framework.

With the recent decision to delete the Education Welfare Officer (EWO) posts, work
previously undertaken by these officers has now been transferred to schools. Brighton
& Hove secondary schools have chosen a number of options to address this with some
employing their own EWO whilst others are using current staff to undertake this
important role. Primary schools are consulting with the local authority on how they can
undertake these duties to continue to improve attendance.

Attendance at school and access to appropriate education is key if children are to
achieve their full potential. The Access to Education Team, on behalf of the local
authority, will continue to undertake the LA statutory duties in relation to school
attendance and monitor school attendance across the city including schools’ compliance
with the range of legislative acts that relate to school attendance. The team will provide
advice and guidance on good practice identifying areas needing further development.

In order to ensure the work undertaken by schools is consistent and that appropriate
strategies and interventions are put in place to improve attendance the Access to
Education will be consulting with all schools to look at ways in which we can work
together to achieve this.

Exclusions

Permanent Exclusions

There were 9 permanent exclusions from Brighton & Hove schools in 2011/12. This is
less than those recorded in 2010/11.

Fixed Term Exclusions

The fixed term exclusion statistics are relatively high. This is in many cases the result of
the policy within Brighton & Hove to ensure that unofficial exclusion, whereby a child or
young person is sent home to ‘cool off’ for periods of time, is eliminated. This has been
rigorously implemented in the city because of the need to comply with DfE statutory
guidelines, and to be explicit about safeguarding responsibilities for children and young
people. There is at least anecdotal evidence that this is not the case in other authorities
where the practice still exists.

Fixed term exclusion is also used to allow time for longer term solutions to be negotiated
and arranged to avoid the need for permanent exclusions.

Reducing the numbers of fixed term exclusions is an absolute priority because of the
obvious correlation between days lost to learning and future achievement and
attainment for children and young people. Specific strategies to address this will be the
focus of both the primary and secondary Behaviour and Attendance Partnerships for the
forthcoming academic year. It is already anticipated that there will be a reduction in fixed
term exclusion in the secondary phase because of the introduction of initiatives, such as
the use of restorative justice in schools and the use of an alternative school day.

30

74



| Attached Report

Black and Minority Ethnic Attainment in Brighton and Hove Schools -
2012

The following information is based on the attainment of pupils in our maintained schools and two
secondary phase academies. Whilst attainment by ethnicity is a significant indicator, even at
Brighton and Hove local authority level the numbers in some of the categories are too low to be
statistically significant and any numbers under 10 pupils have been suppressed.

Many young people from minority ethnic backgrounds achieve at the highest level, but for some

groups, the gaps remain. One of the biggest barriers to attaining can be for pupils for whom
English is an additional language and we have data on the attainment gap for these pupils.

e BME and English as an Additional Language Trends

We currently have 10.3% of our pupils (reception year and above) who have English as an
additional language. This is lower than the National average which is 15.1%.

Census Brighton & Hove Pupils with
English as an Additional Language %
Trend
12.0
11.0 -
10.0 /’%
9.0 7 —o—All
8.0 Linear (All)
] /
S 3 3 9 = o 0

In Jan 2013 there were 3,171 pupils with EAL speaking 97 different languages other than
English, attending Brighton and Hove schools and Academies. The two most widely spoken
languages other than English are Arabic (768 pupils) and Bengali (345 pupils).

The LA provides an Ethnic Minority Achievement Service (EMAS) available to schools and many
buy in their service.

31

75



Census Brighton & Hove Ethnic Minority
% of Compulsory School Age Pupils
Trend
22.00
20.00 /
18.00 —
e ALL
16.00 -
——Linear (ALL)
14-00 T T T T T 1
S 8 8 S o S
s 5 § £ 5 5

As at Jan 2012 we had 20.7% ethnic minority pupils — this has increased from 15.2% in 2007.

The three biggest non-white British ethnicities represented are:

White - other 5.0%
= Mixed dual background - other 2.6%
® Mixed dual background - white & Asian 2.3%

e Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP) Teacher
Assessments at end of Reception Year

EYFSP 2012 Attainment by Ethnicity Category

. Average | Difference
c al\tn:lzr Sub Category I'-'"‘uo ?Ifs EYFSP to LA
gory P Total average
British 1993 92.61 -1.0
Irish 14 88.29 3.3
Traveller of Irish
White Heritage X X X
Gypsy/Roma X X X
Any other White
background 162 89.67 1.9
White and Black
Caribbean 44 92.64 -1.0
Mixed/Dual | White and Black African 54 90.94 0.7
Heritage | White and Asian 88 93.24 -1.6
Any other mixed
background 70 93.16 -1.6
Indian 14 95.93 -4.3
Asian or Pakistani X X X
Asian | Bangladeshi 38 84.08 7.5
British Any other Asian
background 55 83.27 8.3
Black or | Caribbean X X X
Black : !
African: Sudanese 18 87.72 3.9

76

32



British African: Other Black
African 33 87.12 4.5
Any other Black
background
Chinese
Any Other Ethnic Group 39 83.82 7.8
Refused X X X
Information not yet obtained 21 87.90 3.7
Not known 114 86.53 51
LA Overall 2785 91.6

For the categories with enough pupils to not be suppressed, the biggest negative difference to
the LA result (8.3%) was for pupils with an ethnicity of any other Asian background and the
largest positive difference (4.3%) was for pupils with an ethnicity of /ndian.

EAL to non-EAL pupils’ gap in the average EYFSP score
EYFSP 2008 EYFSP 2009 EYFSP 2010 | EYFSP 2011 | EYFSP 2012
10.4% 12.0% 8.0% 8.1% 7.3%

Over time, the gap is decreasing. This is against an increase in overall attainment.

11% of all the pupils in the 2012 cohort were known to have English as an Additional Language
and 19% of the lowest 20% scoring pupils had English as an Additional Language.

The Early Years consultants work closely with the specialist EMAS early years team. Additional
support is offered to observe pupils to gather evidence against the scale points.

e Key Stage 1 (Teacher assessment at end of year 2)

EAL Attainment Gap Trend — percentage of pupils meeting the expected level (2)

Reading KS1 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H EAL 72.0% 77.0% 74.0% 72.0% 77.0%
B&H Non EAL 85.0% 85.0% 84.0% 86.0% 88.0%
B&H Gap 13.0% 8.0% 10.0% 14.0% 11.0%
Statistical Neighbours Gap 8.0% 9.0% 8.0% 8.0% 7.0%
England Gap 7.0% 6.0% 5.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Writing KS1 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H EAL 71.0% 75.0% 69.0% 65.0% 71.0%
B&H Non EAL 82.0% 82.0% 81.0% 83.0% 83.0%
B&H Gap 11.0% 7.0% 12.0% 18.0% 12.0%
Statistical Neighbours Gap 8.0% 10.0% 7.0% 8.0% 7.0%
England Gap 7.0% 6.0% 5.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Maths KS1 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H EAL 89.0% 86.0% 84.0% 82.0% 88.0%
B&H Non EAL 92.0% 91.0% 91.0% 92.0% 92.0%
B&H Gap 3.0% 5.0% 7.0% 10.0% 4.0%
Statistical Neighbours Gap 6.0% 5.0% 6.0% 5.0% 5.0%
England Gap 6.0% 5.0% 4.0% 4.0% 3.0%

33

77



We tend to see more changes in this data year on year due to cohort fluctuations and the
different ability levels of pupils within the EAL definition, however in reading and writing the
Brighton and Hove gap is larger than that for our statistical neighbours and nationally.

KS1 2012 Percentage of pupils meeting the expected level (2) by ethnicity

Ethnicity Code I;‘l:pflfs Reading | Writing | Maths
Unknown 22
Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi 30
Asian or Asian British - Indian 15
Asian or Asian British - any other Asian

background 31
Asian or Asian British - Pakistani X
Other Black African 28
Black or Black British - Caribbean X
Black or Black British - any other Black

background 12
Sudanese 17
Chinese X
Mixed - any other mixed background 68
Mixed - White and Asian 54
Mixed - White and Black African 58
Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 33
Information not obtained 36
Any other ethnic group 32
Parent/pupil preferred not to say X
White - British 1864
White - Irish 15
Traveller of Irish Heritage X
White - Any Other Background 139
Gypsy/Romany X
ALL - LA 2484

When looking at the percentage of pupils meeting the expected level by ethnicity code, for the
categories with enough pupils to not be suppressed, pupils in only three ethnicity codes are
below the LA level for maths and across the three main subjects.

Bangladeshi pupils perform significantly lower than other ethnicities. Indian, mixed white & Asian
and white Irish perform better than the LA level in all three subjects.

o Key Stage 2 (National Tests at end of Year 6)

34

78



EAL Attainment Gap Trend — percentage of pupils meeting the expected level (4)

KS2 Level 4+ English & Maths 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H Non-EAL 71% 75% 72% 79% 74% 80%
B&H EAL 60% 68% 68% 75% 61% 74%
B&H EAL Gap 11% 7% 4% 4% 13% 6%
Statistical Neighbours EAL Gap 7% 9% 8% 6% 5% 3%
England EAL Gap 7% 6% 6% 3% 3% 2%

*Teacher Assessment data due to boycott of tests

The EAL gap has fluctuated since 2007and has narrowed since last year, whist at the same
time, overall attainment went up.

KS2 2012 Percentage of pupils meeting the expected level (4) by Ethnicity

% English
KS2 2012 Number & Maths Difference
Ethnicity description of pupils Level 4+ to LA
White and Asian 41 87.8 -9.1
Information Not Yet Obtained 15 86.7 -8.0
White - Irish 14 85.7 -7.0
White - British 1887 79.4 -0.7
Any Other White Background 134 79.1 -0.4
Chinese X X X
Indian X X X
Any Other Mixed Background 59 76.3 2.4
Not known X X
Refused X X
White and Black Caribbean 27 741 4.6
Bangladeshi 23 73.9 4.8
Any Other Ethnic Group 34 73.5 5.2
Any Other Asian Background 26 73.1 5.6
White and Black African 29 72.4 6.3
Black - Sudanese 12 66.7 12.0
Any Other Black Background 11 54.5 24.2
Pakistani X X X
Black Caribbean X X X
Traveller of Irish Heritage X X X
Other Black African 18 38.9 39.8
All - LA 2372 78.7

When looking at the percentage of pupils meeting the expected level by ethnicity code, for the
categories with enough pupils to not be suppressed, pupils in three ethnicity codes, (other black
African, any other black background and black Sudanese) are significantly below the LA level.
White & Asian pupils performed well above the LA level.

Ethnicity and Free School Meals

This analysis adds in the deprivation element and the data has been grouped into the broader
categories to avoid the need to suppress further data. The key indicator for deprivation used by

the Department for Education is pupils whose parents have claimed for and who are eligible for
free school meals.

35

79



No of No of
% % Pupils Pupils Total %
English English | English | English | English
Brighton and Hove & Maths | & Maths | & Maths | & Maths | & Maths Total
Key Stage 2 2012 Level 4+ | Level 4+ | Level 4+ | Level 4+ | Level 4+ Pupils
Ethnicity group FSM Not FSM FSM Not FSM All All
White 59.5 83.6 346 1691 79.5 2037
Mixed / Dual Background 65.7 81.8 35 121 78.2 156
Asian or Asian British X X X X 71.2 66
Black or Black British 30.0 57.6 10 33 51.2 43
Any Other Ethnic Group 80.0 70.8 10 24 73.5 34
Information Not Yet
Obtained 0.0 86.7 0 15 86.7 15
Chinese X X X X X
Not known X X X X X
Refused X X X X X X
LA Total 59.9 82.6 414 1958 78.6 2372

* Suppressed fewer than 10 FSM or total pupils

When looking at the percentage of pupils meeting the expected level by ethnicity code, for the
categories with enough pupils to not be suppressed, the data shows that only 30% of black or

black British pupils in receipt of free school meals meet the expected level at the end of primary

school in English and Maths.

There were only 10 pupils in this category in 2012, however this small group’s results were

48.6% below the LA total.

e Key Stage 4 (GCSE & equivalent at the end of Year 11)

KS4 GSCE and Equivalents by | NUmoe’ | R+
Ethnicity 2012 Pupils E&M
White and Asian 37 70.3
White and Black Caribbean 21 61.9
Any other White background 95 61.1
Any other Ethnic Group 20 60.0
Irish 17 58.8
African: Sudanese 17 58.8
Any other Asian background 19 57.9
White British 1819 55.9
Any other mixed background 48 52.1
White and Black African 34 50.0
Bangladeshi 28 50.0
Any other Black background 11 36.4
African: Other Black African 17 35.3
Indian X X
Pakistani X X
Caribbean X X
Chinese X X
African Asian X X
Refused X X

80

36



| Information not yet obtained | X | X |

In 2012 the lowest performance ethnic group (other black African) remained unchanged between
key stage 2 and key stage 4, as did the highest performing ethnic group (white & Asian).

=] o o g
= = £ =
2 2 Q@ Qo
(o] (o] *
c c <% <
w ., w ., + = + =
(SN = O c 1005 m“
(=] C = » (/2]
= L = L =< =<
Q| 9= | 129g o
: < < g2 &
Brighton and Hove KS4 + + ‘S W ow
2012 “ @ o )
o~ o~ =z =

Provisional Data

FSM FSM FSM FSM

Ethnicity - Main Group Yes No Yes No
Mixed/Dual Heritage 28.6 62.5 21 120
White 26.1 61.3 283 1648
Black or Black British 16.7 52.8 12 36
Any Other Ethnic Group X X X X
Asian or Asian British X X X X
Chinese X X X X
Not Yet Obtained X X X X
Refused X X X X
LA Overall 26.9 61.2 331 1882

When looking at the percentage of pupils meeting the expected level by ethnicity code, for the
categories with enough pupils to not be suppressed, the data shows that only 16.7% of black or
black British pupils in receipt of free school meals meet the expected level at the end of primary
school in English and Maths. Although, as at the end of key stage 2, there number is pupils in
this group is small at 12, this is a further drop in numbers meeting expectations since the end of
primary school at key stage 2.

From the Department for Education Website page ‘Ethnic Minority Achievement’:

There is no single intervention that achieves the best possible results for every disadvantaged or
minority ethnic child, but evidence does show that schools are independently important for
narrowing attainment gaps.

Research suggests that schools which are successful in raising the attainment of minority ethnic
pupils share broadly similar approaches to the creation of a genuinely inclusive school
community. This is true whether their intake is highly diverse or predominantly white.

These schools are strongly committed to an ethos that stresses:

high achievement

equal opportunities

the valuing of cultural diversity

the provision of a secure environment

the importance of challenging racism

the centrality of Ethnic Minority Achievement (EMA) work
partnership with parents and the wider community.

37

81



The ways in which schools create such an ethos differ according to individual contexts and
specific needs, but the vision remains essentially the same:

Pupils and parents are aware of, and appreciate, the schools’ stand on race equality
because the schools have made it explicit. This creates a positive climate for learning
which underpins and contributes to the schools’ success.

Creating an inclusive school which enables all pupils to thrive takes time and requires
considerable effort and commitment at all levels. In the most successful schools, no
stone is left unturned.

Where schools have used it effectively, Ethnic Minority Achievement Grant funding has
been a catalyst for the development of high-quality provision for minority ethnic and
bilingual pupils, enabling them to achieve well.

Successful schools routinely monitor the way they use the additional resources to ensure
that it results in improved outcomes for targeted pupils.

Good-quality partnership teaching between mainstream and Ethnic Minority Achievement
staff is one of the most effective forms of whole-school continuing professional
development.

High-quality assessment, tracking and target-setting procedures, for individuals and
groups, are key. The systematic collection and analysis of data enable schools to identify
need and deploy resources effectively.

38

82



83

39



Agenda

1. Welcome and Introduction ..............cceeviiiviiiinnnennn. 10:00

HOW are we dOIng') 2. TEIMS USE......eeeieeiiieeeeiiie e et e e eiee e 10:05
Educatlon Update Workshop for B.KeyStage 4 ... 10:15
Councmors 4. Key Stage 2 ......ccoceuiiiiccccccc e 11.15

B EYFS o 11:45

EYFS, KS2 and KS4
January 2013

Brighton & Hove

City Council

Definitions Key Stage 4
« Attainment — what level the children and young people achieve Ofsted Judgements
(e.g. Level 2, Level 4 etc)
+ Progress — the levels or average point scores (APS) that pupils el OIERICHERNEREES
make grade
Blatchington Mill Feb 2010 3
» Value Added - the difference the school makes BACA Dec 2012 3
Cardinal Newman May 2012 2
» Floor Standard — the minimum level for schools to achieve (set by R y
government) Dorothy Stringer Dec 2009 1
Hove Park Feb 2010 3
« RAISEonline - Reporting and Analysis for Improvement through Longhill Sept 2010 2
School Self-Evaluation Patcham Sept 2010 3
» Fischer Family Trust — estimates of expected performance PACA Dec 2012 3
taking into account prior attainment and socio-economic factors, . Varndean Dec 2009 2
e o

KS4 Floor Standards 2012 in Brighton and Hove secondary
Key Stage 4 schools and academies

Secondary School Floor Standards 2012

* >40% 5+ A* to C grades including English and 3 levels of progress in
Maths English (> 70%)

3 levels of progress
in Maths (> 70%)

or:

» Exceeding the England median figure for achieving
three levels of progress in English and Maths (both
70% in 2012)

Cardinal Newman'
Dorothy Stringer

Varndean
BACA

Hove Park
Patcham High
Blatchington Mill

Expected to rise to 45% in 2014 and 50% in 2015

> 40% A* - C including
English and Maths

Longhill

|

Bl & Hove
il

84



GCSE trends: 5+ A* - C including English and Maths
Local Authority 2007/08  2008/09  2009/10  2010/11  2011/12
Bath and North East Somerset 57.2 59.9 61.0 64.2 57.5
Bournemouth 48.9 51.5 56.5 57.4 60.7
Brighton and Hove 44.5 44.5 49.1 52.8 56.4
Bristol, City of 35.5 40.2 46.2 50.2 51.6
Plymouth 46.3 49.1 54.2 56.8 57.5
Portsmouth 38.5 39.5 42.8 45.5 52.4
Reading 52.7 52.9 54.7 55.9 60.7
Sheffield 40.6 44.5 49.2 49.4 55.6
Southampton 42.3 43.1 47.5 51.7 54.4
Southend-on-Sea 55.0 57.8 61.8 65.0 61.8
York 53.8 59.2 59.1 62.1 62.7
i g g 47.1 49.8 53.3 55.8 57.5
South East Region 51.7 53.7 57.5 59.6 0.2
East Sussex 46.1 50.8 55.4 58.4
West Sussex 51.5 52.2 55.3 58.6
(State-funded sector) 48.4 50.9 55.3 58.4

GCSE trends: Achieving expected levels of progress in English
Etoeal-Authority ———————2008/69——2009/16——2616/H+—201112—
Bath and North East Somerset 73.2 75.1 78.2 66.4
Bournemouth 67.2 721 68.7 71.4
Brighton and Hove 61.5 66.5 64.1 70.4
Bristol, City of 61.7 68.6 69.1 68.0
Plymouth 62.1 68.7 71.8 69.7
Portsmouth 56.1 62.2 63.7 62.8
Reading 66.6 72.0 66.5 69.9
Sheffield 59.2 64.6 65.0 67.2
Southampton 62.1 62.6 67.2 67.5
Southend-on-Sea 729 75.7 75.9 68.5
York 69.8 70.2 75.7 71.5

i gt 65.1 69.2 70.2 68.3
South East Region 67.5 7.7 72.2 68.4
East Sussex 63.0 68.2 70.0
West Sussex 68.4 73.6 74.6
England (State-funded sector) 65.3 69.9 72.0 68.1

GCSE trends: Achieving expected levels of progress in Maths
Local Authority 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011712
Bath and North East Somerset 65.4 66.0 68.4 67.4
Bournemouth 59.0 65.6 65.3 68.8
Brighton and Hove 51.6 56.1 59.4 58.6
Bristol, City of 47.0 53.8 56.0 61.6
Plymouth 53.4 55.8 59.8 64.2
Portsmouth 44.2 52.1 51.0 61.7
Reading 63.8 64.9 66.8 72.4
Sheffield 52.5 58.6 57.6 65.0
Southampton 50.9 55.9 58.6 66.0
Southend-on-Sea 66.0 68.9 70.5 70.4
York 63.7 64.9 67.4 741

i ig g 56.6 60.7 62.1 67.2
South East Region 62.5 66 67.8 70.8
East Sussex 60.8 65 66.3
West Sussex 59.4 64.2 66.6
England (State-funded sector) 58.4 62.5 64.9 68.7

8 Best Value Added: Performance Tables 2010/11 and 2011/12

1040 -

1030

1020

1010

1000

Value added
g
8

=) =1 s 5 35
&|&|& & & & R
Blatchington| Brighton | Cardinal  Dorothy
Mill School | Aldridge | Newm Stringer
and Sixth | Community | Catholic ~ School
Form College Academy | School

Hove Park
chool an:

Sixth Form

Longhill High
S

201011
201112

chool

2010111

Patcham
High School

Portslade
Aldridge
c

ommunity

Academy

2010111

Vamdean
School

Online)

Value added

8 Best Value Added for Free School Meal / Children Looked After Disadvantaged Group and Other

Pupils: Performance Tables 2011/12

1080

1060

1040
1020 . °

1000

o
9280
|
960
Ld
\ .
940
920 |
900 +
880
860 T
) ) o < | @
3|E(3|2(8|8|3|8
ZlE|lZ| Bz Ela|E
PlEl2 2B 8|k 2
5 8 8 8
Blatchington  BACA Cardinal Dorothy
Mill Ne: Stringer

o

Ll
3%
Ak
Pk
<]
Hove Park
School

FSMICLA

Longhill

Other pupils

P
H

Other pupils
FSMICLA
Other pupils

PACA ‘

L] .
318383 %
Zlelz|E|lE| 5
plalb|l ek 2
8 5 ]
Varndean Brighton & = England
Hove
(RAISE
Online)

.H. .

85

Value added

8 Best Value Added for Prior Attainment Group: Performance Tables 2011/12

1080

1060

1040

1020

1000

353/83535535%533

Sl2|E|2|2E|2| 2|52
H - H =

Blatchington BACA | Cardinal | Dorothy
il Newman | Stringer

High

Middle

High

Hove Park

3
3

Middle
High

Longhill

z
=

Middle
High
Low

Patcham

Middle

PACA

High

L
Middle
High

Vamdean

High |

H
3

H
&

High

Middle
Middle

Brighton & | England
Hove

(RAISE
Online)




EBC Subjects Value Added Performance Tables 2011/12 " . ’
EBC English Value Added for Prior Attainment Group: Performance Tables 2011/12
1010
1010
1005
1005
o 1000
3 o 1000
® 3
H k]
s 3
995 3
> ees
.
990
990
985 : -
srtsssrrsesstgysrry dsesssse s tszsslsszesy ses Tl T T 7
Zegtgosetonc ooy Fefetgocetplisetpos ety e e = £ zle slzlelglzlelglz olsz]els £
EEEE = = 8585235852585 32858% 8 3z 2532533 532533533 53z28 5
22|25 a8 =35 35235352253 5823582523582 523528238582 s £/58(3|2/38|8 3823323823327 F
B E WS E EW B E AT B E R HE RG] g H e =S ETEECIETCIET (BT £
2|~ 2~ kg - = ER 2|7 2|~ 2|
i X Blatchington Brighton | Cardinal | Dorothy | HovePark Longhil | Patcham ' Portslade | Vamdean Erighton& | England
Blatchington  Brighton | Cardinal | Dorothy | HovePark | LonghillHigh PatchamHigh| Portslade | Vamdean Will School _Aldridge | Newman |~ Stringer | School and High SchoolHigh School Aldridge | Schoal e
MilSchool ~ Aldridge | Newman | Stinger  Schooland School | _Aldridge School and Sixth Community Catholic | School | Sixth Form Community (RAISE
andSixth  Community  Catholic School | Sixth Form Community Form  Academy | School Centre ‘Academy Online)
FormCollege  Academy | School Centre ‘Academy College
EBC Mathematics Value Added for Prior Attainment Group: Performance Tables 2011/12 EBC English Value Added for Free School Meal / Children Looked After Disadvantaged Group and
Other Pupils: Performance Tables 2011/12
010 1010
1005
1005 >
; —_— o g W gl m . .
1 . e ki . . o o
3 N D 2 °
. Z e
950 . -
B sTelalzlelalzlelalzlelalzle ezl 2lal 2l 2lal 2 2l <zl 2lal 2] 2l el 2 e = o
3|2 8 5|28z 25z 2332332328523z 238z 23532 S| 2 5 2|5 |2/ 5|28/ g | 2 g 2/ g | 28 |2 g 8 | 2 g 2
b e 1~ A 1 et = et 1 e e - e - - 1 g% &l 8|2|B8|e|3|&|8|.|8|2|2|8|%|E|8|a|t%
| | glelgl Elz | Elglslg | ElglElglelagl Bl IElg ElalE
3|3 » 3% 8 ? 8 7 3 P 3z P ¥ P 8|D 3 D|z P &
Blatchington Brighton | Cardinal | Dorothy | HovePark Longhill | Patcham Portslade |Varndean | Brighton & England & 5 5 & 8 8 5 5 E 5 8
Mill School | Aldridge | Newman | Stringer | School and High SchoolHigh School Aldridge | School e
d Sixth | C ity Catholic | School | Sixth Fe c it RAISE
o | atsoery | ectisal | T | Mure el e iatchingon  BACA | Cardnal | Dorothy | Hove Park  Longhill | Pstcham | PACA | Vamdean | Brighton | England
College i ewman | Stringer | School fo
Online)

Value added

EBC Mathematics Value Added for Free School Meal / Children Looked After Disadvantaged Group KS4: dlfferences In performance between boys and

and Other Pupils: Performance Tables 2011/12 girls

1010
« The gender gap in Brighton & Hove schools has widened since 2007, and

in the last two years has been similar to the historic trend for Statistical
1005 neighbours and England

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

sults

1000 5 -
[s] H "
- B&H Boys 43% 43% 41% 47% 49% 53%
L o
o5 1 . | B . B&H Girls 44% 46% 48% 51% 57% 60%
B&H gender gap 1% 3% 7% 4% 8% 7%
- i B&H Boys cohort 1170 1180 1204 1232 1221 1154
B&H Girls cohort 1140 1160 1085 1137 1103 1059
9285 T
aggéggségégggégggéaégg SN gender gap 9% 8% 8% 9% 7% 8%
|5 % || s 7 %/ 3 5 0|5 5 50 5P ilD s England gender gap | 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 10%
] k] -] ] <] =] <] -] -1 k- -]
Blatchington  BACA Cardinal Dorothy | HovePark  Longhill | Patcham PACA Varndean Brighton & England
Mill Nes Stringer School Hove
(RAISE
Online) A & Hove

5 Capncil

86



KS4 Vulnerable groups: FSM

» The FSM gap has widened over recent years, and now
exceeds quite markedly the SN and England averages.
However, the underlying attainment for both groups is

KS4 Vulnerable groups: SEN

» The SEN gap widened in 2012, and was above the
SN and England gaps.

Improving. Results 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Results 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 B&H SEN 8% 15% 12% 13% 22% 19%
B&H FSM 20% 19% 22% 22% 26% 27% B&H non SEN 52% 55% 56% 62% 66% 69%
B&H non-FSM 47% 49% 48% 53% 57% 62% B&H SEN cohort 454 560 572 649 690 585
B&H FSM cohort 306 330 334 337 337 332 B&H non SEN cohort 1850 1778 1717 1718 1632 1628
B&H non FSM cohort | 1998 2008 1955 | 2032 | 1987 1881 B&H gap 24% | 42% | 44% | 49% | 44% 51%
B&H gap 27% 30% | 26% | 32% | 32% 35% SN gap 45% | 47% | 47% | 49% | 50% 50%
SN gap 29% | 30% | 28% | 30% | 32% | 31% England gap 44% | 45% | 45% | 46% | 48% | 47%
England gap 28% 28% | 28% | 28% | 28% 26%

. B lowe
Key Stage 2 Key Stage 2
Ofsted Judgements Floor Standards 2012

* In the HMCI Annual Report, the proportion of primary
schools in Brighton & Hove judged to be good or better
is 72% which means that parents are ‘likely’ to be able to
send their child to a school judged good or better (this is
the second category). This is currently 77%.

» Two schools are judged ‘inadequate’. Benfield Primary
and Whitehawk Primary Schools were judged to require
Special Measures. Hertford Juniors is no longer in a
category.

S & Love
iz Euncil

» The Venn diagram shows the schools that meet the
Floor Standard for KS2

» 60% of pupils achieving Level 4+ in English and
Mathematics

» Achieving at least the national median figure for two
levels of progress in English and Mathematics
between KS1 and KS2

i love:
b Canncil

2 Leweb progress in maths
fram K- K52 above
national median for 2011

2 levek progress fram k31—
K32 in Engls h sbave
natianal median far 2011

fiowns Jurior (0 ©0)7Y \

StaTd o (1) (40) (49)
Wondingden (5)(31) (30
Bismendasni(G) (ADJ0E)

The madian aversgs
percentage of pupik making
Twa levelof progress for i
state-funded mainaream
schoolsis used as part of the

St ary Tiagualens (151U}

a9
St Mary's R (R (97) (65)
ByRarhokmeRts CON0T)

]
Hangleton Junior 8) 30y
()

& Aodrew’s () (57) (35)
2 Mergarts (G)(35) (43)
lewel dataisnot ye readyto
ba publizhed 2 Indiidual
school oucemes may be

Baldstane (G)E0) (B4) Saltdean (5) (100)(100)
Bm Grove (6) G117 bt Lty
(SM) (P4 5t Johnthe Baptist (5)(54) (36) I
Linombe Koag ($)) (78) Uur Lady of Loundes (Li) (34) (43) The median average
Coldean (0) GOIGS) s parcantage o pupi making
‘Westdens (L)) (%) L s et progrags fral
Balfour () G801} Mandream
sehoczuilbe gubiphed
24 Hatonal
Curiculum fezessments at
Koy Stage 7 Smthal Frs
Adrngton (5)G2)69) Rekease i Dessmber”
sannela (3) Cru)oe)
Vit Hove Junirs () (F33(31)
& Miolas CE Jmior (Rl) F79(52) SEEREEIEOEn
Somentil Junor 5) (53)(76) ST

Queens Paric(5) (36) (84)

0% of pupi achisve at ket 14
in maths and Englis h cambined

FEMEands: Band 1~0-7.9% lUrquake, Band 2-5—19.99% yellow, ESRASSAN=SAIEHERHI, 66104235 =08 B Eraen) band 5 -50%+ grey

Figures in brackets: (] st recent 0fs ted grading o overall effectiveness, ()3 2 leveks progres fram K51 = K52 in English (x) %62 Leves progress

in maths fram K31- K52

Progress from KS1 to KS2

KS2 English Expected Progress %

2009 2010 2011 2012

Brighton and Hove 79 - 79 88
Statistical Neighbour

Average 81 83 83 88
England (state

funded) 81 83 84 89

KS2 Mathematics Expected Progress %
2009 2010 2011 2012

Brighton and Hove 78 - 79 84

Statistical Neighbour

Average 78 81 82 86

England (state A
funded) 80 8 83 87 e

35 Cooncil




KS2 English & Mathematics Value Added: Performance Tables 2011/12

[004S Aiewid uespyes

~AJewg UppEID J31ed

Krewiig @20s SIpPIA
deq 3y ujor i
100Uas Kiewiid Uespuareg

“(p3PIY) 40O SMBIPUYIS
“Aaewnid Bunidiy pieApny
5, KIB I 3g 2lowsayoD
3400 sMeWolOUEG S

fuewiig UESPBUIPOO
100yoS Kiewiq uspren
Kiewid 3§00 5Ined 1S

“0¥ SepIn Jo ApeT N0

100UoS KIewiid 534 IS

“usiepBe KRS

00U2S Jojunp piojuels
Ioouss frewid inojleq
oo sIIRbIRIIS
alloyeg sdssor is
wIBUIIeIE 159M

10 S 2NepeUIRg IS

“Rietilid 3j00 SUMENIS

1o0uos ewiid Uesplon

“SlloUeD S ABINIS

o0yos Jowung swhoq
100UoS AIetlid Y20 2

Iewig ied s usang

100493 Jojunr weyored
0048 KiBUlid YEUSYU
10040 Kiewiid BUOISPIOD

“Kiewid 3j00 SHENIS
“Aieuiiig 3§00 UOIBUPIY

100Y9g ojunt uoiB(BUEH
Kiewiig peoy 8quiood
100495 Aletiig 3A019 wig
10049 JoIunF PioEH
100408 Kiewiid SUIPISI
100405 AIewlid I UoIED
10049 JolunF SAOH 1S3
100U9S JOIUNF RS

Tables 2011/12

s faRp s aowseneD
Dy S3pINoT o ApET ING
109103 JoIUNf pialElS
o0 saRiEhiENiS
SIIoUIED 5,9WIPEUIRIS
“aYoUIEd S Hepl i
eatas Jolunr WeLzd
e 3j00 LOIBUPLY
100105 AiEtllig 3USPISN
109405 Kizwiid WBIE
10945 Kiewig UeIpUES

R UAMpELS 12124
R QU0003S|ND
Iseeg syugop
FieWg 152435 SIPPIA
Joeiyo3 el UEapU3Aag
AIRwld 3400 S ned 1S

PY) 2100 SASIPUY IS

et Buitdiy piefpny
£1EUIG 3400 .UM S
1ewig UEpBUIROIN,

305 5 MawojeLeg 1S
ojbuIeIg 1S9
169Y5S JoN( PioRIH
Joe1yo3 fueLg UBapios
001105 KB A0IS W
00105 g USpIEs
usiepben Keris
f1EUIg 3400 SHENS
eatos Jounp s

IR ied 8,U3aND,
00105 LG 53415
00105 fuewg nojeg
DioueD 5,4dasor 1S

f1ewiig peoy 2quoed
109435 AIewild 3UDISPICE

[00yog Joung Ul BuEH
100495 Jolung plaeg
100435 I01UNT BAOH 153N

s
monFsm
FSM%

[y T— :
Joauos Arewiid JbieS Y, 22
KiWyg qo03asIo) b %) o
Kiewg umpeID 1918d @ b = o~ olw|w|w wM
e oS PPN a %, £ S BEIRIBIRIR 5
o1deg 3w uior s H P o .2 A3 I 2 2
JooUsS KIPLIIG UESpUSASG 5 “, Q5 N
{pepiv) 300 S mepUYIS £ 5 % 0 ©
“faewwig Buiiy) prekpny Sy 2, O D 5 >
o S e SIS0 23 S > 5
S %
2 ERCERA RS g o, S e Q — [RRICIEII
3 RUellIg UEpBLIpOO) &R b, TS5 E S PEESEEES)
g aotpos e topies 23 o % @Q = o RS
P Ui 31055 ned 1S b N € O
= oM SapINoT Jo Ape INg 5 Y%, ¥ [OREO) [0
= 1905 AUBWIIG S AN IS g8 % S o n_Vu
e UsjepBeN fIE 1S ] % (e} o IR
m 100495 Jownr piojuels gE »Nw«wo T [Tl = W W W W W
g [ 2 5 & n Qo S EARIEARIES
5 005 10mEbIRN 1S 58 \\e@ T T
T oD 5.4das01 15 == s, c .-
& 53 2, = S8sg
E Sloueg s sRepeweaIS z3 a, 7] c 25 o Blle|elg]e
3 feuIg 3400 S UBBINIS R e, [e] O =N | o~
2 |pouS Auewig UEaPI0s £y o [T z9 TR & EARIRIEEY
P e s kieyiis 33 P €D o c
= [60U3S JolUnp suseq e Z 2 b D o S C
s L , 7)) =
= [T STR— £ 5 % 5 o5 ® 0
8 T s g o, O 0P B R]R R
& [e0U Jolunr weysed Mo by, 5 c = - @© © FREIBARCIEN
m 100U KIB WL BMEUSHUA Aw %, 0 =90 ¢ A0~ NN
2 $3 %, Ol =vco
L} freuid 3400 SRS 9 % S =
g : T o o n o <
o fRWg 3J65 UL >3 o G < S+ ol ol w|w
2 ootos setung uorelBuzH s2 5, % w s = R
& % % %
z g peoy 2quoo) g4 %, ) £of2ac T IN|® ||
= 100425 AIEWIId 2015 WIT g5 Y, = 1) c
M [ - -3 %, = ==
3 E2 s, Q2 =] .
4] 100y2S ARl 3USPISAM s £ Yv @O a [0}
(a0t Atewg [IH UoyjIeD 25 3, [\+] c 8 3 [} =
oatos ol 2AOHIM ze o 8 o Oc 58 P tr
oot Jolunp Iuises 2 Yo, QO T©TYce= -y >
oy 300 sepoIS ¥ e, c| =8¥ = Z|&lg e
Joeyag Jolunt piayUsa H b B c o == Plcio g S
| - —_ =
z 8 8 5 8 8 3 & - T 3| OalW FEIEIE
2 =4 2 2 2 g 2 2 2 2 ° 3 <
P—— porpr amien > o |m|m|®|uw
pueiou

141925 9PPI
g 39 uorBLLPlY
4 2u9pram,

oew

ewuiguespijes.

Wewiig yieg suaony
g aucispion

Local Data 2011/12

=
Aewig 502N

g s Ae S

sownf uoia(3ue
Hewiig 3y $9pINT 1o Ape1ng

epe Mew s

88

KS2 Free School Meal and Other Pupils Attainment Gap in Level 4+ in English and mathematics from

KS2 English & Mathematics Value Added Free School Meal and Children Looked After: Performance

“iojunt 3j09 SLIOINIS deg 2yt uorss

[y —— 8 sevss
poppe anien g 2 2 R 2 8 8 8 8 -
r—

pappe anjen




Vulnerable Groups: SEN

* The gap in SEN is in line with the national.

Results Lo 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H SEN 4% 42% 43% 43% 37% 43%
B&H non-SEN | 86% 90% 88% 93% 87% 92%
B&H gap 45% 48% 45% 50% 50% 49%
SN gap 49% 48% 50% 52% 55% 51%
England gap 52% 54% 53% 53% 50% 49%

Vulnerable Groups: EAL

* Although the EAL gap has narrowed in Brighton
and Hove, it is still above the national gap.

Results 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H EAL 1% 75% 72% 79% 74% 80%
B&H non-EAL 60% 68% 68% 75% 61% 74%
B&H gap 1% 7% 4% 4% 13% 6%
SN gap 7% 9% 8% 6% 5% 3%
England gap 7% 6% 6% 3% 3% 2%

Skl & love
Gy

Early Years Foundation Stage profile

Assessment at the end of Reception year — age 5

« One key indicator for the EYFS profile is the % of children who
achieve 6 points and above in both Personal, Social and
Emotional Development and Communication Language and
Literacy and also score at least 78 points across all Areas of
Learning.

The % of children who achieved this in 2012 was 67% in
Brighton and Hove which is above the national figure for 2012 -
64%.

« The second key indicator is the % gap between the median and
the bottom 20% of achieving children.

Brighton and Hove have continued to narrow this gap each year
and in 2012 the gap has reduced to 27.8 which is better than the
national percentage gap of 30.1

i

Brishinn & Llove
-

89

Percentage

Achieving a good level of development 2012

80
70
74

60 68 68 67

50| 64 & 57 57 60 62 &
40

30

20

10

0 ‘ ‘ : :

ENGLAND SOUTH EAST Brighton and East Sussex West Sussex
Hove
All W 30% most deprived national areas Other Areas

HrgHitan. & llove
o




90



EYFS achieving L6 trend chart

% achieving 6+ 2008 | 2009 2010 | 2011 2012 National
Brighton and 2012
Hove

Personal Social and | 74.4 | 80.2 84.4 83.0 85.6 82
Emotional

Development

Communication, 54.7 |57.7 64.9 66.9 69.2 66
Language and

Literacy

PSED and CLL 51.6 |55.8 62.6 | 64.1 67.2 64
Problem solving 73.3 | 725 80.2 81.3 83.1 77
reasoning and

Numeracy

Knowledge and 81.3 |83.3 89.7 [90.3 90.9 86
Understanding of

the World

Physical 89.1 [89.8 93.5 |93.1 94.1 92
Development

Creative 81.5 |835 89.3 |89.7 91.1 85
Development

91

10f18



EYFS achievement of children living in disadvantaged areas

Pupils Living in Achieving a good score*

Most Deprived % No of Pupils

Aross (a0 T o T | e [ mo e s
5% most deprived 25.24 34.18 41.95 53.77 42.37 52 67 86 107 75
10% most deprived 27 .11 35.80 41.54 55.49 46.95 93 126 140 187 154
15% most deprived 30.85 38.72 43.4 53.97 48.36 141 175 187 238 206
20% most deprived 32.87 41.68 459 54.84 50.28 191 248 262 306 272

All EYFSP 63.85 67.13

*A good score is defined as 'Achievement of at least 78 points across the Early Years Foundation Stage with at least 6
in each of the scales in Personal Social and Emotional Development and Communication, Language and Literacy’

**In 2012 there were only 14 pupils who are not included in these figures as their postcodes were not included in the latest South
East Postcode tables when they were produced. The data this year is a better match to previous years (c. 95 unmatched pupi

20f18

92



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

NI 92 Foundation Stage - Narrowing the Gap

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Same
RAG Status

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |4 Children and young people do well at school
Data Source KEYPAS Sub-outcome|4.5 Gap for disadvantaged groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|Lowest achieving children do better at FSP stage
Short Definition Narrowing the gap between lowest Delivery unit|Schools, Skills and Learning

achieving 20% of pupils & the rest Service unit|Schools

Lead Officer|Mary Ellinger
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Annual Results

Results 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H 35.0% | 35.9% | 32.2% | 27.7% | 27.9% | 27.8%
Pupils in cohort 2545 2581 | 2656 | 2784

Commentary:

Annual Results

National and Statistical Neighbour data due to be published by the
DfE in October 2012 (no specific publication date yet)

50.0%

40.0%

30.0% ’\

20.0%

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Results 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H 35.0% | 35.9% | 32.2% | 27.7% | 27.9% | 27.8%
Target 30.9% | 28.4% | 28.3% | 27.9% | N/A N/A

Stat Neighbours 35.0% | 34.0% | 32.0% | 30.7% | 30.8% | 30.0%
England 37.3% | 35.6% | 33.9% | 32.7% | 31.3% | 30.1%

Foundation Stage Narrowing the Gap Trend

40% -
38%
36% —_—

e B&H
3400 I

=== Stat Neighbours
32% 1 England
30% \ —
28%
26%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
30f18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Early Years Foundation Stage - % Achieving a good score

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |4 Children and young people do well at school
Data Source KEYPAS Sub-outcome|4.1 Children are ready for school

Frequency Annual Service level outcome|Lowest achieving children do better at EYFSP stage
Short Definition At least 78 points across the Early Years Delivery unit|Schools, Skills and Learning

Foundation Stage with at least 6 in each
of the scales in Personal Social and
Emotional Development and
Communication, Language and Literacy

Service unit|Schools

Lead Officer|Mary Ellinger
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Annual Results

LE S 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

B&H 50.8% | 51.5% | 55.5% | 62.6% | 64.0% | 67.1%

Pupils in cohort 2400 2488 2545 2581 2656 2784
Commentary:

Annual Results

70%
60% _/_/
50%

40%
30%
20%

10%
0%

(e H

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Results 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H 50.8% | 51.5% | 55.5% | 62.6% | 64.0% | 67.1%
Stat. Neighbours 47.5% | 49.7% | 53.3% | 56.2% | 59.7% | 62.4%
England 46% 49% 52% 56% 59% 64%

EYFSP Good Score Trend

70%
65% —

o //j/ -

=== Stat. Neighbours

55% - England

50% -

45%
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

4 0f18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 1 Level 2+ in Reading

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status Amber
Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The quality of teaching and learning is improved for all
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition Overall attainment at level 2+ in Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning
Reading at the end of key stage 1 Service unit|N/A
Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H All 84.0% | 84.0% | 83.0% | 84.6% | 86%

Commentary:

KS1 Reading - B & H

90.0%

85.0% #
e=B&H All

80.0%

75.0%

70.0%

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H All 84.0% | 84.0% | 83.0% | 84.6% | 86.3%
Stat. neighbours 82.2% | 83.7% | 84.0% | 85.4% | 86.9%
England 83.8% | 84.4% | 84.7% | 85% | 87.0%

Year on Year Trend - KS1 Reading

88.0%

87.0%

86.0% e
/ —pgH Al
85.0% .
/ === Stat. neighbours
84.0%

/\/ England
83.0% /

82.0%

81.0%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

50f 18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 1 Reading Level 2+ (FSM gap)

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome|The attainment gap for groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition FSM gap in % attaining level 2+ in Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning

Reading at the end of Key Stage 1 Service unit|N/A

Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H FSM 68.0% | 67.0% | 66.0% | 68.4% | 69.5%
B&H Non FSM 87.0% | 88.0% | 87.0% | 88.3% | 90.0%
B&H Gap 19.0% | 21.0% | 21.0% | 19.9% | 20.5%

Commentary:

KS1 Reading FSM Gap-B & H

100.0%
90.0% —

e==B&H FSM
80.0%

70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%

e==B&H Non

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H Gap 19.0% | 21.0% | 21.0% | 19.9% | 20.5%
Stat. Neighbours Gap 18.1% | 16.7% | 14.6% | 14.4% | 14.4%
England Gap 17.7% | 16.6% | 16.2% | 15.0% | 14.0%

Year on Year Trend - KS1 Reading FSM Gap

e B&H Gap

18.0% — .
o= Stat. Neighbours Gap
17.0% -
England

16.0% | ngland Gap
15.0% -
14.0%
13.0%

22.0%
21.0%
20.0%
19.0%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

6 0f 18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 1 Writing Level 2+

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status Amber
Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The quality of teaching and learning is improved for all
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition Overall attainment at level 2+ in Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning
Writing at the end of Key Stage 1 Service unit|N/A
Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H All 81.0% | 81.0% | 80.0% | 80.8% | 81.4%
. Commentary:
KS1 Writing -B&H
100.0%
90.0% ==B&H All
80.0%
70.0%
Q D o — o~
o o — — —
o o o o o
o~ (o] (o] o~ o~

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H All 81.0% | 81.0% | 80.0% | 80.8% | 81.4%
Stat. neighbours 78.0% | 79.7% | 79.9% | 81.2% | 82.5%
England 79.9% | 80.8% | 80.9% | 81.0% | 83.0%
Year on Year Trend - KS1 Writing
84.0%
83.0%
82.0% /L
— g H Al
81.0% - o
em==Stat. neighbours
80.0%
England
79.0% /
78.0%
77.0%
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
7 of 18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 1 Writing Level 2+ (FSM Gap)

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Worse
RAG Status

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome|The attainment gap for groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition FSM gap in % attaining level 2+ in Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning

Writing at the end of Key Stage 1 Service unit|N/A

Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H FSM 62.0% | 61.0% | 62.0% | 64.3% | 59.9%
B&H Non FSM 85.0% | 85.0% | 84.0% | 84.6% | 86.2%
B&H Gap 23.0% | 24.0% | 22.0% | 20.3% | 26.3%

Commentary:

KS1 Writing FSM Gap-B & H

100.0%
90.0%

— e==B&H FSM
80.0%

70.0%
60.0% e

e==B&H Non

50.0%
40.0%

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H Gap 23.0% | 24.0% | 22.0% | 20.3% | 26.3%
Stat. Neighbours Gap 20.9% | 19.7% | 16.9% | 17.4% | 16.5%
England Gap 20.0% | 18.8% | 18.1% | 18.0% | 16.0%

Year on Year Trend - KS1 Writing FSM Gap

27.0% -
25.0% //
23.0% \\ / e=B&H Gap
21.0% o= Stat. Neighbours
\ V gapl Je
ngland Ga
19.0% - g P

17.0% | g

15.0%

—

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

8 0of 18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 1 Maths Level 2+

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The quality of teaching and learning is improved for all
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition Overall attainment at level 2+ in Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning

Maths at the end of Key Stage 1 Service unit|N/A

Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H All 91.0% | 91.0% | 90.0% | 91.2% | 91.8%

Commentary:

KS1 Maths-B & H

100.0%

90.0% e=B&H All

80.0%

70.0%

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H All 91.0% | 91.0% | 90.0% | 91.2% | 91.8%
Stat neighbours 89.3% | 89.1% | 89.0% | 90.2% | 90%

England 89.5% | 89.5% | 89.2% | 90.0% | 91.0%

Year on Year Trend
92.0%

91.5% e

91.0% |

90.5% | ——B&H All

90.0% / === Stat neighbours
89.5% | / England
89.0% -

88.5%

88.0%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

90f18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 1 Maths Level 2+ (FSM Gap)

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Worse
RAG Status

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome|The attainment gap for groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition FSM gap in % attaining level 2+ in Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning

Maths at the end of Key Stage 1 Service unit|N/A

Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H FSM 81.0% | 80.0% | 81.0% | 82.4% | 79.6%
B&H Non FSM 93.0% | 93.0% | 92.0% | 93.2% | 94.5%
B&H Gap 12.0% | 13.0% | 11.0% | 10.8% | 14.9%

Commentary:

KS1 Maths FSM Gap -B & H

100.0%
90.0% - e==B&H FSM
80.0% — — e===B&H Non
70.0%
60.0%

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H Gap 12.0% | 13.0% | 11.0% | 10.8% | 14.9%
Stat. Neighbours Gap 13.4% | 11.2% | 10.7% | 9.9% | 11.4%
England Gap 12.4% | 12.1% | 12.0% | 11.0% | 11.0%

Year on Year Trend - KS1 Maths FSM Gap

15.0%

14.0% -

0/, |
13.0% \/\ ===B&H Gap
-

12.0% - Stat. Neighbours Gap

\ Eneland
11.0% - _ ngland Gap

10.0%

\

9.0%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

10 of 18

100



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 2 Level 4+

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The quality of teaching and learning is improved for all
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition Overall attainment at level 4+ in Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning
English and Maths at the end of Service unit|N/A
key stage 2.
Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

Results 2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012
B&H All 70% 74% 72% 79% 73% 79%
. Commentary:
KS2 Attainment
90%
80% A/\/
0,

70% e B&H All

60%

50%

40%

30%

20% .

~ oo . % - ~ No test data for 2010 due to the KS2 test boycott. The 2010
§ § § = S S Brighton figures are from the Teacher Assessment data, however the
N comparator data is from the KS2 Test Data.

Year Trend Data and Targets
Results 2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012
B&H All 70% 74% 72% 79% 73% 79%
Stat neighbours 69% 70% 70% 73% 72% 77%
England 71% 73% 72% 73% 74% 79%

Year on Year Trend - Key Stage 2 Attainment
80%

78%

76% -
e——B&H All

74%
/\/ === Stat neighbours

72% -

/ England
70% - /
68%
2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012

11 0f 18

101



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Gap in attainment for SEN pupils)

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status TBA
Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The attainment gap for disadvantaged groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition SEN to Non-SEN gap in % attaining Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning
level 4+ in English and Maths at Service unit|N/A
the end of key stage 2.
Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

LE S 2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012

B&H SEN 41% 42% 43% 43% 37% 43%

B&H Non SEN 86% 90% 88% 93% 87% 92%

B&H Gap 45% 48% 45% 50% 50% 49%
Commentary:

KS2 SEN Gap-B & H

The gap between pupils with SEN and those non SEN has narrowed
by 1% from 2011 which was the widest gap recorded in the last five
years. In 2011 the gap was lower than our statistical neighbours,

60%
55%
50%

45% N = BRH Gap which too has been increasing year on year.
40% at the time of writing (November 2012) the national figues for 2012
35% have not been released.

30%
25%
20%

*No test data for 2010 due to the KS2 test boycott. The 2010
Brighton figures are from the Teacher Assessment data, however the
comparator data is from the KS2 Test Data.

N.B. Gap same but all pupil performance lower

2007
2008
2009
2010*
2011
2012

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012
B&H Gap 45% 48% 45% 50% 50% 49%
SN Gap 49% 48% 50% 52% 55% 51%
England Gap 52% 54% 53% 53% 50% 49%

Year on Year Trend - Key Stage 2 SEN Gap

60% -

/ A e PB&H Gap
50% == SN Gap
7@ ==England Gap

2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012

40%

12 0f 18

102



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Gap in attainment for Free School Meals pupils)

A low number is good

Direction of Travel Better
RAG Status TBA
Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The attainment gap for disadvantaged groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition FSM to Non-FSM gap in % attaining Delivery unit|Schools Skills and Learning
level 4+ in English and Maths at Service unit|N/A
the end of key stage 2.
Lead Officer|Hilary Ferries
Lead Analyst|Katherine Eastland

Current Performance

LE S 2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012

B&H FSM 46% 55% 52% 63% 51% 60%

B&H Non FSM 76% 79% 76% 82% 78% 83%

B&H Gap 30% 24% 24% 19% 27% 23%
Commentary:

KS2 FSM Gap-B & H

This gap has narrowed as achievement of pupils with FSM have

0,
40% increased 9 percentage points and Non FSM 5 percentage points.

35%

However, this remains a focus.
30% = B&H Gap
25%
20% *No test data for 2010 due to the KS2 test boycott. The 2010
15% Brighton figures are from the Teacher Assessment data, however the

10%
5%
0%

comparator data is from the KS2 Test Data.

2007
2008
2009
2010*
2011
2012

Year Trend Data and Targets

Results 2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012
B&H Gap 30% 24% 24% 19% 27% 23%
SN Gap 25% 26% 27% 21% 23% 19%
England Gap 24% 22% 22% 21% 20% 17%

Year on Year Trend - Key Stage 2 FSM Gap
40% -
30% - -~ e==B&H Gap
S— e==SN Gap
20% | == England Gap
10%
2007 2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012

13 0f 18

103



Key Stage 3 attainment

Pupil Groups % L5+ English % L5+ Maths % Level 5 Science
2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012
All Pupils B&H 81 83 86 77 82 82 81 86 86
Stat n’bours 79 81 84 78 80 82 79 81 84
England 79 82 84 80 81 83 80 83 85
11/12 B&H
change +3 0 0
Male 76 76 81 75 82 81 78 86 83
Female 88 89 92 78 81 84 83 87 89
Gender Gap* +12 | +13| +11 +3 -1 +3 +5 +1 +6
Stat n’bours +14 | +13| +10 +3 +4 +2 +3 +5 +5
England +13| +12] +11 +1 +2 +2 +3 4 +4
2011 - 2012
B&H change -2 0 -5
FSM 63 64 70 57 63 61 63 71 68
Non-FSM 86 87 90 81 86 87 85 90 90
FSM Gap 23 23 20 24 23 26 22 19 22
2011 - 2012
change -3 +3 +3
SEN 51 57 65 44 53 59 52 64 69
Non-SEN 92 93 95 88 93 94 91 95 95
Gap in 2012 41 36 30 44 40 35 39 31 26
2011 - 2012
change -6 -5 -5

* In this row, positive figures mean girls performing better than boys, and negative figures

mean boys performing better than girls.

104

14 of 18




€106 Mou gz xipuaddy

150f 18

2102 PUEe | |0g 10} SB|ge ] 9ouBWIONSd JiJ :92In0S Bleq

[T G'18 0€8 2’89 8'8S (s|00y?s |[e) pue|buz

991 AS 0L} € 8/ vy 0L g9l v'eL 9 G- 8’19 9°€ 8'cS (4148 98 €lee Aioyiny |eooT
8ve 00 0 00 8- 9¢ L L ! 8l [ 12" /2 LL- LL 0 0 LE 9SNoH weydled
£82 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 L SpIS|iH
L'le 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 [4 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 MIIA\ sumoq
9'LE 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 0 0] 0 0 0 0 |43 jied sumoq
0'0S 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 [4 0 0 0 0 0 0 Gl 84ua) Jepad
L 19 00 0 00 0 0 0] 0 0 0 1€ 0 0 0 0 0 0 8l 37V
g8l L€ 0]} L'EL cl- S8 c 0L (74} cl S9 cl- 69 I qS el 99 YAN uespuJiepn
€9l 0t~ 14 4 0L 14 89 34" ¢l 7S L 09 9 1S 66 1S LL} weyoled
6°0C 0'€- ] 0C 9 74 9l S9 28 18 6 1% 08 L- 6€ 134 8¢ JAY" vaovd
Vg 0l A 0’8 €- G 6 €9 €91 ¢l 69 6- S 8 JA 0] S GEC lybuoq
691 0'€- 9l 0°€CL 8- [7A 9 89 €81 9 29 S 99 L} 144 cll 19 982 Yied aAOH
VA 1204 14 €62 G- /8 9- 88 8/¢ 8 8 9- €L 9- V. €22 19 1% 19buLs Ayoioq
€0l 6'€- 6€ 1'G€ I €8 I €8 8.2 8 |24 I 89 € 99 822 69 A% UBWMSN |eulpie)
8¢l 1°0- 02 661 c- G8 L 9/ YA €8 €L 0}~ YA € 89 981 19 60€ 1IN uoibuiyoleg
L0y 9'v 0 9'v V/N V/N 143 8L 00} Z6 62 V/N V/N € JA 144 o 801 vaova

1e9 uonoIpal % Jea) ise % - L e:_..-.a._.—mamN woyy| uonoipas % 1B Ise % - % ®lqel @
._no>_.hﬁ dn | 1seq bo.__ 1102 2102 _oo_._«onEM: :o_—o\__uw._n_ _”..H___ ! unsey mn_v_u_._w dlqeL 8o uayel) Z102 _oo_._MWvEM: uonoipaid :W.“__ ! a_:mom E.M_m__anw_”_\ ¢ ouewojiad grog sidng |ooyos
%S4 | sousisma oousioma |l0ouos z1oz | soussemia | "°U | onzioz [VEWHOHAd | uonoipaid | sousiemia | '°°M°S | soussema |ieura Lioz |10 onzioz | Bia zroz | 10O Ot
1102 314 2102 cLoz
ajeaine|edoeg ysi|bug 30SH I -V +§ 3599 syie B ysibug buipnjoui 9 -,y +5

010Z SHNSaY 3SOD [BUOISINOId SAOH UolybLg

105



KS4 Free School Meals Closing the Gap 2012

School

Blatchington Mill School

Brighton Aldridge Community Academy
Cardinal Newman School

Dorothy Stringer School

Hove Park School

Longhill School

Patcham High School

Portslade Aldridge Community Academy
Varndean School

Alternative Centre for Education

Downs Park Special School

Downs View Special School

Hillside School

Patcham House Special School

The Cedar Centre

Brighton & Hove 2012

Brighton & Hove 2011

% Free % 5+ A*-C
School % 3+ A*-A ' inc E&M @ % 5+ A*-C
Meal (FSM) FSM Gap FSM Gap @ FSM Gap

11.7 -30.2 -37.1 -25.3
33.3 -19.4 -36.1 -9.7
8.9 -13.0 -24.3 -18.7
71 -25.6 -23.1 -16.0
154 -11.2 -29.5 -27.5
16.6 -16.8 -29.0 -33.5
19.8 -16.8 -39.1 -22.4
21.4 -11.2 -23.5 -20.1
16.0 -19.6 -31.9 -22.7
38.9 0.0 0.0 0.0

50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

28.6 0.0 0.0 0.0

9.1 0.0 0.0 -20.0
46.7 0.0 0.0 0.0

15.0 -22.3 -34.3 -24.5
14.5 -22.3 -31.5 -30.5

106

% Maths
% English 3+ Levels
3+ Levels of

Progress | Progress
FSM Gap FSM Gap

-20.8 -35.4
-16.7 -33.7
-14.5 5.4
-1.4 -14.5
-17.6 -31.1
-34.7 -27.6
-9.6 -31.4
-8.1 -15.7
-25.3 -24.3
-9.1 0.0
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0
-22.2 0.0
0.0 0.0
-19.1 -30.5
-27.9 -97.3
16 of 18



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Learners with Special Educational Needs Gap % 5+ A*-C GCSE including English & Maths

Direction of Travel Worse
RAG Status amber
Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The attainment gap for disadvantaged groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A
Short Definition Special Educational Needs gap in Delivery unit|Learning and Partnership

percentage attaining 5+ A* to C Service unit|N/A

grades in GCSEs including English

at Maths. Lead Officer|Michael Nix

Lead Analyst|Daniel Elliott

Current Performance

Results 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

B&H SEN 5% 8% 15% 12% 13% 22% 19%

B&H non SEN 51% 52% 55% 56% 62% 66% 69%

B&H SEN cohort 454 560 572 649 690 585

B&H Non SEN cohort 1850 1778 1717 1718 1632 1628
Commentary:

B&H Result

80% - The gap in the proportion of SEN and non SEN children achieving 5+
A* - C grades including English and Maths increased by 7% points

60% / compared with 2011, and was higher than at any time since 2006.

This was because the performance of non SEN students improved,
while the performance of SEN students declined compared with
2011 - although still significantly higher than in the five years before

20% -
° /_/\__/\ 2011, and almost four times higher than in 2006. Figures for

40% -

0% : : : : : : England and statistical neighbour averages are not yet available.
o ~ (o] (o)) o — o~
o o o o o - -
S S = = o o o
o~ o~ (V] (V] (V] o~ o~
=B&H SEN e B&H non SEN

Published Trend Data and Targets

Results 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H Gap 46% 44% 42% 44% 49% 44% 51%
SN Gap 41% 45% 47% 47% 49% 50% 50%
England Gap 43% 44% 45% 45% 46% 48% 47%

Special Educational Needs Gap % 5+ A*-C GCSE including English & Maths

60%

55%

50% -

45% -

40%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

===B&H Gap ===SN Gap ==England Gap

17 of 18

107



Template vl

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT CARD

Learners eligible for Free School Meals Gap % 5+ A*-C GCSE including English & Maths

Direction of Travel Worse

RAG Status amber

Number/percent Percentage Outcome |Children and young people do well at school
Data Source DfE Sub-outcome [The attainment gap for disadvantaged groups is improved
Frequency Annual Service level outcome|N/A

Short Definition

Learners eligible for Free School
Meals gap in percentage attaining
5+ A* to C grades in GSCEs
including English at Maths

Current Performance

Delivery unit|Learning and Partnership
Service unit|N/A

Lead Officer|Michael Nix
Lead Analyst|Daniel Elliott

Results

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
B&H FSM 16% 20% 19% 22% 22% 26% 27%
B&H non FSM 47% 47% 49% 48% 53% 57% 62%
B&H FSM cohort 358 306 330 334 337 337 332
B&H non FSM cohort 1967 1998 2008 1955 2032 1987 1881
Commentary:
B&H Result
70% The gap in the proportion of children with FSM and without FSM
60% achieving 5+ A* - C grades including English and Maths increased by
50% / 3% points compared with 2011, and was higher than at any time
40% since 2006. Although the performance of students with FSM
30% improved by 1% point, maintaining a continuous trend of
20% - improvement since 2006, the performance of students without FSM
° / . 0, .
10% improved by 5% points.
0%
o ~ o) (o)) o i o~
o o o o = - =
S S S S <) o o
o~ (V] o~ (V] o~ (V] o~
== B&H FSM  ==B&H non FSM

Published Trend Data and Targets

Results 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

B&H Gap 31% 27% 30% 26% 32% 32% 35%

SN Gap 30% 29% 30% 28% 30% 32% 31%

England Gap 28% 28% 28% 28% 28% 28% 26%

GCSE 5 A*-Cincl. Eng & Maths - FSM Gap

40%

35% -

30% -

25% -

20%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
==B&H Gap ==SN Gap ===England Gap

18 of 18

108



CHILDREN & YOUNG Agenda Item 10
PEOPLE COMMITTEE Brighton & Hove City Council

"Subject: Update on Childcare for Two Year Olds and

Provision for the East of the City

Date of Meeting: 3" June 2013
Report of: Interim Director of Children’s Services
Contact Officer: Name: Vicky Jenkins Tel: 296110

Email: vicky.jenkins@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.
1.1

1.2

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

Disadvantaged two year olds have received free childcare since September
2009; this currently applies to around eight per cent of two year olds in Brighton
and Hove. The government is extending this entitlement as a statutory duty to 20
per cent of two year olds from September 2013 and 40 per cent from September
2014. This paper explains the work being carried out to develop proposals for
capital expenditure to attempt to ensure that there are sufficient places for all
eligible two year olds by September 2014. It also draws the committee’s
attention to the Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA), completed in March
2013, which sets out current childcare supply in Brighton and Hove.

A specific issue in relation to childcare in East Brighton is dealt with in a Part Il
paper

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the committee notes work being undertaken to develop proposals for capital
spend.

That the committee notes the CSA and agrees to its publication.
That the committee agrees to the proposal set out in the Part Il paper

RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

From September 2013 20 per cent of Brighton & Hove'’s two year olds (estimated
517 children) will be entitled to a free early education place, rising to 40 per cent
(an estimated 1,300 children) from September 2014.

Based on current data available, there appears to be sufficient provision for
eligible two year olds in September 2013, but a shortage of places in the areas
where they are needed in September 2014.

The government has provided a capital allocation of £421,653 to develop
childcare places and we have allocated an additional amount of “trajectory
funding” of £350,000, approved by the DfE, from the two year old childcare
allocation in the Dedicated Schools Grant, making a total capital budget of
£771,653 available.

109



3.4

3.5

3.6

5.1

5.2

54

In order to ensure that there is sufficient childcare provision for September 2014
and to develop a strategy for capital spend, the following pieces of work are
being undertaken:

A review of the data on where eligible children are likely to live. This will continue
when more government data is available later this year

A review of existing childcare provision in accordance with the CSA May 2013
Discussions regarding expansion with local childcare providers in relevant areas
of the city

Discussions about taking two year olds with maintained nursery schools and
classes in relevant areas

Capital feasibility studies in accordance with the above

A report will be brought to the Children and Young People’s committee on 14™
October 2013 containing a proposal for capital spend which will aim to get the
most childcare places where most needed at best value for money.

In the meantime the CSA is attached for approval prior to publication.
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

Childcare providers and maintained provision in relevant areas of the city have

been or will be contacted regarding the possibility of expanding their provision

A marketing strategy is in place to inform parents of their entitlement to free
childcare.

FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The budget for disadvantaged two year olds is contained in the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG). The total budget for 2013/14 is £1,991,000. Its use was
agreed at the Schools’ Forum on 28" January 2013. There is an additional DfE
capital allocation of £421,653.

Finance Officer Consulted: Andy Moore Date: 08/05/13

Legal Implications:

The report sets out how the Local Authority intends to meet its’ statutory duty to
extend free childcare to disadvantaged two year olds in the City.

Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Priestley : Date : 23/05/13/
Equalities Implications:

Equality Impact Assessment was completed for two year funding in November
2012 and no adverse impacts were found.

Sustainability Implications:
There are no specific sustainability implications

110



Crime & Disorder Implications:

5.5 There are no specific crime and disorder implications
Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

5.6  Risk management will be carried out prior to any capital spend
Public Health Implications:

5.7  There are no specific public health implications
Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.8  The two year old childcare scheme supports the council’s priority of tackling
inequality through providing high quality childcare in a disadvantaged area of the
city.

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):

6.1  Options for capital spend will be explored prior to final decisions being made

7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To note the information in the report, pending decisions to be made regarding
capital spend

7.2 Part Il report is for separate decision

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

None

Documents in Members’ Rooms
1. Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2013

Background Documents

None

111



112



Childcare
Sufficiency

Assessment

Refreshed May 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

NHSER %

City Council

113



INTRODUCTION

This Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA) was undertaken in accordance with the Childcare
Act 2006 s.11 and associated statutory guidance.” The Act requires local authorities to carry out
an assessment of the childcare in their area at least every three years. Brighton & Hove city
council previously published full assessments in 2008 and 2011, with refreshed assessments in
2009 and 2012.

Local authorities are required to refresh their data annually, and this document does so, using
data collected in 2012 and 2013. The document concentrates on childcare quality and childcare

supply.

As this is a refreshed document rather than a full CSA there is no attempt to measure childcare
demand or childcare gaps in the city.

The Children and Families Bill 2013 repeals section 11 of the Childcare Act 2006, which means
that local authorities will no longer have a duty to assess childcare sufficiency in their area.
However, Brighton & Hove has found the practice of assessing childcare supply and demand to
be extremely useful in planning future provision.

! Securing Sufficient Childcare statutory guidance for local authorities in carrying out their childcare sufficiency
duties DCSF 2010

-2 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment

Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

114



CONTENTS PAGE

MAIN FINDINGS

Section One: CHILDCARE QUALITY

1.1 Childcare Quality and Ofsted Data

Figure 1: Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements

Figure 2: Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements by Category
Figure 3: Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements by Deprivation
Figure 4: Children’s Centre Ofsted Inspection Judgements

1.2 Childcare Quality Children’s Centre Nurseries
Section Two: CHILDCARE SUPPLY
2.1 Childcare Supply

2.2 Ownership of Childcare Provision
Figure 5: Ownership of Full Day Care
Figure 6: Ownership of Sessional Care
Figure 7: Ownership of After-School Clubs

2.3 City-Wide Childcare Supply

Figure 8: Number of Childcare Providers, by Type
Figure 9: Change in Childcare Providers Since 2011
Figure 10: Number of Childcare Places

Figure 11: Change in Childcare Places Since 2011
Figure 12: Childcare Places Change Since 2008

2.4 Childcare Provision by Ward
Figure 13: Full Day Care Provision
Figure 14: Sessional Care Provision
Figure 15: Childminding Provision
Figure 16: After-School Club Provision

2.5 Childcare Provision, Penetration Rates Pre-School Children
Figure 17: Childcare Provision, Penetration Rages Pre-School Children

2.6 Early Years Providers Offering Free Early Learning for Three and
Four Year Olds

Figure 18: Settings Offering Free Early Learning by Setting Type

Figure 19: Distribution of Children in Free Early Learning by Setting Type

2.7 Early Years Providers Offering Free Early Learning for Eligible Two
Year Olds
Figure 20: Funded Two Year Olds’ Attendance by Sector

2.8 Provision of and Demand for Free Early Learning for Eligible Two
-3-

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

115



Year Olds
Figure 21: Distribution of Childcare Places for Two Year Olds by Ward

2.9 Childcare Available in Non-Traditional Hours

Figure 22: Number of Providers City-Wide by Type Offering Non-
Traditional Hours

Figure 23: Holiday Opening by Play Schemes

2.10 Childcare Vacancies
2.11 Childcare Costs

212 Cost of Full Day Care

Figure 24: Cost of Full Day Care Per Day Average Cost and Change in
Costs

Figure 25: Number of Full Day Care Places by Cost Band

213 Cost of Sessional care
Figure 26: Distribution of Sessional Care Costs

214 Cost of Childminding and At Home Childcare

Figure 27: Cost of Childminding Per Hour Average Cost and Change in
Costs

Figure 28: Cost of At Home Childcarer Average Cost and Change in
Costs

215 Cost of Holiday Play Schemes and After-School Clubs
Figure 29: Cost of Holiday Play Scheme Per Day and Change in Costs
Figure 30: Cost of Holiday Play Scheme per Day and Change in Costs

2.16 Cost of Breakfast Clubs

217 Childcare Costs; Regional and National Comparisons
Figure 31: Cost of Childcare, Regional and National Comparisons

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

116

Brighton & Hove
City Council



MAIN FINDINGS

Childcare Quality
» Childcare in Brighton & Hove is high quality compared with England as a whole, with 87
per cent per cent of settings on the early years register judged good or outstanding by
Ofsted, compared with 77 per cent in the south east and 74 per cent nationally.

Childcare Ownership

* Most full day care in the city remains privately owned (68 per cent of settings and 70 per
cent of places).

» Sessional care providers are fairly evenly split between the private (36 per cent),
maintained and voluntary (both 30 per cent) sectors, with four per cent in the public
sector. However, in terms of places more are in the maintained sector (41 per cent) than
the private (34 per cent) and voluntary (23 per cent) sectors with the remaining two per
cent in the public sectors.

* Most after-school club places are in the private sector (49 per cent of places) although the
voluntary (33 per cent of places) maintained (18 per cent of places) sectors still have a
presence.

Childcare Providers and Places

» There has not been a significant change in the number of full day care, sessional care and
holiday play scheme providers since the last CSA.

» There has been an increase in the number of after-school club providers, breakfast clubs
and home childcarers.

» There has been a decrease in the number of childminders.

» There was little change in the number of full day and sessional care places, an increase in
after-school and holiday play scheme places, and a decrease in the number of
childminding places.

» Childcare provision is not spread evenly over the city, with some areas having significantly
more than others.

» This is particularly significant in terms of the numbers of children per childcare place,
which ranges from 24.3 children per full day care place in South Portslade to 1.4 in Wish.
In two wards (Brunswick & Adelaide and Woodingdean) there is no full day care.

* There has been a small increase in the number of providers offering free early learning
(three more than in the last CSA).

« Just under half the city’s three and four year olds receive their free early learning at a
private sector setting (private childcare provider, independent school or
childminder/childminder nursery). The public sector (including maintained nursery classes
and schools) provides free early learning for 32 per cent of children.

* Most two year olds in free early learning places are in public sector settings.

* There is a variety of provision across the city for two year olds, and data to determine
where more provision is needed so that two year olds entitled to a free place can take this
up is being developed.

* There is very little childcare available during non-traditional hours, that is outside 8 am to
6 pm Monday to Friday. Those who are able to provide this offer home-based care,
namely childminders and at home childcarers.

-5-
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

117



Childcare Costs

* Full day care costs in Brighton & Hove are on average £4.53 an hour for a child under two
and £4.28 for a child over two. This is an increase of approximately 0.2 per cent on last
year’'s costs.

» Childminding costs in Brighton & Hove are on average £4.80 an hour, which is a 2.3 per
cent increase on last year.

* Holiday play schemes in Brighton & Hove cost on average £23.27 per day, which is an
decrease of 4.7 per cent on last year.

» After-school clubs in Brighton & Hove cost on average £9.20 per session, which is 2.3 per
cent more than last year.

* The average cost of a breakfast club session is £2.20, a 12.2 per cent increase on 2012.

* Most childcare in Brighton & Hove is more expensive than that in England as a whole, but
nursery care and after-school clubs are cheaper than those in the south east.

» Childminding in Brighton & Hove is nearly seven per cent more expensive than the south
east average.

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

118



Section One
CHILDCARE QUALITY

1.1  Childcare Quality and Ofsted Data
This section looks at childcare and children’s centre quality in Brighton & Hove based on
Ofsted inspection judgements.

Figure 1: Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements
How well does the setting meet the needs of children in the Early Years Foundation
Stage

Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements
100 to 31st December 2012
a0
) 80 -
5 70
3 60 -
= @ Brighton & Hove
2 50
‘c m England
*g’ 40
8 30
e 20
10
0 ‘
Outstanding Good Satisfactory Inadequate
Judgement

Brighton & Hove’s figure of 88 per cent of providers good or outstanding compares
favourably with the equivalent figure for England as a whole of 75 per cent. Brighton &
Hove’s early years settings are second in the country, in terms of quality.

Figure 2 shows a breakdown of these judgements separating childcare on non-domestic
premises and childminders. Childcare on domestic premises is not shown because there
was only one inspection of this type in the period.

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

119



Figure 2: Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements
How well does the setting meet the needs of children in the Early Years Foundation
Stage: by Category

Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements

100 by Category to 31st December 2012

90
80
70 +
60
50 +
40

30
@ Childcare on non-
20 - domestic premises

10 . ’_. m Childminders
0 e

Per cent of providers

Outstanding Good Satisfactory Inadequate

Judgement

Figure 3: Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements: by Deprivation
The chart below shows the quality of all early years settings by the deprivation index of the
area in which they are located.

Early Years Ofsted Inspection Judgements
100 by Deprivation to 31st December 2012
90
80 -
70
;E’, 60 Egzz’;andlng
O 50
&: 40 O Satisfactory
30 O Inadequate
20 ~
10
0. ‘ - 1 -
Most Deprived Average Less Least Al
deprived deprived deprived
Level of Deprivation

This shows that while there are no inadequate settings in the most deprived areas of the
city, there are more good and outstanding settings in the least deprived areas.

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

120



Figure 4: Children’s Centre Ofsted Inspection Judgements
Overall effectiveness

Children's Centre Ofsted Inspection Judgements
to 31st December 2012
100

90
» 80
3 70
>
g_ 60 O Brighton & Hove
— 50
o m England
= 40
[}
o 30
& 20

10 F

0 ‘
Outstanding Good Satisfactory Inadequate
Judgement

Brighton & Hove’s figure of 100 per cent of children’s centres good or outstanding
compares favourably with the equivalent figure for England as a whole of 70 per cent.

1.2 Childcare Quality Children’s Centre Nurseries

Childcare quality in Brighton & Hove’s five children’s centre nurseries is also high, with four
judged outstanding and one good. This is significant as they are located in the most
disadvantaged areas of the city.

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council |

121



Section Two
CHILDCARE SUPPLY

2.1 Childcare Supply

This section of the CSA looks at childcare supply. Supply data is taken from the Family
Information Service (FIS)? database and its childcare audit carried out in October 2012.
Childcare supply is that registered by Ofsted on either its compulsory or voluntary childcare
registers.

Where possible school-run out of school provision (breakfast and after-school clubs) is
included, although these fall under the school’s Ofsted registration and are not inspected
separately. This means that data on this type of provision is dependent on schools’
response to the FIS childcare audit, which is incomplete in some cases.

Where possible and relevant, data is compared with previous CSAs.

Where appropriate, childcare supply has been mapped by ward.

2.2 Ownership of Childcare Provision

The following charts show ownership of childcare settings in Brighton & Hove by type.

Public refers to settings owned by the local authority, universities or health trusts.

Figure 5: Ownership of Full Day Care®

Owernship of Full Day Care Ownership of Full Day Care
Settings: Providers Settings: Places

O Private O Private
W Public W Public
O Voluntary O Voluntary

In Brighton & Hove full day care for children from birth to age five is largely privately owned.

% Brighton & Hove’s Family Information Service provides information and advice on childcare (amongst oth&tms

services) for children and young people aged 0 to 19 years and their families in the city

S “Full day care” refers to childcare which is open for at least eight hours a day
-10 -

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment

Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

122



Figure 6: Ownership of Sessional Care*

Ownership of Sessional Care
Settings: Providers

Ownership of Sessional Care
Settings: Places

O Private

O Maintained
O Voluntary
@ Public

O Private

O Maintained
O Voluntary
W Public

The ownership of sessional care for children from birth to five is fairly evenly spread
between the private, maintained and voluntary sectors, although there are more places in

the maintained sector.

Figure 7: Ownership of After-School Clubs

Ownership of After-School
Clubs: Providers

Ownership of After-School
Clubs: Places

O Private
O Voluntary
O Maintained

O Private
O Voluntary

O Maintained

Ownership of after-school clubs is significantly focussed in the private sector, particularly
when the spread of places (as opposed to clubs) is considered.

* Sessional care refers to care which is open for fewer than eight hours a day and includes nursery units of

independent schools

-1
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

123



2.3 City-Wide Childcare Supply
The graph below shows city-wide childcare supply, both providers and places, by provider
type. Figures are for the number of registered childcare places.

Figure 8: Number of Childcare Providers, by Type

Number of Childcare Providers
250
200
150
100
50
0
<& & < < o 2 (2 P
& & ‘\G&K \C 4 & & *(\Q’& @Q}\Q
& $ & & & & S N
& N @ ) NS & & >
O & & Qf-’% o % N &
e 2 & & ) »
' v © N
3 °

Since last year the number of full day care, sessional care, maintained care and holiday
play scheme providers has remained fairly constant. The number of after-school clubs,
breakfast clubs and at home childcarers has increased, whereas the number of
childminders has decreased, as shown in the table below.

Figure 9: Change in Childcare Providers Since 2011

Type Number in 2012 Number in 2011 Per cent change
Breakfast club 44 39 +12.9
Home childcarer 63 56 +12
After-school club 41 37 +10.8
Sessional care 55 53 +3.8
Holiday play scheme | 34 34 no change
Full day care 66 68 -2.9
Childminders 222 257 -13.6
-12 -

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

124



Figure 10: Number of Childcare Places

Childcare Places
6000

5000

4000

3000

2000 -

1000 -

O T T
Full day and Holiday play  After school clubs  Childminding Maintained
sessional care schemes nursery
schools/classes

The figures compared with last year are shown in the table below.

Figure 11: Change in Childcare Places Since 2011

Type Number in 2012 | Number in 2011 Per cent change
Holiday play scheme 1,499 1,343 +11.6
After-school club 1,389 1,258 +10.4
Childminding 1,128 1,172 -3.7
Full day and sessional care | 4,869 4,819 +1

-13 -

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

125



Figure 12: Childcare Places Change Since 2008

Registered Childcare Places

6000
5000
02012
4000 -+ m2011
3000 -+ 02010
02009
2000 -+ m 2008
o T T T T

) > Ke) o)} 1%
T 5 S o 3 £ Q
%o o o < » ° o g
> T >‘§ ? 5 = g > ®
© c g2 S5 S T © O
T O = O Q o EQB
= o o o = = s =2
S 0 T <C o (Uc8
L o = =

? @

Type

There has been an increase in full day and sessional care places (a 13 per cent increase
since 2008) and a decrease in childminding places (a 21 per cent reduction since 2008).
Part of the reason for the reduction in childminding places is through childminders
converting to become “childcare on domestic premises” and therefore no longer registered
as a childminder.

-14 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council |

126



2.4 Childcare Provision by Ward

Childcare provision is not spread evenly over the city. The following data shows provision
by type and by ward. Each ward has been ranked with the lowest amount of provision in
the darkest colours and the highest in the lightest

Figure 13: Full Day Care Provision

Rank Key

1-4 High (wards with the most full day care places)

5-8
9-12
13-16
17-21

Low (wards with the fewest full day care places)

-15 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013

Brighton & Hove City Council &l l&
L)

Brighton & Hove
City Council

127



Figure 14: Sessional Care Provision

Rank Key
1-4 High (the wards with the most sessional care places)

5-8
9-12
13-16
17-21

Low (wards with the fewest sessional care places)

-16 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013

_
Brighton & Hove City Council (Ll l (L
9044

Brighton & Hove
City Council

128



Figure 15: Childminding Provision

Rank Key
1-4 High (the wards with the most childminding places)
5-8
9-12
13-16
17-21

Low (the wards with the fewest childminding places)

-17 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013

_
Brighton & Hove City Council (Ll l (L
9044

Brighton & Hove
City Council

129



Figure 16: After-School Club Provision

Rank Key
1-4 High (wards with the most after-school club places)
5-8
9-12
13-16
17-21

Low (wards with the fewest after-school club places)

To some extent provision of childcare for school-age children (in particular after-school
clubs) will be linked with the number of schools in the ward.

-18 -

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013 i
Brighton & Hove City Council (Ll l (L
| 00044 4
Brighton & Hove

130 City Council




2.5 Childcare Provision Penetration Rates Pre-School Children

The table below shows the provision of childcare in relation to the local child population
(aged four years or under), and indicates the number of children per childcare place by type
and by ward. Data is shown by registered places. Childminding places are included,
through they may be available for children up to the age of eight.

Figure 17: Childcare Provision, Penetration Rates Pre-school Children

Ward Full day care Sessional care | Childminding

Brunswick & Adelaide 12.6 11
Central Hove 5.9 18 20
East Brighton 3.4 11.1 216.5
Goldsmid 1.5 19.2 33.3
Hangleton & Knoll 13.5 8.6 9.7
Hanover & EIm Grove 4.5 12.6
Hollingbury & Stanmer b5 9.7 12.2
Moulsecoomb & Bevendean 23 17.3 11.8
North Portslade 11.1 8.3 11.3
Patcham 11.2 13 7.5
Preston Park 4.4 7.8 13.2
Queen's Park 5.8 9.8 22.1
Regency 5.9 42.2
Rottingdean Coastal 3.9 2.9 16.4
South Portslade 24.3 4.6 8.5
St Peter's & North Laine 8 22.7 16.4
Stanford 5.1 5.8 6.8
Westbourne 16 5.7 26
Wish 1.4 11.6 10.2
Withdean 2.9 11.9 34.8
Woodingdean 7.3 9.3
Average 7.5 9.9 26.3

This shows uneven distribution of childcare across the city, ranging from 24.3 children per
full day care place in South Portslade to 1.4 in Wish. In two wards (Brunswick & Adelaide
and Woodingdean) there is no full day care.

For sessional care the range is from 22.7 children per place in St Peter’'s & North Laine, to
2.9 in Rottingdean Coastal, and with no sessional care in Hanover & Elm Grove and
Regency.

Childminding ranges from 216.5 children per childminding place in East Brighton to 6.8 in
Stanford.

-19 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

131



2.6 Early Years Providers Offering Free Early Learning for Three and Four Year
Olds

There are 144 providers across the city offering free early learning. This is three more than
reported in the last CSA. Of these 59 (66 last time) are private sector nurseries, pre-
schools or playgroups, 30 (no change from last time) are voluntary sector nurseries, pre-
schools or playgroups, eight (no change from last time) are independent schools, 14 (13
last time) are public sector (local authority, university or NHS) and 13 (four last time) are
childminders or childminder nurseries. There are 18 nursery classes in infant and primary
schools, and two maintained nursery schools.

The number of different types of setting and the distribution of children in these settings is
shown in the charts below.

Figure 18: Settings Offering Free Early Learning by Setting Type

Number of Settings Offering Free Early Learning
by Setting Type

O Private sector

O Voluntary sector

O Maintained nursery class

m Public sector

B Childminder/childminder nursery
O Independent school

® Maintained nursery school

Figure 19: Distribution of Children in Free Early Learning by Setting Type

Distribution of Children in Free Early Learning by
Setting Type

@ Private sector

0O Voluntary sector

0O Maintained nursery class

| Public sector

® Childminder/childminder nursery

O Independent school

B Maintained nursery school

This shows that nearly 56 per cent of the childcare settings in Brighton & Hove providing
free early learning are in the private sector (private childcare providers, independent
schools and childminders/childminder nurseries), and also that these settings provide for
just under 50 per cent of children. The public sector as a whole (including maintained
nursery classes and schools) provides for 32 per cent of children. The biggest growth

-20 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

132



since last year has been in childminders/childminder nurseries which now provide for 84
children.

2.7 Early Years Providers Offering Free Early Learning for Eligible Two Year Olds
In December 2012 there were 58 childcare providers signed up to offer free early learning
to eligible two year olds. Of these 20 were in the voluntary sector, 19 were in the private
sector, 10 were childminders, and nine were in the public sector.

However at the end of December 2012 only 35 of the 58 had funded two year olds
attending.

In total there were 222 two year old children in a funded childcare place.

The majority of funded two year olds (50.9 per cent) attended a public sector childcare
setting.

Figure 20: Funded Two Year Olds’ Attendance by Sector

Funded Two Year Olds' Attendance by Sector

W public
O voluntary
@ private

O childminder

2.8 Provision of and Demand for Free Early Learning for Eligible Two Year Olds
From September 2013 an approximately 20 per cent of two year olds in Brighton & Hove
will be eligible for a free early learning place for 15 hours a week, 38 weeks a year. This
will increase to 40 per cent of two year olds from September 2014. The estimates provided
by the Department for Education are that this will result in 517 two year old children taking
up a free place in September 2013, increasing to 1,300 in September 2014.

Childcare providers who meet required quality standards will be able to choose to offer free
places to two year olds. At the time of writing work was underway to investigate where
these children live in the city, and to aim to ensure that childcare is available to them
locally.

Provision of places for two year olds is estimated as below and shows the following
distribution by ward.

-21 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council |

133



Figure 21: Distribution of Childcare Places for Two Year Olds by Ward

Ward Total estimated places available for two year olds

Brunswick & Adelaide 5
Central Hove 46
East Brighton 79
Goldsmid 257
Hangleton & Knoll 80
Hanover & Elm Grove 73
Hollingbury & Stanmer 82
Hove Park 34
Moulsecoomb & Bevendean 50
North Portslade 58
Patcham 82
Preston Park 82
Queen's Park 26
Regency 112
Rottingdean Coastal 60
South Portslade 51
St Peter's & North Laine 46
Westbourne 66
Wish 235
Withdean 143
Woodingdean 26
Total 1,694

This table shows the estimated number of childcare places available for two year olds in
each ward in the city, combining both full day care® and sessional childcare places. It
shows that there is a significant difference in provision in different areas. However, the
table does not show the differing demand for free places in different areas. This data is
currently being developed and will be reported on later in the year.

® Note that a full day care place may be taken up by more than one child
-22 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment

Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council |

134



2.9 Childcare Available in Non-Traditional Hours
In terms of care for pre-school children for working parents which might be needed for a
lengthy day, childminders and full day care offered the longest hours.

Some providers offer hours outside weekdays and 8 am to 6 pm and details of these are
given below. Childminding offers the widest variety of times of provision. There is more
childcare available before 8 am than after 6 pm and very limited provision at weekends.
This is important for shift workers who need childcare.

There are a number of providers of all types offering emergency and/or ad hoc care. In
some cases this will be for children already attending a provider who need extra sessions
on an emergency basis. Again there is most provision among childminders.

Figure 22: Number of Providers City-Wide by Type Offering Non-Traditional Hours®

Emergency/ad
Type Mornings Evenings after | Saturday hoc or
before 8 am 6 pm and/or Sunday | occasional
care
Childminder 110 (49.5) 68 (30.6) 28 (12.2) 154 (69.3)
Full day care 15 (22.7) 12 (18.2) 1(1.5) 19 (28.8)
At home childcare 6 (9.5) 40 (63.5) 30 (47.6) 16 (25.4)
After-school club 1(2.4) 1(2.4) 17 (41.5)
Figure 23: Holiday Opening by Play Schemes®
Holiday City-wide total
Summer 26 (100)
Easter 17 (65.4)
Half-term(s) 14(53.8)
Christmas 5(19.2)

2.10 Childcare Vacancies

Childcare providers were asked for details of their vacancies but a significant number did
not provide this information. Childcare vacancy information can change on a daily basis
and providers do not record or vacancies in the same way, which has made vacancy data
less than robust. For these reasons childcare vacancy data is not reported in this CSA.

2.11 Childcare Costs
This data relates to all childcare provision and gives an indication of childcare costs across
the city.

When looking at childcare costs the following should be noted:
» Childcare providers were asked to give their cost for a place for a child per day, or
per session as appropriate. In some cases they offer discounts, for example for a
child attending for a whole week. Many settings offer discounts for siblings.

® Per cent of all providers in brackets
-23 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment

Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

135



Conversely many settings charge more, on a pro-rata basis, for a half day,
particularly for a morning session.

» Cost data does not take into account what the fee buys. This is particularly relevant
for full day care where some providers include all food and supplies in their fee,
while others will require parents to provide everything.

» Cost only matters to parents if they can find a vacancy at a price they can afford in a
place where they want it. When a parent is looking for childcare it is irrelevant to
them that there may be vacancies at a cheaper price in an area of the city they
cannot get to, or there may be nurseries with lower fees but all its places are full. It
is also irrelevant to a parent who cannot find childcare at session times they need.

» Costs do not take account of the fact that from the term after their third birthday until
they start school children are entitled to 15 hours of free early learning for 38 weeks
a year. From September 2013 this offer will be extended to 20 per cent of two year
olds in the city.

* The cost of a full-time place all year round for a child up to the age of two can be as
much as £16,237 (or £312 per week)’. However, very few parents use childcare to
this extent. For a parent of a child up to the age of two using childcare all year round
for 25 hours a week and paying the average fee of £45.30 per day, the cost would
be £5,889 a year (or £113.25 a week).

» Some voluntary sector and school-run breakfast clubs, after-school clubs and
holiday play schemes offer significantly discounted fees to low income and non-
working parents, particularly where children are in receipt of free school meals.
However, the costs used for these calculations are the highest cost the setting
charges.

212 Cost of Full Day Care
The following table shows average8 childcare costs and change over time.

Figure 24: Cost of Full Day Care per Day Average Cost and Change in Costs’

Average Average Average Average Average
Age of child cost per ten | cost per ten | cost per ten | cost per ten | cost per ten
hour day hour day hour day hour day hour day
(2012) (£) 2011 (£) 2010 (£) 2009 (£) 2008 (£)
0 to 23 months 45.30 (+0.2) | 45.19 (+3.3)| 43.70 (+3.8) | 42.10 (+4.1) 39
2 years 45.30 (+0.2) | 45.19 (+12.1) | 40.30 (+2.3) [ 39.40 (+6.8) 36.9
3 to 5 years 42.84 (+0.2) | 42.83 (+7.3) 39.90 (+9) [ 36.60 (+3.1) 35.5
0 to 5 years 44.03 (+0.3) 43.88 (+7)| 41.00 (+4.1) | 39.40 (+7.9) 36.5

! Assuming the child attends ten hours a day for five days a week and the setting charges for 52 weeks a year
® All averages in tables are means
® Per cent change in brackets

-24 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

136



The following table shows the number of registered places by cost band.

Figure 25: Number of Full Day Care Places by Cost Band

Band Price per day (£) | Number of places Per cent of all places

1 25.00 - 29.99 59 1.8
2 30.00 - 34.99 96 3.0
3 35.00 - 39.99 351 10.8
4 40.00 - 44.99 964 29.8
5 45.00 - 49.99 1,224 37.8
6 50.00 - 54.99 340 10.5
7 55.00 - 59.99 202 6.2
Total 3,236 100

This shows that 67.6 cent of all full day care places are priced between £40.00 and £49.99
per day. However, the number of full day care places costing £50 or more per day has
increased from 13.1 per cent of all places last year to 16.7 per cent of all places this year.

2.13 Cost of Sessional Care

The average cost of sessional childcare is £14.43 per session. However, session lengths

vary between settings.

In previous CSAs the cost of sessional care per hour was reported. However, as parents
cannot usually purchase sessional care by the hour this has been amended to report cost
per session. For this reason a comparison with previous years cannot be made.

Figure 26: Distribution of Sessional Care Costs

Band Price per session (£) Elzr:;)ser e Per cent of all places
115.00-9.99 155 9.9
2110.00 - 14.99 655 41.7
3115.00 - 19.99 458 29.2
4 120.00 - 24.99 177 11.3
51 25.00 - 29.99 40 2.5
6 | 30.00 - 34.99 84 5.4
Total 1,569 100

This shows that more than 70 per cent of sessions are priced between £10.00 and £19.99.

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

-25-

137

Brighton & Hove
City Council




214 Cost of Childminding and At Home Childcare

Childminding and at home childcare costs are shown for children of all ages, as rates tend

to be the same.

Figure 27: Cost of Childminding per Hour Average Cost and Change in Costs®

Average Average Average Average Average
Childminding | cost per cost per cost per cost per cost per
city-wide hour 2012 hour 2011 hour 2010 hour 2009 hour 2008
(£) (£) (£) (£) (£)
4.40 (no
All ages 4.80 (+2.3) 4.69 (+6.6) change) 4.40 (+7.3) 4.11

Figure 28: Cost of At Home Childcarer per Hour Average Cost and Change in Costs®

2012 (£)

Average cost per hour

Average cost per hour
2011 (£)

2010 (£)

Average cost per hour

8.05 (+3.9)

7.75 (+1.5)

7.21

215 Cost of Holiday Play Schemes and After-School Clubs
These are reported per day or per session. For holiday play schemes the length of days
tends to vary and so the rate for the standard day is shown, excluding any additional hours

which parents may

opt to purchase.

After-school club sessions last on average for two and three quarter hours.

Figure 29: Cost of Holiday Play Scheme per Day Change in Costs®

Average cost

Average cost

Average cost

Average cost

Average cost

per day 2012 per day 2011 per day 2010 per day 2009 per day 2008

(£) (£) (£) (£) (£)

23.27 (-4.7) 24.42 (+14.6) | 21.30 (+7) 19.90 (no 19.90
change)

Figure 30: Cost of After-School Club per Session Change in Costs®

Average cost Average cost Average cost Average cost Average cost
per session per session per session per session per session
2012 (£) 2011 (£) 2010 (£) 2009 (£) 2008 (£)

9.20 (+2.3) 8.99 (+8.3) 8.30 (-1.2) 8.40 (+6.3) 7.90

2.16 Cost of Breakfast clubs
Of those breakfast clubs which make a charge, the average cost per session is £2.20 which
is a 12.2 per cent increase on the sessional cost of £1.96 last time.

Some breakfast clubs are free to attend and only charge for the food children consume.

Childcare Sufficiency Assess
Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

ment

- 26 -

Brighton & Hove
City Council

138



217 Childcare Costs: Regional and National Comparisons
The Day Care Trust publishes data in its annual Childcare Costs Survey', and these have
been compared with the costs in Brighton & Hove in the table below.

Figure 31: Cost of Childcare: Regional and National Comparisons

Brighton & Hove'" | South East England
Type of Care

yp (£) (£) (£)
Nursery for 25 hours a week 113.25 125.16 108.51
(under two)

Nursery for 25 hours a week 110.12 131.34 106.52
(age two and over)

Childminder for 25 hours a 120.00 112.76 08.98
week (under two)

Childminder for 25 hours a 120.00 111.73 97.27
week (age two and over)

After-school club 15 hours a 46.00 52 65 49.71
week

In all cases except after-school club, the cost of childcare in Brighton & Hove is more
expensive than the cost in England as a whole. However, Brighton & Hove’s costs are
cheaper than the south east averages for nursery care as follows
* Nursery for under two is 9.5 per cent cheaper in Brighton & Hove than in the south
east
* Nursery for two and over is 16.1 per cent cheaper in Brighton & Hove than in the
south east

Childminding, on the other hand, is more expensive in Brighton & Hove, compared with the
south east averages
* Childminder for a child under two is 6.4 per cent more expensive in Brighton & Hove
than in the south east
» Childminder for a child over two is 7.4 per cent more expensive in Brighton & Hove
than in the south east

The cost of an after-school club place in Brighton & Hove is 12.6 per cent cheaper than in
the south east.

'% Childcare Costs Survey 2013, Daycare Trust
" The Daycare Trust refers to “nursery care” and the cost for full day care in Brighton & Hove are used fof
comparison, not the cost of sessional care

-27 -
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment

Refreshed April 2013
Brighton & Hove City Council

Brighton & Hove
City Council

139



140



Document is Restricted

141



144



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Constitutional Changes
	Constitutional Changes Report Appendix

	8 Closing  the Gap in Educational Achievement for Vulnerable Groups in the City
	final Closing the Gap in Educational Achievement draft for committee

	9 Brighton & Hove City Council: Updated Annual Standards and School Performance Report 2011/12
	Standards report 030513
	Enc. 2 for Brighton & Hove City Council: Updated Annual Standards and School Performance Report 2011/12

	10 Update on Childcare for Two Year Olds and Provision for the East of the City
	CSA appendix vj 7 5 13 (2)

	11 Provision of Childcare In East Brighton

